Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

COMMISSION MEETING MATERIAL

FOR THE REGULAR MEETING
Friday, April 28, 2017 at 8:00 A.M.

LOCATION:

SECOND FLOOR COMMITTEE ROOM — GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684



Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

TABLE OF CONTENTS

April 25, 2017 Regular Meeting ABeNda........c..covciiiieiiiiieieieriiee s e e esreressennees e snereeeesenans
March 24, 2017 Regular Meeting MINULES ........ccuieriiiriiri e r e s ee e e e e seireeeeeaeeaesaans
April 7, 2017 Special Meeting IMINULES ........coiiiiiiiiiei e sbese e e
Schedule of Disbursements for March 2017 for Public HOUSING ......coocceiieiicieiiniiinicirccireceeeenne
Schedule of Disbursements for March 2017 for HCV Section 8 Programs .....c.cccccoeeveriieerreieeennns
INVOICES FOr APFIl 2007 ...oveiieiieeie ettt et ee e e sreee e s e srate e s e se s sar e e s e saneesesranesenarenessneresesennnnens
Financial Statements for March 2017 ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinii e
April 18, 2017 Resident Advisory Board Meeting Minutes .........cccccviimieriiiniiiniicicneieeeeenieeeennn
April 20, 2017 Executive Committee Meeting MINULES .......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiininiirec e cesirereenes
April 20, 2017 Governance Committee Meeting MinuUes ........ccccciviriiiiiiiiiniiniiieniinrer e ssrer e
Commission Committee Assignment/Organizational Chart............ccceccvvieniiiencininnnnesen e
Executive Director’s Report for April 2017 .......coovceiiiiieiinieisiies e iiisesissssise s e ssresesaassenseses
Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report for April 2017 ........cccovieiiieiieiinceeiiniiicinesinaesecnnes
Resident Council Report for APril 2007 .........co it seesereessresssreesnn s s sssasas

2017 Consolidated BUABET ......ccooviiiuiiiiiirieiriirrie e sesssssisrnesssessesssssssssssssassesssnsssnssssssssassansnnenessnses
TCHC Policy ReVIEW SChEAUIE.......cieiiiiirieiire et s et smba e e s ssne e e ranaes

Resolution on Implementation for Smoke Free POlICY .......ccccvvviiiiiiiiiniininnesiecciicesiees s
Schedule of Excess Utilities Policy Memorandum ...........cceeeiiieiiiiiiieeeeccieeeeee s srsenresesrenannnnees

Municipal Underwriters of Michigan Policy QUOTE .........ccciiiiiiiniriiiiiiiiiiniinieiseessisssnssssssses



Table of Contents Continued

Memorandum on Engineering Services - NE@d........ccooreiiiiiiiiiieric i sas e sesinnseseens 81
Memorandum on RTRC Memorandum of Understanding..........cccoccccevievvieiniecnrireiinescciecssinnees, 82
April 20, 2017 Letter of Support for Goodwill Industries ..........cccccivvieeiiniinnessicniccsecseiecieeeeee. 99
TCHC Memorandum to City on Building Heights .........cccccceriiviericieesienierisieessesesneesneeeensneees. 102

TCHC Annual Report to City Of Traverse City.......cccccveivieeiiriinieeerieerenieecnseeniieesinesessssessssessesneens 103



Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

MEETING AGENDA

April 28, 2017







The City of Traverse City
TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION
150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
T:(231) 922-4915 | F: (231) 922-2893
TDD: (800) 649-3777

NOTICE

THE TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A REGULAR MEETING
ON FRIDAY, APRIL 28, 2017 AT 8:00 A.M.

SECOND FLOOR COMMITTEE ROOM — GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
(231) 995-5150

POSTED: APRIL 26, 2017

The Traverse City Housing Commission does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the
admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs or activities. Please, contact
the Traverse City Housing Commission Office, 150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684,
(231) 922-4915, to coordinate specific needs in compliance with the non-discrimination
requirements continued in Section 35.087 of the Department of Justice Regulations. Information
concerning the provisions of Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and the rights provided
hereunder, are available from the ADA Coordinator.

If you are planning to attend and you have a disability requiring any special assistance at the
meeting, please notify the Executive Director immediately.

AGENDA

I CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
l APPROVAL OF AGENDA
i PUBLIC COMMENT

v CONSENT AGENDA

The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together
to be dealt with by one Commission motion without discussion. Any member of the Commission, staff or
the public may ask that any item on the Consent Agenda be removed from and placed elsewhere on the
agenda for full discussion. Such requests will automatically be respected. If an item is not removed from
the Consent Agenda the action noted on the Agenda is approved by a single Commission action adopting
the Consent Agenda (a/l items on the Consent Agenda are printed in italics).

A. Consideration of Approval of March 24, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes — Approval

Recommended.

B. Consideration of Approval of April 7, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes — Approval
Recommended.

C. Consideration of Approval of Schedule of Disbursements for March 2017 for Public Housing &

HCV Section 8 Programs — Approval Recommended.
Page 1of2



Vi

VI

Vil

Xi

Xl

D. Review & Approval of Payment of Invoices for April 2017 — Approval Recommended.
E. Review & Acceptance of Financial Statements for March 2017 — Approval Recommended.

COMMITTEE & COMMISSIONER REPORTS

Resident Advisory Board Meeting: April 18, 2017

Executive Committee Meetings: April 20, 2017

Governance Committee Meeting: April 20, 2017

Ad Hoc Committee on Hostile Environment Harassment/Bullying: Update on Membership
Review of Commission Committee Assignments

mooOowre

STAFF & PROGRAM REPORTS

A. Executive Director’s Report: April
B. Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report: April
C. Resident Council Report: April

OLD BUSINESS

2017 Consolidated Budget: Review

TCHC Policy Review Schedule: Update

Executive Director Annual Review: Report

“Shared Drive” Request from City: Update

TCHC Human Resources Policy & Procedures Manual: Update & Discussion

TCHC Smoke Free Policy: Resolution

mTmoowr

NEW BUSINESS

A. Policy on Schedule of Excess Utility Charges

B. Municipal Underwriters of Michigan Insurance Quote: Review

C. Engineering Services: Discussion on Need (Parking Lot, Rooftop, etc.)
D. RTRC Memorandum of Understanding: Commission Review

CORRESPONDENCE

A. April 20, 2017 Letter of Support for Goodwill Industries and Continuum of Care
B. TCHC Memorandum to the City of Traverse City on Building Height Restrictions
C. TCHC Annual Report to the City of Traverse City

PUBLIC COMMENT
COMMISSIONER COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING: Friday, May 26, 2017 at 8:00 A.M.

Page 2 of 2



Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

CONSENT AGENDA

March 24, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes

April 7, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes
Schedule of Disbursements for March 2017 for Public Housing
Schedule of Disbursements for March 2017 for HCV Section 8 Programs
Invoices for April 2017

Financial Statements for March 2017



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission
March 24, 2017

A Regular Meeting of the Traverse City Housing Commission was called to order by Vice President Kay
Serratelli at Governmental Center — Second Floor Committee Room, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse

City at 8:02 AM.

vi

Vil

ROLL CALL

The following Commissioners were present: Richard Michael, Kay Serratelli, Andy Smits, and
Michelle St. Amant. Brain Haas was excused due to an illness.

Staff: Tony Lentych, Executive Director, and Michelle Reardon, Deputy Director.

Residents: Norma Loper, Jo Simerson, and Ellen Corcoran.

Others: Ward Kuhn, TCHC Attorney, and two students from Grand Valley State University.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Smits moved (Michael support) to accept the agenda as presented. The motion

was unanimously approved.

PUBLIC COMMENT
General comments: Ellen Corcoran.

CONSENT AGENDA

Commissioner Michael moved (St. Amant support) to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.

The motion was unanimously approved.

A. Approval of the Meeting Minutes of the February 24, 2017 Regular Commission Meeting.

B. Acceptance of the Schedule of Disbursements for February 2017 for Public Housing and
Housing Choice Voucher Section 8 Programs.

C. Review of the Payment of Invoices for March 2017.

D. Acceptance of the Financial Statements for February 2017.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. Executive Committee Meetings: March 7, 2017 & March 20, 2017. There were no
comments or questions.

B. Governance Committee Meeting: March 22, 2017. There were no comments or questions.

STAFF AND PROGRAM REPORTS

A. Executive Director’s Report: T. Lentych presented the report. There were comments
related to staffing and organizational structure and the Housing Solutions Network.

B. Family Self-Sufficiency Report: There were no comments or questions.

C. Resident Council Report: February and March, 2017.

OLD BUSINESS
A. The FY 2017 Budget was reviewed.

Page 1 of 3



Vil

B. TCHC Policy Review Schedule was presented. The Safety and Evacuation policy is next to be
reviewed. The Code of Conduct policy will also be placed on the schedule.
C. Executive Director Annual Review: Commissioner Serratelli presented the format for the
review. The Board will be meeting in closed session to begin the process, the date to be
determined by electronic poll.
D. The office renovation is complete. Staff is working well in the new space.
E. The “Shared Drive” request from the City has not changed since the last discussion. ED
Lentych continues to be involved in discussions regarding the property.
F. A timeline for development and implementation of the Smoke Free Property Policy was
presented. Commissioner St. Amant (Smits support) to formally adopt the timeline for
implementation. The motion was unanimously approved.
NEW BUSINESS
A. The Orchardview “Windows & Siding” Project was presented. A bid walk-through was held
on March 22, 2017 with four contractors in attendance. A special meeting will be held in
approximately 2 weeks to review and approve a bid on the project. Commissioner Smits
encourages the Board to stay engaged in the process.
B. The Human Resources Policy & Procedures Manual is being completed and will be presented
to the Board at the April meeting. Commissioner St. Amant requested inclusion of a
confidentiality clause in this document.
C. Avrevised TCHC Check signing policy was presented and discussed. Commissioner Michaels
moved (Smits support) to adopt the policy as presented. The motion was unanimously
approved.
D. ED Lentych discussed the ongoing federal budget discussions regarding HUD. The TCHC will
continue to monitor this process.
E. Commissioner Smits moved (Michaels support) that the Traverse City Housing Commission
enter into a closed session immediately after the final public comment portion of today’s
agenda to discuss a potential purchase of property per MCL 15.268(d).
Roll call
Hass Absent
Michael Yes
Serratelli Yes
St. Amant Yes
Smits Yes

The motion was approved.

F. Commissioner Smits moved (Michaels support) that the Traverse City Housing Commission

enter into a closed session immediately after the final public comment portion of today’s
agenda to discuss a privileged attorney-client communication in connection with Priscilla
Townsend v. the Traverse City Housing Commission and John and/or Jane Doe per MCL
15.268(e).

Roll call

Hass Absent
Michael Yes
Serratelli Yes

Page 2 of 3



Xt

X

Xi

Xl

St. Amant Yes
Smits Yes

The motion was approved.

CORRESPONDENCE

Two pieces of correspondence were presented and accepted.

PUBLIC COMMENT
General comments: Norma Loper, Brenden O’Donnell, Ellen Corcoran and Jo Simerson.

CLOSED SESSION - LAWSUIT
The Commission went into closed session at 9:34 AM.
The Commission was called back to order at 10:35 AM.

CLOSED SESSION — PROPERTY PURCHASE

The Commission went into closed session at 10:38 AM.
Commissioner Michael left the meeting at 10:57 AM.
The Commission was called back to order at 11:02 AM.

COMMISSIONER COMMENT

Commissioner Smits commented that he has had discussions with an attorney to clarify and
comply with the Open Meetings Act when meeting in a Commercial building versus a publicly
owned building.

ADJOURNMENT
Commissioner St. Amant moved (Smits support) to adjourn. The motion was unanimously
approved and President Haas adjourned the meeting at 11:08 AM.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Reardon, Recording Secretary

Brian Haas, President

Page 3of 3

10



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission
April 7, 2017

A Special Meeting of the Traverse City Housing Commission was called to order by President Brian Haas
at Riverview Terrace — Third Floor Community Room, 150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan at 8:05
AM.

| ROLL CALL
The following Commissioners were present: Brian Haas, Kay Serratelli, Andy Smits and Michelle
St. Amant. Richard Michael was excused.
Staff: Tony Lentych, Executive Director and Michelle Reardon, Deputy Director.
Residents: Jo Simerson.

] APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Smits moved (Serratelli support) to accept the agenda as presented. The motion

was unanimously approved.

i NEW BUSINESS

A. The Orchardview Windows & Siding Project bid process results were presented and
discussed. After the presentation, President I1aas moved (Serratelli support) to accept the
qualified bid from First Contracting Incorporated of Ovid, Michigan for the Orchardview
Townhomes Siding and Window Replacement Project, pending final review and approval
from HUD, and hereby instruct staff to finalize a contract under the guidance of our
architect, Alliance Architects of South Bend, Indiana. The motion was unanimously
approved.

Commissioner Smits moved (St. Amant support) to authorize Alliance Architects via a
“Notice to Proceed” letter for item 1.3 of Task Order No. 1. The motion was unanimously
approved.

President Haas moved (Serratelli second) to adopt the resolution obligating funds from the
Capital Fund Program [Grant nos. MI133P080501-15 and MI128P080501-16] in amounts
sufficient enough to commence the “Orchardview Townhomes Siding & Window
Replacement Project” pending the successful negotiation of the contract with First
Contracting Incorporated of Ovid, Michigan.

Roll call

Hass Yes
Michael Absent
Serratelli Yes
Simerson Yes
Smits Yes

The resolution was adopted.

Page 1 of 2 11



v

\'ll

PUBLIC COMMENT
General comments: Jo Simerson.

COMMISSIONER COMMENT
Commissioner St. Amant appreciated the efforts put forth with this process as it relates to the

construction contract.

Commissioner Smits suggested that staff conduct a RFQ for engineering services during the next
several months.

ADJOURNMENT
President Haas adjourned the meeting at 8:40 AM.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Reardon, Recording Secretary

Brian Haas, President

Page 2 of 2

12



Date: 04/24/2017
Time: 12:33:57

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

Chemical Bank

From: 03/01/2017 To: 03/31/2017

Page: 1

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
03/02/2017 EFT T-Mobile 2,200.00 59,120.90
03/03/2017 EFT IRS 2,992.36 56,128.54
03/07/2017 EFT HUD 16,226.00 72,354.54
03/07/2017 EFT HUD 5,580.00 77,934.54
03/09/2017 77,934.54
03/09/2017 DEP 35,047.00 112,981.54
083/09/2017 DEP 4,464.58 117,446.12
03/09/2017 037026 City Of Traverse City 148.00 117,298.12
03/09/2017 037027 DTE ENERGY 208.11 117,090.01
03/10/2017 037028 LLee Delancy 314.00 116,776.01
03/10/2017 037029 DTE ENERGY 106.43 116,669.58
03/10/2017 037030 Anthony Lentych 119.00 116,550.58
03/10/2017 037031 Northwest Lock, Inc. 4.00 116,546.58
03/10/2017 037032 Integrated Payroll Services, Inc. 248.85 116,297.73
03/10/2017 037033 Thomas P. Licavoli 720.00 115,677.73
03/10/2017 037034 Charles Edwards 116.10 115,461.63
03/10/2017 037035 The Trophy Trolley Inc. 115.10 115,346.53
03/10/2017 037036 Trugreen 546.00 114,800.53
03/10/2017 037037 Engineered Protection Systems Inc 326.25 114,474.28
03/10/2017 037038 Cintas Corp. #729 245.40 114,228.88
03/10/2017 037039 Wilmar 21.14 114,207.74
03/10/2017 037040 Thomas P. Licavoli 770.00 113,437.74
03/10/2017 037041 Spence Brothers 50,549.40 62,888.34
03/10/2017 037042 Trugreen 175.00 62,713.34
03/10/2017 037043 Sondee, Racine & Doren, P.L.C. 32.00 62,681.34
03/10/2017 037044 NorthSky Nonprofit Network 360.00 62,321.34
03/10/2017 037045 Elmer's 450.00 61,871.34
03/10/2017 037046 Guardian Medical Monitoring 14.95 61,856.39
03/10/2017 037047 R.W. Popp Excavating, Inc. 180.00 61,676.39
03/10/2017 037048 City of Traverse City 169.86 61,506.53
03/10/2017 037049 Grand Traverse County DPW 483.00 61,023.53
03/10/2017 037050 Housing Data Systems 387.25 60,636.28
03/10/2017 037051 Barton Carroll's Inc 335.00 60,301.28
03/10/2017 037052 Verizon Wireless 142.80 60,158.48
03/10/2017 037053 Environmental Pest Control 270.00 59,888.48
03/10/2017 037054 United Laboratories 239.68 59,648.80
03/10/2017 037055 City of Traverse City, Treasurer's 426.84 59,221.96
03/10/2017 037056 McCardel Water Conditioning 8.00 59,213.96
03/10/2017 037057 Save Carpet USA 3,290.00 55923.94 3
03/10/2017 037058 Nan McKay & Associates Inc 448.00 55,475.96




Date: 04/24/2017 Traverse City Housing Commission

Time: 12:33:58 Check Register Summary Report
Chemical Bank
From: 03/01/2017 To: 03/31/2017

Page: 2

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
03/10/2017 037059 David Gourlay 71.49 55,404.47
03/10/2017 037060 Housing Autharity Accounting 1,819.54 53,5684.93
03/10/2017 037061 Safety Net 362.50 53,222.43
03/10/2017 037062 Mcgough's 47.00 53,175.43
03/10/2017 037063 D & W Mechanical 581.00 52,694.43
03/10/2017 037064 Munson Occupational Heaith & 70.00 52,524.43
03/10/2017 037065 Great Lakes Business Systems, Inc, 533.86 51,990.57
03/10/2017 037066 Charter Communications 3,343.57 48,647.00
03/10/2017 037067 Home Depot Credit Services 413.35 48,233.65
03/10/2017 037068 Nichols Paper & Supply Co. 16.89 48,216.76
03/10/2017 037069 Aflac 119.28 48,097.48
03/10/2017 037070 Sherwin Williams Co. 916.48 47,181.00
03/10/2017 037071 Ace Hardware 30.81 47,150.19
03/10/2017 037072 Kendall Electric Inc 124.25 47,025.94
03/10/2017 037073 Cardmember Service 933.34 46,092.60
03/10/2017 037074 Wilmar 235.12 45,857.48
03/14/2017 ADJST Alisa Kroupa 909.91 44,947.57
03/14/2017 ADJST Anthony Lentych 2,351.37 42,596.20
03/14/2017 ADJST Kari Massa 1,205.18 41,391.02
03/14/2017 ADJST Michelle Reardon 1,371.79 40,019.23
03/14/2017 ADJST Angela N. Szabo 628.18 39,391.05
03/14/2017 ADJST Joseph Battaglia 27717 39,113.88
03/14/2017 ADJST Charles Edwards 838.60 38,275.28
03/14/2017 ADJST David Gourlay 1,054.38 37,220.90
03/14/2017 ADJST Benjamin Weston 553.13 36,667.77
03/14/2017 EFT Principal Life Insurance Co. 334.16 36,333.61
03/14/2017 ADJST Deluxe Business Forms And Supp 77.83 36,255.78
03/15/2017 DEP 1,049.75 37,305.53
03/15/2017 DEP 266.00 37,571.53
03/15/2017 DEP 25,424.83 62,996.36
03/17/2017 ADJST IRS 2,885.23 60,111.13
03/20/2017 EFT State of Michigan 872.16 59,238.97
03/20/2017 EFT State of Michigan 2,992.36 56,246.61
03/21/2017 DEP 1.221.00 57,467.61
03/27/2017 037075 Trugreen 185.50 57,282.11
03/27/2017 037076 City Of Traverse City 14,401.81 42,880.30
03/27/2017 037077 AT&T 228.39 42,651.91
03/27/2017 037078 TREND WINDOW & DESIGN 995.00 41,656.91
083/27/2017 037079 Republic Services #239 646.44 41,0104714
03/27/2017 037080 Safety Net 619.00 40,391.47




Date: 04/24/2017 Traverse City Housing Commission

Time: 12:33:58 Check Register Summary Report
Chemical Bank
From: 03/01/2017 To: 03/31/2017

Page: 3

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
03/27/2017 037081 Environmental Pest Control 270.00 40,121.47
03/27/2017 037082 Vision Service Plan 91.11 40,030.36
03/27/2017 037083 City of Traverse City 1,192.50 38,837.86
03/27/2017 037084 Anthony Lentych 65.67 38,772.19
03/27/2017 037085 Save Carpet USA 1,5635.00 37,237.19
03/27/2017 037086 CynergyComm.net,Inc 10.73 37,226.46
03/27/2017 037087 Integrated Payroll Services, Inc. 112.90 37,113.56
03/27/2017 037088 Kuhn Rogers PLC 1,463.00 35,650.56
03/27/2017 037089 Grand Traverse County 48.17 35,604.39
03/27/2017 037090 DTE ENERGY 2,787.52 32,816.87
03/27/2017 037091 SAM'S CLUB 679.12 32,137.75
03/27/2017 037092 John DeWeese 108.85 32,028.90
03/27/2017 037093 Home Depot Credit Services 1,236.32 30,792.58
03/27/2017 037094 Thomas P. Licavoli 770.00 30,022.58
03/28/2017 EFT Principal Life Insurance Co. 369.16 29,653.42
03/28/2017 ADJST Alisa Kroupa 966.64 28,686.78
03/28/2017 ADJST Anthony Lentych 2,351.41 28,335.37
03/28/2017 ADJST Kari Massa 1,205.19 25,130.18
03/28/2017 ADJST Micheille Reardon 1,371.78 23,758.40
03/28/2017 ADJST Angela N. Szabo 617.58 23,140.82
03/28/2017 ADJST Joseph Battaglia 277.18 22,863.66
03/28/2017 ADJST Charles Edwards 1,068.87 21,794.79
03/28/2017 ADJST David Gourlay 1,026.11 20,768.68
03/28/2017 ADJST Benjamin Weston 309.53 20,459.15
03/28/2017 DEP 1,872.00 22,331.15
03/29/2017 DEP 16,938.59 39,269.74
03/29/2017 EFT Principal Life Insurance Co. 369.16 38,900.58
03/31/2017 EFT IRS 2,897.97 36,002.61
03/31/2017 DEP 294.00 36,296.61
03/31/2017 DEP 2,181.00 38,477.61
03/31/2017 DEP 758.95 39,236.56
03/31/2017 ADJST Chemical Bank 23.52 39,260.08
Total: 131,208.04 113,547.22

15



Date: 04/24/2017
Time: 12:33:50

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8

From: 03/01/2017 To: 03/31/2017

Page: 1

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
03/01/2017 EFT HUD 7,504.00 173,862.95
03/01/2017 EFT HUD 84,227.00 258,089.95
03/01/2017 ADJST PNC 76.60 258,013.35
03/01/2017 000190 Sandra Aeschiiman 285.00 257,728.35
03/01/2017 000190 Jeana Aiken 473.00 257,255.35
03/01/2017 000190 Dustin Ansorge 1,164.00 256,091.35
03/01/2017 000190 Ayers Investment Properties LLC 558.00 255,533.35
03/01/2017 000190 Brad Barnes 488.00 255,045.35
03/01/2017 000190 Bay Front Apartments 320.00 254,725.35
03/01/2017 000190 Bay Hill Housing LDHALP 3,635.00 251,190.35
03/01/2017 000190 Bay Hill Il Apartments 5,043.00 246,147.35
03/01/2017 000190 Christopher Becker 750.00 245,397.35
03/01/2017 000190 Bellaire Senior Apartments 631.00 244,768.35
03/01/2017 000190 Brookside Commons LDHA, LP 1,730.00 243,036.35
03/01/2017 000190 Irma Jean Brownley 355.00 242,681.35
03/01/2017 000190 Rebecca Carmien 332.00 242,342.35
03/01/2017 000190 Carson Square 5,501.00 236,841.35
03/01/2017 000190 Central Lake Townhouses 401.00 236,440.35
03/01/2017 000190 Cherrywood Village Farms, Inc. 2,321.00 234,119.35
03/01/2017 000190 Douglas A. Chichester 600.00 233,619.35
03/01/2017 000190 Cycle-Paths LLC. 968.00 232,551.35
03/01/2017 000190 Jack V. Dean 422.00 232,129.35
03/01/2017 000190 Dmytro Cherkasov 1,053.00 231,076.35
03/01/2017 000190 Eden Brook LLC 447.00 230,629.35
03/01/2017 000190 Shirley Farrell 834.00 229,795.35
03/01/2017 000190 Rent Leelanau, LLC 693.00 229,102.35
03/01/2017 000190 Lisa Forbes 489.00 228,613.35
03/01/2017 000190 Dale E. French 102.00 228,511.35
03/01/2017 000190 French Quarter Apts. 93.00 228,418.35
03/01/2017 000190 Michael Glowacki 640.00 227,778.35
03/01/2017 000190 David Grzesiek 370.00 227,408.35
03/01/2017 000190 Habitat for Humanity 33.00 227,375.35
03/01/2017 000190 Harbour Ridge Apts 1,343.00 226,032.35
03/01/2017 000190 Heartwood Enterprises 775.00 225,257.35
03/01/2017 000190 Louis Herman 24,00 225,233.35
03/01/2017 000190 Susan Herman 550.00 224,683.35
03/01/2017 000190 Hillview Terrace 547.00 224,136.35
03/01/2017 000190 Josh Hollister 411.00 223,725.35
03/01/2017 000190 HomeStretch 3,067.00 220,658.31. 6
03/01/2017 000190 Caroline Hupp 199.00 220,459.35




Date: 04/24/2017
Time: 12:33:50

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8

From: 03/01/2017 To: 03/31/2017

Page: 2

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
03/01/2017 000190 Joseph and Marion Fasel 358.00 220,101.35
03/01/2017 000190 Donna Kalchik 323.00 219,778.35
03/01/2017 000190 Lake Pointe Acquisitions LLC. 1,063.00 218,715.35
03/01/2017 000190 Sidney Lammers 372.00 218,343.35
03/01/2017 000190 Legendary Rentals, LLC 957.00 217,386.35
03/01/2017 000190 John J. Lewis 762.00 216,624.35
03/01/2017 000190 Don E. Lint 459.00 216,165.35
03/01/2017 000190 Juan Maldonado 314.00 215,851.35
03/01/2017 000190 Mathews Trust 255.00 215,596.35
03/01/2017 000190 McLain Management 29.00 215,5667.35
03/01/2017 000190 Oak Park Apts 1,798.00 213,769.35
03/01/2017 000190 Oak Terrace Apts 763.00 213,006.35
03/01/2017 000190 Gerald Oliver Revocable Trust 900.00 212,106.35
03/01/2017 000190 P Avium Associates, Inc. 506.00 211,600.35
03/01/2017 000190 Daniel G. Pohlman 1,463.00 210,137.35
03/01/2017 000190 Douglas L. Porter 438.00 209,699.35
03/01/2017 000130 Phillip Putney 733.00 208,966.35
03/01/2017 000190 Adele M. Reiter 995.00 207,971.35
03/01/2017 000190 Timothy Rice 493.00 207,478.35
03/01/2017 000190 Singkhan Sina Riddell 389.00 207,089.35
03/01/2017 000190 Robert F. Follett 837.00 206,252.35
03/01/2017 000190 Sabin Pond Apariments LLC 841.00 205,411.35
03/01/2017 000190 John Sarya 715.00 204,696.35
03/01/2017 000190 Eldon Schaub 388.00 204,308.35
03/01/2017 000190 Gerald Sieggreen 670.00 203,638.35
03/01/2017 000190 SILVER SHORES MHC 321.00 203,317.35
03/01/2017 000190 Douglas & Julia Slack 327.00 202,990.35
03/01/2017 000190 22955 Investments LLC 3,334.00 199,656.35
03/01/2017 000190 Carl Sumner 508.00 199,148.35
083/01/2017 000190 Traverse City Property Management 353.00 198,795.35
03/01/2017 000190 TCR Investments, LLC 1,020.00 197,775.35
03/01/2017 000190 Wendy Teagan 449.00 197,326.35
03/01/2017 000190 TOS Holdings, LLC 744.00 196,582.35
03/01/2017 000190 Tradewinds Terrace Apts 253.00 196,329.35
03/01/2017 000190 Village Glen Apartments 7,5633.00 188,796.35
03/01/2017 000190 Woda Boardman Lake LDHA.LP 2,974.00 185,822.35
03/01/2017 000190 Woodmere Ridge Apartments LDHA 5,027.00 180,795.35
03/01/2017 000190 Theodore V. Zachman 774.00 180,021.35
03/01/2017 000190 Ann Zenner 497.00 179,524.38. 7
03/01/2017 000190 Barb Zupin 1,177.00 178,347.35




Date: 04/24/2017 Traverse City Housing Commission
Time: 12:33:50 Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8
From: 03/01/2017 To: 03/31/2017

Page: 3

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
03/01/2017 000191 Bay Hill Apartments 750.00 177,697.35
03/01/2017 000191 TEAMCO PROPERTIES 1,559.00 176,038.35
03/01/2017 000191 Vlllage View Houslng LHDA LP 369.00 175,669.35
03/01/2017 022969 TEAMCO PROPERTIES 1,559.00 174,110.35
03/01/2017 022969 “*VOID** TEAMCO PROPERTIES ( 1,559.00) 175,669.35
03/01/2017 022970 Village View Housing LHDA LP 369.00 175,300.35
03/01/2017 022970 **VOID** Village View Housing LHDA ( 369.00) 175,669.35
03/02/2017 022971 Blarney Castle Oil Co. 62.30 175,607.05
03/02/2017 022972 Cherryland Electric Cooperative 198.70 175,408.35
03/02/2017 022973 City Of Traverse City 592.60 174,815.75
03/02/2017 022974 Cansumers Energy 34.00 174,781.75
03/02/2017 022975 DTE ENERGY 745.40 174,036.35
03/02/2017 022978 Holtons LP Gas Fife Lake 42.00 173,994.35
083/02/2017 022977 Village of Ellsworth 106.00 173,888.35
03/03/2017 000192 TOS Holdings, LLC 550.00 173,338.35
03/06/2017 ADJST ( 750.00) 174,088.35
03/10/2017 022978 Traverse City Housing Commission 24,438.83 149,649.52
03/15/2017 DEP 519.00 150,168.52
03/21/2017 DEP 894.00 151,062.52
03/27/2017 022979 Chase Bank 1,951.00 149,111.52
03/27/2017 022980 Traverse City Housing Commission 15,389.49 133,722.03
Total: 125,780.92 93,144.00

18



Date: 04/24/2017
Time: 12:33:14

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

Chemical Bank

From: 04/01/2017 To: 04/24/2017

Page: 1

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
04/03/2017 EFT HUD 5,580.00 44,840.08
04/03/2017 EFT HUD 13,452.00 58,292.08
04/03/2017 DEP 16,241.00 74,533.08
04/04/2017 EFT T Mobile 2,257.20 76,790.28
04/04/2017 DEP 11,941.05 88,731.33
04/05/2017 DEP 5,399.67 94,131.00
04/06/2017 DEP 2,851.00 96,982.00
04/10/2017 037095 PIC Consulting Company 875.00 96,107.00
04/11/2017 ADJST Kari Massa 1,205.18 94,901.82
04/11/2017 ADJST Alisa Kroupa 935,88 93,965.94
04/11/2017 ADJST Anthony Lentych 2,351.39 91,614.55
04/11/2017 ADJST Michelle Reardon 1,395.57 90,218.98
04/11/2017 ADJST Angela N. Szabo 781.87 89,437.11
04/11/2017 ADJST Joseph Battaglia 238.84 89,198.27
04/11/2017 ADJST Charles Edwards 866.07 88,332.20
04/11/2017 ADJST David Gourlay 1,026.12 87,306.08
04/11/2017 ADJST Benjamin Weston 51989 86,786.19
04/12/2017 EFT Principal Life Insurance Co. 637.54 86,148.65
04/12/2017 DEP 2,097.41 88,246.06
04/14/2017 EFT IRS 2,974.22 85,271.84
04/20/2017 EFT State of Michigan 856.64 84,415.20
04/20/2017 037098 Housing Authority Accounting 1,099.41 83,315.79
04/20/2017 037099 MailFinance 149.85 83,165.94
04/20/2017 037100 Twin Bay Glass Inc. 167.70 82,998.24
04/20/2017 037101 Northwest Lock, Inc. 6.00 82,992.24
04/20/2017 037102 Speedwrench, Inc. 1,064.18 81,928.06
04/20/2017 037103 Safety Net 650.79 81,277.27
04/20/2017 037104 David Gourlay 68.58 81,208.69
04/20/2017 037105 Spectrum Business 3,343.57 77,865.12
04/20/2017 037106 Charles Edwards 116.10 77,749.02
04/20/2017 037107 Spence Brothers 14,278.72 63,470.30
04/20/2017 037108 City Of Traverse City 157.83 63,312.47
04/20/2017 037109 McCardel Water Conditioning 18.50 63,293.97
04/20/2017 037110 AT&T 210.10 63,083.87
04/20/2017 037111 Grand Traverse County DPW 483.00 62,600.87
04/20/2017 037112 Traverse City Record Eagle 93.40 62,507.47
04/20/2017 037113 Elmer's 225.00 62,282.47
04/20/2017 037114 R.W. Popp Excavating, inc. 120.00 62,162.47
04/20/2017 037115 Great Lakes Business Systems, Inc. 128.00 62,034.419
04/20/2017 037116 Kendall Electric Inc 727.11 61,307.36




Date: U4/44/2017
Time: 12:33:15

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

Chemical Bank
From: 04/01/2017 To: 04/24/2017

Page: 2

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
04/20/2017 037117 AmRent 97.35 61,210.01
04/20/2017 037118 D & W Mechanical 147.15 61,062.86
04/20/2017 037118 Integrated Payroli Services, Inc. 108.90 60,953.96
04/20/2017 037120 Guardian Medical Monitoring 14.95 60,939.01
04/20/2017 037121 City of Traverse City, Treasurer's 426.84 60,512.17
04/20/2017 037122 John DeWeese 58.75 60,453.42
04/20/2017 037123 City of Traverse City 13,423.24 47,030.18
04/20/2017 037124 Nan McKay & Associates Inc 224.00 46,806.18
04/20/2017 037125 Roto-Rooter 557.50 46,248.68
04/20/2017 037126 Kuhn Rogers PLC 1,942.00 44,306.68
04/20/2017 037127 CynergyComm.net,Inc 9.16 44,297.52
04/20/2017 037128 Sondee, Racine & Doren, P.L.C. 64.00 44,233.52
04/20/2017 037129 USPS- Hasler 1,500.00 42,733.52
04/20/2017 037130 AT&T 229.53 42,503.99
04/20/2017 037131 Dolly's Best Inc. 1,800.00 40,703.99
04/20/2017 037132 Alliance Architects, Inc. 4,253.30 36,450.69
04/20/2017 037133 Aflac 119.28 36,331.41
04/20/2017 037134 Ace Welding & Machine Inc 25.00 36,308.41
04/20/2017 037135 South Cedar Chimney Sweep 1,020.00 35,286.41
04/20/2017 037136 Verizon Wireless 84.82 35,201.59 o
04/20/2017 037137 Traverse Outdoor 93.25 35,108.34
04/20/2017 037138 City Of Traverse City 70.79 35,037.55
04/20/2017 037139 DTE ENERGY 20.30 35,017.25
Total: 64,062.16 59,819.33

20



Date: 04/24/2017
Time: 12:33:32

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8

From: 04/01/2017 To: 04/24/2017

Page: 1

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
04/03/2017 EFT HUD 84,227.00 217,949.03
04/03/2017 EFT HUD 7,504.00 225,453.03
04/03/2017 ADJST PNC 76.95 225,376.08
04/03/2017 000193 Jeana Aiken 473.00 224,903.08
04/03/2017 000193 Dustin Ansorge 1,164.00 223,739.08
04/03/2017 000193 Ayers Investment Properties LLC 558.00 223,181.08
04/03/2017 000193 Brad Barnes 488.00 222,693.08
04/03/2017 000193 Bay Front Apartments 320.00 222,373.08
04/03/2017 000193 Bay Hill Housing LDHALP 3,904.00 218,469.08
04/03/2017 000193 Bay Hill Il Apartments 6,332.00 212,137.08
04/03/2017 000193 Christopher Becker 750.00 211,387.08
04/03/2017 000193 Bellaire Senior Apartments 631.00 210,756.08
04/03/2017 000193 Brookside Commons LDHA, LP 1,905.00 208,851.08
04/03/2017 000193 irma Jean Brownley 355.00 208,496.08
04/03/2017 000193 Rebecca Carmien 339.00 208,157.08
04/03/2017 000193 Carson Square 4,909.00 203,248.08
04/03/2017 000193 Central Lake Townhouses 401.00 202,847.08
04/03/2017 000123 Cherrywood Village Farms, Inc. 2,260.00 200,587.08
04/03/2017 000193 Douglas A. Chichester 600.00 199,987.08
04/03/2017 000193 Cycle-Paths LLC. 968.00 199,019.08
04/03/2017 000193 Jack V. Dean 422.00 198,697.08
04/03/2017 000193 Dmytro Cherkasov 1,053.00 197,544.08
04/03/2017 000193 Eden Brook LLC 447.00 197,097.08
04/03/2017 000193 Shirley Farrell 834.00 196,263.08
04/03/2017 000193 Rent Leelanau, LLC 693.00 195,570.08
04/03/2017 000193 Lisa Forbes 489.00 195,081.08
04/03/2017 000193 Dale E. French 102.00 194,979.08
04/03/2017 000193 French Quarter Apts. 93.00 194,886.08
04/03/2017 000193 Michael Glowacki 640.00 194,246.08
04/03/2017 000193 David Grzesiek 370.00 193,876.08
04/03/2017 000193 Habitat for Humanity 33.00 193,843.08
04/03/2017 000193 Harbour Ridge Apts 1,343.00 192,500.08
04/03/2017 000193 Heartwood Enterprises 775.00 191,725.08
04/03/2017 000193 Louis Herman 24.00 191,701.08
04/03/2017 000193 Hillview Terrace 547.00 191,154.08
04/03/2017 000193 Josh Hollister 411.00 190,743.08
04/03/2017 000193 HomeStretch 3,067.00 187,676.08
04/03/2017 000193 Caroline Hupp 199.00 187,477.08
04/03/2017 000193 Joseph and Marion Fasel 358,00 187,1 19.0821
04/03/2017 000193 Donna Kalchik 323.00 186,796.08




Date: U4/44/£401/7 Traverse City Housing Commission
Time: 12:33:33 Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8
From: 04/01/2017 To: 04/24/2017

Page: Z

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
04/03/2017 000193 Lake Pointe Acquisitions LLC. 323,00 186,473.08
04/03/2017 000193 Sidney Lammers 372.00 186,101.08
04/03/2017 000193 Legendary Rentals, LLC 325.00 185,776.08
04/03/2017 000193 John J. Lewis 762.00 185,014.08
04/03/2017 000193 Don E. Lint 459.00 184,555.08
04/03/2017 000193 Juan Maldonado 314.00 184,241.08
04/03/2017 000193 Mathews Trust 255,00 183,986.08
04/03/2017 000193 McLain Management 29.00 183,957.08
04/03/2017 000193 Oak Park Apts 1,798.00 182,159.08
04/03/2017 000193 Oak Terrace Apts 763.00 181,396.08
04/03/2017 000193 Gerald Oliver Revocable Trust 919.00 180,477.08
04/03/2017 000193 P Avium Assaociates, Inc. 506.00 179,971.08
04/03/2017 000193 Daniel G. Pohlman 1,463.00 178,508.08
04/03/2017 000193 Douglas L. Porter 438.00 178,070.08
04/03/2017 000193 Phillip Putney 733.00 177,337.08
04/03/2017 000193 Adele M. Reiter 934.00 176,403.08
04/03/2017 000193 Timothy Rice 493.00 175,910.08
04/03/2017 000193 Singkhan Sina Riddell 389.00 175,5621.08
04/03/2017 000193 Robert F. Follett 837.00 174,684.08
04/03/2017 000193 Sabin Pond Apartments LLC 800.00 173,884.08
04/03/2017 000193 John Sarya 600.00 173,284.08
04/03/2017 000193 Eldon Schaub 388.00 172,896.08
04/03/2017 000193 Gerald Sieggreen 693.00 172,203.08
04/03/2017 000193 SILVER SHORES MHC 321.00 171,882.08
04/03/2017 000193 Douglas & Julia Slack 327.00 171,555.08
04/03/2017 000193 22955 Investments LLC 3,334.00 168,221.08
04/03/2017 000193 Carl Sumner 508.00 167,713.08
04/03/2017 000193 Traverse City Property Management 353.00 167,360.08
04/03/2017 000193 TCR Investments, LLC 1,020.00 166,340.08
04/03/2017 000193 Wendy Teagan 449.00 165,891.08
04/03/2017 000193 TEAMCO PROPERTIES 653.00 165,238.08
04/03/2017 000193 TOS Holdings, LLC 744.00 164,494.08
04/03/2017 000193 Tradewinds Terrace Apts 253.00 164,241.08
04/03/2017 000193 Village Glen Apartments 7,674.00 156,567.08
04/03/2017 000193 Village View Housing LHDA LP 369.00 156,198.08
04/03/2017 000193 Woda Boardman Lake LDHA.LP 2,940.00 153,258.08
04/03/2017 000193 Woodmere Ridge Apartments LDHA 5,036.00 148,222.08
04/03/2017 000193 Theodore V. Zachman 774.00 147,448.08
04/03/2017 000193 Ann Zenner 497.00 146,951.087 5

04/03/2017 000193 Barb Zupin 1,176.00

145,775.08




Date: 04/24/2017 Traverse City Housing Commission Page: 3
Time: 12:33:33 Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8
From: 04/01/2017 To: 04/24/2017
Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
Total: 79,677.95 91,731.00

23



Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement

For the 1 Month and 9 Months Ended March 31, 2017

Operating Income
Rental Income
3110 - Dwelling Rental
3110.2 - Dwelling Rental-Proj. 2
3120 - Excess Utilities
3190 - Nondwelling Rental

Total Rental Income

Revenues - HUD PHA GRANTS
3401.2 - Operating Subsidy

Total HUD PHA GRANTS

Nonrental Income
3610 - Interest iIncome-Gen. Fund
3690 - Tenant Income
3690.1 - Non-Tenant Income
3690.2 - Tenant Income-Cable

3690.3 - Gain (Loss) of Disposal of Equip.

Total Nonrental Income

Total Operating Income

Operating Expenses
Routine Expense
Administration
4110 - Administrative Salaries
4120 - Compensated Absences
4130 - Legal Expense
4140 - Staff Training
4150 - Travel Expense
4170 - Accounting Fees
4171 - Auditing
4182 - Employee Benefits - Admin
4185 - Telephone
4190.1 - Publications
4190.2 - Membership Dues and Fees
4190.3 - Admin. Service Contracts
4190.4 - Office Supplies
4190.5 - Other Sundry Expense
4190.6 - Advertising

Total Administration

Tenant Services
4220 - Rec., Pub., & Other Services

4230 - Cable TV-Tenants
Total Tenant Services

1 Month Ended

9 Months Ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
29,998.00 $ 274,201.53 § 465,000 $ 190,798.47
5,393.00 49,004.83 0 (49,004.83)

357.52 1,456.52 1,000 (456.52)
7,069.05 63,519.15 51,500 (12,019.15)
42,817.57 $ 388,182.03 $ 517,500 $ 129,317.97
16,226.00 $ 193,603.00 $ 250,000 § 56,397.00
16,226.00 $ 193,603.00 $ 250,000 $ 56,397.00
22514 § 1,718.04 $ 2,700 § 981.96
199.00 4,875.75 5,000 124.25
1,040.75 12,329.34 28,000 16,670.66
2,410.00 22,122.76 26,080 3,957.24
0.00 300.00 0 (300.00)
3,874.89 § 41,345.89 § 61,780 § 20,434.11
6291846 $ 623,130.92 § 829,280 § 206,149.08
10,887.06 $ 98,728.30 § 139,140 $ 40,411.70
0.00 0.00 1,500 1,500.00
1,495.00 10,274.84 6,500 (3,774.84)
180.60 2,718.15 4,000 1,281.85
443.90 2,874.73 4,400 1,625.27
1,170.29 5,198.91 7,500 2,301.09
0.00 4,060.00 3,000 (1,060.00)
1,979.98 42,837.27 55,550 12,712.73
494.17 5,948.81 6,600 651.19
224.00 802.80 1,000 197.20
14.97 999.97 1,000 0.03
1,068.26 23,266.71 25,300 2,033.29
489.55 3,604.36 5,200 1,595.64
844.24 15,906.39 7,000 (8,906.39)
0.00 2,299.93 1,500 (799.93)
19,292.02 § 219,521.17 § 269,190 $ 49,668.83
1,760.44 § 6,607.92 $ 16,000 $ 8,392.08
3,163.59 27,677.12 37,460 9,782.88
4,914.03 $ 34285.04 § 52,460 § 18,174.96

24




Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 9 Months Ended March 31, 2017

1 Month Ended 9 Months Ended
March 31,2017 March 31. 2017 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
Utilities
4310 - Water $ 983.40 % 12,664.55 $ 16,500 § 3,835.45
4320 - Electricity 14,071.27 96,133.73 150,000 53,866.27
4330 - Gas 2,893.95 11,059.70 15,500 4,440.30
Total Utilities $ 17,948.62 §$ 119,857.98 $ 182,000 $ 62,142.02
Ordinary Maint. & Operations
4410 - Labor, Maintenance $ 738112 § 68,756.77 $ 81,130 $ 12,373.23
4420 - Materials 5,177.33 30,853.30 20,200 (10,653.30)
4430.02 - Heating & Cooling Contracts 581.00 5,674.65 5,000 (674.65)
4430.03 - Snow Removal Contracts 1,176.00 3,486.00 4,000 514.00
4430.04 - Elevator Maintenance Contracts 0.00 9,168.51 8,500 (668.51)
4430.05 - Landscape & Grounds Contracts 0.00 31,413.41 5,000 (26,413.41)
4430.06 - Unit Turnaround Contracts 2,264.00 17,684.14 10,000 (7,684.14)
4430.07 - Electrical Contracts 0.00 433.85 2,000 1,566.15
4430.08 - Plumbing Contacts 0.00 276.75 1,500 1,223.25
4430.09 - Extermination Contracts 540.00 2,515.00 3,500 985.00
4430.10 - Janitorial Contracts 0.00 1,800.00 3,000 1,200.00
4430.11 - Routine Maintenance Contracts 326.25 10,419.99 8,000 (2,419.99)
4430.12 - Misc. Contracts 108.85 9,5635.42 9,200 (335.42)
4431 - Garbage Removal 646.44 8,819.28 5,800 (3,019.28)
4433 - Employee Benefits - Maint. 998.19 24,966.96 38,770 13,803.04
Total Ordinary Maint. & Oper $ 19,199.18 § 225,804.03 § 205,600 $ (20,204.03)
General Expense
4510 - Insurance 3 2,386.35 §$ 21,5615.82 § 30,600 $ 9,084.18
4520 - Payment in Lieu of Taxes 1,780.00 16,020.00 23,000 6,980.00
4570 - Collection Losses (588.65) 7,267.01 0 (7,267.01)
4586 - Interest Expense-CFFP 0.00 0.00 32,000 32,000.00
4590 - Other General Expense 0.00 0.00 500 500.00
Total General Expense $ 3577.70 $ 44,802.83 § 86,100 §$ 41,297.17
Total Routine Expense $ 64,931.55 § 644,271.05 § 795350 § 151,078.95
Non-Routine Expense
Extraordinary Maintenance
4610.3 - Contract Costs $ 0.00 § 4,545.00 $ 10,000 $ 5,455.00
Total Extraordinary Maintenance 9 0.00 $ 4,545.00 $ 10,000 $ 5,455.00
Casualty Losses-Not Cap.
Total Casualty Losses $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0% 0.00
Total Non-Routine Expense $ 000 $ 4,545.00 $ 10,000 $ 5,455.00
Total Operating Expenses $ 64,931.55 § 648,816.05 $ 805,350 $ 156,533.95
Operating Income (Loss) $ (2,013.09) $ (25,685.13) $ 23,930 § 49,615.13
Depreciation Expense
4800 - Depreciation - Current Year $ 21695.94 $ 200,478.11 § 0 § (200,478.11)
Total Depreciation Expense $ 21,695.94 §$ 200,478.11 § 0% (200,478.11)
2

25




Traverse City Housing Commission

Surplus Credits & Charges
Total Surplus Credits & Charges

Capital Expenditures
7520 - Replacement of Equipment

7540 - Betterments and Additions
7590 - Operating Expenditures-Contra

Total Capital Expenditures

Other Financial ltems
Total Other Financial Items

HUD Net Income (Loss)
GAAP Net Income (Loss)

Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 9 Months Ended March 31, 2017

1 Month Ended

9 Months Ended

March 31, 2017 March 31. 2017 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER

$ 0.00 0.00 $ 0 $ 0.00
$ 335.00 16,310.06 $ 0 $ (16,310.06)
55,374.40 108,588.47 25,000 (83,588.47)
(55,709.40) (124,898.53) (25,000) 99,898.53

$ 0.00 0.00 $ 0 s 0.00
$ 0.00 0.00 $ 0 $ 0.00
$ (57,722.49) (150,583.66) $ (1,070) $  149,513.66
$ (23,709.03) (226,163.24) $ 23930 $  250,093.24

3

26




Traverse City Housing Commission
Housing Choice Voucher Program
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 9 Months Ended March 31, 2017

Housing Assistance Payments
4715.1 - HAP - Occupied Units

4715.3 - HAP - Non-Elderly Disabled
4715.4 - HAP - Utility Allowances
4715.5 - HAP - Fraud Recovery
4715.6 - HAP - Homeownership
4719 - HAP - FSS Escrow

4719.1 - FSS Forfeitures

Total HAP Payments

Depreciation Expense
Total Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expense

Surplus Credits & Charges
Total Surplus Credits & Charges

Capital Expenditures
Total Capital Expenditures

GAAP Net Income (Loss)
Memo:
Admin Operating Income/(Loss)

Analysis of Funding
A.C. Received: March 31, 2017
3410 - HAP Funding

A.C. Earned
4715.1 - HAP - Occupied Units
4715.3 - HAP - Non-Elderly Disabled
4715.4 - HAP - Utility Allowances
4715.5 - HAP - Fraud Recovery
4715.6 - HAP - Homeownership
4719 - HAP - FSS Escrow
4719.1 - FSS Forfeitures

Total Funding Required
Over/(Under) Funding

NRA as of: March 31, 2017
UNA as of: March 31, 2017

1 Month Ended 9 Months Ended
March 31. 2017 March 31, 2017 BUDGET

75,071.00 $ 677,123.00 $ 0 (677,123.00)
3,860.00 35,667.00 0 (35,667.00)
1,781.00 8,234.00 0 (8,234.00)

(165.00) (630.00) 0 630.00
1,060.00 8,326.00 0 (8,326.00)
1,851.00 14,600.55 0 (14,600.55)

0.00 (8,925.98) 0 8,925.98
83,558.00 $ 73439457 $ 0 (734,394.57)
0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0 0.00
88,699.95 $ 805,775.96 §$ 97,900 (707,875.96)
0.00 $ 0.00 § 0 0.00

0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0 0.00
3,196.05 $ 19,649.04 $ (97,900) (117,549.04)
2,362.05 $ 2,040.61 § (97,900) (99.940.61)

9 Months Ended
March 31, 2017
$ 751,323.00

677,123.00
35,667.00

8,234.00

(630.00)

8,326.00

14,600.55

(8,925.98)

$ 734,394.57

$ 16,928.43

$ 28,252.55
$ 128,532.31

27




Traverse City Housing Commission

Housing Choice Voucher Program

Income & Expense Statement

For the 1 Month and 9 Months Ended March 31, 2017

Operating Reserve Income
3390 - Fraud Recovery Income
3603 - Number of Unit Months
3604 - Unit Months - Contra

Total Operating Reserve Income

Revenues - HUD PHA GRANTS
3410 - HAP Funding

3411 - Admin Fee Funding
Total HUD PHA GRANTS

Income Offset HUD A.C.
Total Income Offset

Total Operating Income

Operating Expenses
Routine Expense

Administration
4110 - Administrative Salaries

4120 - Compensated Absences
4130 - Legal Expense

4140 - Staff Training

4150 - Travel Expense

4170 - Accounting Fees

4171 - Auditing

4182 - Employee Benefits - Admin
4185 - Telephone

4180 - Administrative Sundry
4190.1 - Publications

4190.2 - Membership Dues and Fees
4190.3 - Admin. Service Contracts
4190.4 - Office Supplies

4190.5 - Other Sundry Expense
4190.6 - Advertising

Total Administration

General Expense
Total General Expense

Total Routine Expense

1 Month Ended 9 Months Ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
$ 165.00 $ 680.00 $ 0 $ (680.00)
(162.00) (1,485.00) 0 1,485.00

162.00 1,485.00 0 (1,485.00)

$ 165.00 $ 680.00 §$ 0 % (680.00)
$ 84,227.00 $ 751,323.00 § 0 3 (751,323.00)
7,504.00 73,422.00 0 (73,422.00)

$ 91,731.00 % 824,745.00 $ 0 $ (824,745.00)
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

$ 91,896.00 $ 825,425.00 $ 0 § (825,425,00)
$ 2,604.63 $ 27,799.83 $ 41,800 $ 14,000.17
0.00 0.00 250 250.00

0.00 205.80 2,850 2,644.20

77.40 525.90 1,710 1,184.10

96.33 818.80 1,890 1,071.20

649.25 6,180.78 8,500 2,319.22

0.00 1,740.00 3,000 1,260.00

498.86 14,006.45 17,500 3,493.55

113.90 1,653.38 3,200 1,546.62

0.00 33.65 0 (33.65)

224.00 224.00 500 276.00

6.42 831.42 1,000 168.58

457.83 9,519.23 10,000 480.77

10.49 1,302.34 2,200 897.66

402.84 6,414.38 3,500 (2,914.38)

0.00 125.43 0 (125.43)

$ 514195 § 71,381.39 § 97,900 $ 26,518.61
$ 0.00 % 0.00 § 0 3 0.00
$ 5141.95 § 71,381.39 § 97,900 $ 26,518.61

28




Traverse City Housing Commission
Voucher FSS Program
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 9 Months Ended March 31, 2017

1 Month Ended 9 Months Ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
Operating Reserve Income
Total Operating Reserve Income $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0 % 0.00
Revenues - HUD PHA GRANTS
3412 - FSS Grant Revenue $ 5,580.00 $ 50,226.85 § 0§ (50,226.85)
Total HUD PHA GRANTS $ 5,580.00 $ 50,226.85 $ 0 3 (50,226.85)
Income Offset HUD A.C.
Total Income Offset 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Operating Income 3 5,580.00 § 50,226.85 $ 0 & (50,226.85)
Operating Expenses
Routine Expense
Administration
4110 - Administrative Salaries $ 4,173.06 $ 43,310.92 $ 56,980 §$ 13,669.08
4182 - Employece Bencfits - Admin 842.68 13,714.81 18,050 4,335.19
4190.1 - Publications 0.00 67.20 0 (67.20)
Total Administration $ 5,015.74 $ 57,09293 % 75,030 §$ 17,937.07
General Expense
Total General Expense $ 0.00 3 0.00 % 0% 0.00

Total Routine Expense $ 501574 $ 57,09293 $ 75,030 % 17,937.07




Traverse City Housing Commission

Housing Assistance Payments
Total HAP Payments

Depreciation Expense
Total Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expense

Surplus Credits & Charges
Total Surplus Credits & Charges

Capital Expenditures
Total Capital Expenditures

GAAP Net Income (Loss)

Voucher FSS Program
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 9 Months Ended March 31, 2017

1 Month Ended

9 Months Ended

March 31, 2017 March 31. 2017 BUDGET “OVER/UNDER
$ 0.00 0.00 0 0.00
$ 0.00 0.00 0 0.00
$ 5,015.74 57,092.93 75,030 17,937.07
$ 0.00 0.00 0 0.00
$ 0.00 0.00 0 0.00
$ 564.26 (6,866.08) (75,030) (68,163.92)

30




Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Resident Advisory Board Meeting: April 18, 2017

Executive Committee Meetings: April 20, 2017
Governance Committee Meeting: April 20, 2017

Review of Commission Committee Assignments / Organizational Chart

31



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission

Resident Advisory Board
April 18, 2017

A Meeting of the Traverse City Housing Commission Resident Advisory Board was called to order by
Executive Director Tony Lentych at Riverview Terrace — Third Floor Community Room, 150 Pine Street,

Traverse City at 8:05 AM.

| ROLL CALL
The following Commissioners were present: Michelle St. Amant.
Staff: Tony Lentych, Executive Director and Michelle Reardon, Deputy Director.
Residents: Jo Simerson, David Wagstaff, Ellen Corcoran, Priscilla Townsend, Paula Hunter, Lois
DeHart, Patty Szabo, Deb Scheer, Vivian Arnold, Kathleen Stocking, Jeff Turner, Armandina
Zamora, and Hunter Reed.

] APPROVAL OF AGENDA
The agenda was approved by consent of those in attendance.

i NEW BUSINESS
A. The 2017 PHA Plan was presented and discussed. There are no changes proposed to the

2017 budget from the previously adopted 5-year Plan.
The Debt Service was presented and discussed.
C. Adiscussion of past, current and future projects was held. The following projects were
mentioned for future consideration:
e Upgrades to the Riverview Terrace (RVT) Community Room including flooring, paint,
installation of cable television, cleaning of the room divider, etc.
e Upgrades to the RVT Laundry Room including new machines, change machine or swipe
system for payment.
¢ Upgrade and remodel of the Community Kitchen at Riverview Terrace.
e Seal the exterior of Riverview Terrace.
¢ Installation of additional security cameras on the 3™ floor of Riverview Terrace.
e Re-design of the RVT parking lot to include maintenance and design improvements.
New immediate entrance lobby furniture at Riverview Terrace.
New RVT hallway carpeting.
Professional painting of the RVT hallways.
Upgrade of the entrance camera for the RVT phone entry system.
e Window replacement at Riverview Terrace, window stripping in the meantime.
e New curtain in the TV Room at Riverview Terrace.

®

® o @

OTHER — Items were discussed that may or may not be a part of Capital Fund improvements
but are worth noting: inclusion of more partner agency programming for residents,
including a “Director’s Note” in the monthly RVT Gazette, a RVT resident reminder of safety

Page 1 of 2
32



protocols regarding allowing strangers to enter the building, and the use of floor runners in
the RVT entrance lobby during the winter to keep the floors dry and clean.
D. The 2018 Calendar for review of the PHA Plan Review was presented.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

ADJOURNMENT
Executive Director Lentych adjourned the meeting at 11:12 AM.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Reardon, Recording Secretary

Page 2 of 2

33



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission

Executive & Governance Committee
April 20, 2017

A monthly meeting of the Executive Committee of the Executive & Governance Committee of the
Traverse City Housing Commission was called to order by President Brian Haas at 4:00 p.m. at the offices
of Brian Haas.

ROLL CALL
The following Commissioners were present: Brian Haas and Kay Serratelli.

CORRESPONDENCE
Brian Haas introduced the items he received via email and phone conversations with commissioners that

should be included in the April meeting.

AGENDA
The following Agenda items were discussed:
A. Adraft Agenda for the April Commission regular meeting was discussed:

e There was a lengthy discussion on Commissioner Smit’s request to address the RTRC MOU. It
will be included with New Business items.

e There was also lengthy discussion on a request from staff to consider a payment in lieu of
health care benefits. This item will be discussed under the line item concerning the
employee manual. The Commission will decide if this is a good idea to investigate further or
not.

e The Ad Hoc Committee on Bullying and Harassment needs a new member. This will be
addressed on the agenda along with overall committee assignments.

e We are expecting to receive the new rates on our comprehensive insurance policies this
month and they will be in the packet. Paul Olsen has offered to attend the May meeting to
answer questions.

e The meeting will be held at the Governmental Center, Second Floor Committee Room.

B. Executive Director Review session was discussed and preparations are in place.

ADJOURNMENT
President Haas adjourned the meeting at 5:45 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Brian Haas &
Tony Lentych, Executive Director

Page 1of 1
34



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission

Governance Committee
April 20, 2017

A Meeting of the Traverse City Housing Commission Resident Advisory Board was called to order at
Riverview Terrace — Third Floor Community Room, 150 Pine Street, Traverse City at 10:03 AM.

| ROLL CALL
The following Commissioners were present: Kay Serratelli and Michelle St. Amant.
Staff: Tony Lentych, Executive Director and Michelle Reardon, Deputy Director.
Residents: Priscilla Townsend, Jeff Turner, Jane Ellen Bishoff, Samir Moubarak, Norma Loper,
and Marie Schaffer.

1] APPROVAL OF AGENDA & REVIEW OF MINUTES
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and the agenda was approved by consent

of those in attendance.

m UPDATES
A. Executive Director Lentych explained that the purpose of this committee is to advise the

Housing Commission on policies and procedures as they are developed and offer feedback.

B. The Policy Review Schedule was discussed. A Rent Collection Policy will be added to the
schedule and the Bylaws are in process for the April Meeting. The schedule will be updated
and included with the Commission Board packet.

v OLD BUSINESS

A. There has been no communication from the developer regarding the “Shared Drive” request
from the City. Executive Director Lentych requested feedback from the committee
regarding working with our Architect of Record to be proactive in the design and planning of
the future shared drive. The committee is supportive of this idea and recommends that the
Commission move forward with this activity.

B. Executive Director Lentych informed the committee that the TCHC Smoke Free Properties
Policy calendar for development and implementation was approved by the Commission at
their March 2017 meeting. The Commission supports the action of creating a policy to
comply with HUDs smoke free rule. Smoking cessation support programming will be offered
to residents beginning in the fall of 2017.

C. Executive Director Lentych updated the committee on the TCHC Human Resources &
Procedures Manual. During the review of the policy a question regarding the ability of the
Commission to offer a cash payment in lieu of medical benefits should an employee decide
to opt out of program coverage. There was not a consensus on a policy recommendation
and the committee defers to the Commission on this subject.

Page 1 of 2

35



Vi

NEW BUSINESS
A. The Schedule of Excess Utilities was reviewed. An amended schedule will be proposed to
the Commission to reflect the cost savings of the newer model machines that are energy

efficient.
B. The existing Safety & Evacuation Plan was presented to the committee and discussed.

ADJOURNMENT
The Committee Meeting was adjourned at 11:52 AM.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Reardon, Recording Secretary

Page 2 of 2

36



Aytoyany Buisnoy dignd v
uolssiwwo) SuisnoH Ay assaned)

o.po uoIsSpUWOo) Aq paliH
y243ua7 Auoy

1032341g dALNIIXT

>

(r09) Jupwy 1§ %9 1j210143S
(23x3) §j]1210443S 3 SDOYH
9JUBUJISADD) 13 BALNIOX]

SDDH 2 JUDWY 1§
yoeasjnQ g suoyedaunwwo)

SHWS 8 [20YIN
uejdwo) g Idueuly

syws Apuy JueWY °1S 3[|I3YdIN __ : I9eY2IIAl pieydry
_ _

410Y) IA ‘1||93e443S Ae) ““ Jiny) ‘seeyH uelg

(2119nd 3y1 1uasaiday 03 siauoissiuwwo) A1) ayl pup J0Abp ay1 Aq pajuioddy)

sJauoissiwwo) Jo pieog uoissiwwo) 3uisnoH Ayl asianes]

L4VH) TVNOILVZINVODYO JHOL

37



Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

STAFF & PROGRAM REPORTS

Executive Director’s Report for April 2017
Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report for April 2017

Resident Council Report: April 2017

38



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT: April 28, 2017

This report covers the work accomplished from March 24, 2017 until April 27, 2017. Please contact me
directly should you have any questions or wish to receive more information about any items highlighted

in this report.

Strategic Goal 1 | Expand affordable housing inventory and range of options.

Current Properties

1. Riverview Terrace: One (1) barrier free unit is open. That unit will be filled by a current resident
who needs that type of unit. We already have a person approved for the unit that will be open
after the move.

2. Orchardview: One unit is open and is being prepared for a current resident who will be moving
into a 4-bedroom unit. We already have a family approved for the 3-bedroom unit that will be

open after the move.

Potential Projects

1. Held a bid opening for our Orchardview Townhome Siding and Window Project. Only one bid
arrived. Worked with architect to review bid with “single bid” protocols and cleared decision
through HUD. Reviewed and signed contract with the bidder and obligated project funding
through HUD. Working on project schedule and finalizing materials.

2. Several meetings with our development team/consultants on our primary property. The
property received two bids causing us to move forward and compete to secure the funding.
Submitted two separate bids on the property. We were not successful in securing the property.

3. Property tour of several properties that can satisfy our financial partners. Worked with realtors
representing property owners to get all known background information.

4. Communications/Conversations/Meetings with MEDC consultant about the State’s interest in
our projects and to update him on our search for property.

5. Conversations with several other properties owners/agents including unlisted properties.

6. Several conversations and meetings with two area nonprofits about potential collaborations.
Inspected one property for potential conversion to housing. And met with another nonprofit
about re-opening another property.

Page 1of 4

39



Conversations with the owner/developers of the neighboring property on Pine Street for project
updates only — nothing on shared drive.

Discussions with Alliance Architects on next projects and engineering services.

Meeting with another CDFI Manager about pre-development funding and potential private
equity placement.

Strategic Goal 2

Create opportunities for residents to improve quality of life and achieve
individual successes.

Attended a meeting of the Resident Advisory Board and discussed the annual update to the five-
year plan. Was also able to hear several suggestions for improving our properties that may not
require capital fund monies or HUD funding.

Held several meetings with Riverview Terrace Residents regarding general issues in our
community and properties. Assisted By-Laws committee as they progressed through their
review process.

Several meetings with the leadership of the Riverview Terrace Resident Council about building-
wide issues.

Strategic Goal 3 | Foster an environment of innovation and excellence.

Strategic Planning

Updated Organizational Chart for Annual Report and continued to track items in 2017 Work
Plan. Our Strategic Plan was helpful in preparing our Annual Report.

Financial

1. The reviewed and prepared the monthly financial report. Everything is still on target we are at

the 75% mark with one quarter to go. Also began work on the budget for Fiscal Year 2018
(including a review of all employee benefits).

2. Met with our insurance representative about upcoming renewals.

Staff Management

1. Meeting with City HR staff to continue work on our Employee Manual.

Page 2 of 4

40



2. Working to finish all Job Descriptions based on new organization chart and reassignment of
duties.

Office IT

1. Planning to increase the presence of cameras at Riverview Terrace.

TCHC

1. Attended one TCHC regular meeting (March) and prepared for another (April). Also prepared
for and attended two (2) special meetings in April.

2. Coordinated one Executive Committee meeting and one prepared for one Governance
Committee. Prepared for and attended a Resident Advisory Board Meeting.

3. Meetings with Commissioner Michelle St. Amant and Brian Haas on several items.

Strategic Goal 4 | Increase community engagement and understanding of our work.

1. Prepared and delivered an Annual Report to the City of Traverse City. The report generated
some media interest which in turn, generated multiple calls from realtors, individuals, and
agencies that wanted to offer assistance or properties. Next year, | will remember to set aside
some time for these kinds of calls and inquiries before accepting the invitation to present to the

City Commission.

2. Housing Solution Network: Chaired the monthly meeting and conducted another meeting with
Sarah Lucas of Networks Northwest about the NW MI Rural Housing Partnership. Sarah and |
then presented to Rotary Charities staff and board members (Transformation Fund Task Force)
about this concept. Attended a meeting on the potential of crowdfunding as a mechanism to

fund affordable housing.

3. Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis: Participated in two training calls to learn the new
web-based system for meeting information.

4. Community Economic Development Association of Michigan (CEDAM): Participated in a Board
of Directors Meeting via conference call.

5. Media: Article on Annual Report on the Ticker. Radio interviews on the Crystal Frost Show and
the Ron Jolly Show. Served as background for a follow-up story in the Record Eagle about
Riverview Terrace residents and their food stamps cuts/refunds.

6. Several conversations with City Commissioners on various topics that effect the Housing

Commission. Attended two (2) City Commission meetings.

Page 30of 4
41



7. Conversations with the City of Manistee City Manager’s office on PILOTs and their use as a
development tool.

8. Meeting with City Clerk.

9. Asked to serve on Leelanau County government’s Affordable Housing advisory group.

Miscellaneous | Other information — plus personal items.

1. Several meetings and phone calls with TCHC attorney, Ward Kuhn on a variety of issues.
Attended meeting between Commissioners Smits and Haas and attorneys Dan White and Ward
Kuhn. Prepared for, and attended, the Deposition of the Mayor.

2. Holiday/Vacation/Personal Time (O days).

Page 4 of 4

42



FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY (FSS) PROGRAM REPORT

April 28, 2017

Current SEMAP Status

SEMAP reporting places the program in the “High Performer” category.

Number of Number of % of Families Number of Families with % of Families with
Mandatory Slots Families Enrolled Enrolled Progress Reports & Progress Reports &
Escrow Balances Escrow Balances
23 24 104% 12 57%

Program Manager Update

| will be participating in a week-long FSS Training Program in May. Once | return, | will
be focusing on meeting one on one with all of our clients. Additionally, | am working on
developing promotional materials to distribute to all qualifying TCHC clients.

We have started to reassemble our FSS Program Coordinating Committee (PCC) and
have reached out to all of our past members. We also met with a recently active

member to hear her feedback on the perceptions and functions of the committee. We
plan to have a PCC meeting during the month of May.

We continue to ensure that our reporting in HDS and VMS match.
Status of Participants
A new participant began the FSS program on April 18, 2017. We had one client

surrender her HCV and therefore forfeited her escrow balance of $1,862.02. All current
participants are showing progress and continuously working to meet their goals.

FSS Grant

Nothing to update.

Page 1of 1
43



Page | APR 25 2017

Traverse City
Housing Commission

TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

MONTHLY REPORT FROM: RIVERVIEW RESIDENTIAL COUNCIL FOR APRIL 2017

SOCIAL: * MONTHLY ACTIVITIES AS USUAL WITH THE ADDITION OF THE EASTER DINNER

* SPOKE WITH TONY ABOUT DRESSING UP T HE COMMUNITY ROOM TO MAKE THE

AREA MORE INVITING TO THE RESIDENTS
* BIRTHDAY BASH SATURDAY 4/29

BUSINESS;

e MONTHLY COUNCIL MEETING RTRC HELD 4/21

e LOW ATTENDANCE NO QORUM

e FIRST READING OF THE BY-LAWS REVISIONS

e FINAL READING IN MAY AND ENTER FOR THE RECORD IN JUNE 2017
e FILLED VACANT POSITION OF TREASURER Hunter Reed (volunteer)

e SPOKE WITH JOE DAVIS (HUD) CONCERNING BOARD RESIDENT COUNCIL MEMBER

AND THE STRUCTURS OF RAB.

e MET WITH RAB TO DISCUSS ONE YEAR AND FIVE YEAR PLANS FOR HUD AND
GUIDELINE FOR RESIDENTS OF THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLANS.

e MET WITH RESIDENT BOARD MEMBER AND WITH TONY REGARDING THE
POSITION TO PROMOTE COOPERATION AT RIVERVIEW TERRACE, RESULTS
NEGATIVE.

e MEETINGS WITH TONY TO DISCUSS ISSUES AND PLANS

44



Page 2

OUTSIDE COMMUNICATIONS;
*JORDAN TRAVIS , RECORD EAGLE REGARDING FOOD STAMP STATUS
* ERIC, COMMUNICATIONS DIRECTOR, BATA REGARDING BALLOT ISSUE

* MARY GROVER, LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS REGARDING BY-LAWS.

PRISCILLA TOWNSEND, RTRC PRESIDENT

45



RIVERVIEW TERRACE RESIDENT COUNCIL

AGENDA

Friday April 21, 2017
1:00 PM Community Room

Welcome and Call to order T I o

Pledge of allegiance T 3/6 Wiihet 1~ +

Roll Call B i
e,

OFFICERS REPORTS

Secretary, Lois DeHart Reading and approval of minutes for March 2017
President, Priscilla Townsend

Vice President, Jeff Turner

Treasurer, Hunter Reed

Social Director Patty Szabo

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS
Welcome Committee  Chairman Priscilla Townsend
Sunshine Committee Chairman Lois DeHart
Birthday Committee Chairman Patty Szabo

Food Committee Chairman

Activity Chairman

ADHOC COMMITTEE REPORTS R
Ellen Corcorn 305 Construction and Prop 3 Progress \* W \'\\L’p‘ﬂ%

OLD BUSINESS
Reading of By-Laws Revisions for the Riverview Terrace Residential Council
Norma Loper Chairperson

RESIDENT COMMENTS

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

MOTION TO ADJOURN

COFFEE AND COOKIES  Thanks Lois DeHart

46



Riverview Terrace Resident Council
Minutes of Meeting — March 17, 2017

Welcome & Call to order by Priscilla Townsend, President

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call: President, Priscilla Townsend; Vice president, Jeff Turner; Secretary, Lois DeHart; introduction
of new Social Coordinator, Patty Szabo; no Treasurer currently, previously resigned. Hunter Reed
volunteered for the Treasurer position and will begin duties as soon as possible.

Reading & approval of minutes: motion to accept by Norma Loper, 2" by Deb Scheer.

Treasurer’s report is included in agenda package.

Social Coordinator report: on success of recent breakfast and upcoming Birthday Bash.

TN

Standing Committee Reports: AT SR

Welcome Committee: Chairman Priscilla Townsen@— Z)new residents

Sunshine Committee: Chairman, Lois DeHart — no caﬁ@n}@is month-Please report to her if anyone
is sick or in hospital.

Birthday Committee: Chairman, Patty Szabo

Food Committee: no report from Jane Bishoff

Activity Committee: no report from Jacob Warren

AdHoc Committee (River West report): Ellen Corcoran regarding 305 Construction and Proposal 3
progress which is still being implemented by the City. Lawsuit is in process regarding the project near
the Park Place.

AdHoc Committee (By-laws revision): Norma Loper — still in process. All are welcome to attend
meetings on Mondays at 3 PM in Community Room.

Old Business: none
New Business: Info flyers available for free movies at State Theatre during spring break.

Resident Comments/Group Discussion: Marie stated that Section 8 is a different program than
Riverview Terrace. Meetings can be watched on computer at Up North Media. Laundry room washers
& dryers are too small for bedding; discussion regarding new appliances. Paula suggested an article in
the monthly Gazette to encourage more attendance at council meetings. Marie suggested that
subjects for discussion should be included. Regarding the TV common area, certain people tend to
control the remote and TV. Need to get cable hooked up to the large TV near the kitchen. Priscilla will
send a letter to TCHC stating the need for this cable connection and 3 internet connections in order to
“modernize” this area. Requesting that this be completed in 90 days.

Motion to Adjourn: by Norma Loper, 2" by Marie

Next meeting: Friday, April 21 at 1:00 PM in the Community Roo

47



RIVERVIEW RESIDENT COUNCIL

RESIDENT FUNDS
Beginning Balance

INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

Expenses

Pantry

Supplies

Training

Phone
Equipment

Fees

Food
Entertainment
Ink

Gas

TOTAL EXPENSES
EOM

Per Bank

Petty Cash $100.00

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

MARCH 2017

$304.46

73.51
11.65

377.97

45.56

28.49

76.93

150.98
226.99

Laundry $50.00

HUD FUNDS

$877.29

877.29

70.65

39.99
15.00
11.65

37.61

20.00

194.90

682.39 $909.38
909.38

48



LAKE MICHIGAN CREDIT UNION

Your Statement Of Accounts

LAKE MICHIGAN CREDIT UNION e P.O. Box 2848 ¢ Grand Rapids, MI 49501-2848

. - "G, Box 28
— S e M1 255017008 03/01/2017-03/31/2017
RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED Your Account Number
Xxxxxx1794
Page 1
Our new online banking portal is
wﬁr',t scheduled to launch this summer, and
23570: 1 AV 0-373 LebbL0-21R701-34k your correct email address and phone
IIllrl|”llll'll"lllllllhl'""lIIIIllI"lI"ulllhlllll"”“ number will be needed to access it. To
ensure uninterrupted access, please make
: § RIVERVIEW TERRACE RESIDENT COUNCIL sure your email address and phone number
= 150 PINE ST # MB1 are correct by logging into online
3‘-=_~ TRAVERSE CITY MI 49684-2478 banking and updating your information.
E Thank you for your cooperation!
e Summary-Share Accounts
= Beginning Ending
T ID# Type Balance Balance
00 MEMBER SAVINGS $5.00 $5.00
01 FREE CHECKING $1,176.75 $904.38
Total $909.38
MEMBER SAVINGS Share Account ID 00
Trans Eff Date Transaction Withdrawal Deposit Balance
Mar 01 Beginning Balance $5.00
Mar 31 Ending Balance $5.00
FREE CHECKING Share Account ID 01
Total Deposits $73.51
Total Withdrawals $345.88
Trans EffDate Transaction Withdrawal Deposit Balance
Mar 01 Beginning Balance ,_ $1,176.75
Mar02 Mar02 Withdrawal POS #121944 ($62.53) .\/C%C &reer $1,114.22
NWS STAPLES 03 2632 CROSSING CIRC TRAVERSE
CITY MI . ) / _
Mar 03 Mar03 Withdrawal POS #620110 ($21.56) .5 w T T 1Y gy ,092.66
WAL Wal-Mart S 2338 WAL-SAMS TRAVERSE CITY
H a0y Comm don
MarQ04 Mar04 Withdrawal Debit Card Business Debit ($24.00) G $1,068.66
DOLLAR TREE TRAVERSE CITY MI 03/03/2017 J
Mar 05 Mar05 Withdrawal Debit Card Business Debit ($5.75) v7 { sy $1,062.91
ALDI 67013 TRAVERSE CITY M! 03/03/2017 ) )
Mar 07 Mar07 Withdrawal POS #019340 ($30.31) 1 : 5’. . $1,032.60
. GES STORE #0901 1781 Barlow St Traverse A {praskeli 7
City M1 o
Mar 07 Mar07 Withdrawal POS #023208 : (40.87) S T )Dmf’f $991.73
WM SUPERCENTER Wal-Mart Super Cen TRAVERS
CITY Mi , q -
Mar 07 Mar07 Withdrawal Debit Card Business Debit ($11.65) Wl $980.08
AmazonPrime Membership amzn.com/prme WA 03/07/2017 o
Mar 16 Mar 16  Withdrawal Debit Card Business Debit ($10.59) + ~ K $969.49
HP *INSTANT INK 855-785-2777 CA 03/15/2017 .
Mar 16 Mar 16 Withdrawal Debit Card Business Debit ($39.99) f1bw~" $929.50
CHARTER COMM 888-438-2427 MO 03/16/2017
Mar 16 Mar 16 Withdrawal POS #060361 ($6.00) v $923.50
DOLLAR TREE 2550 CROSSING CIR TRAVERSE .
CITY Mi )
Mar18 Mar18 Deposit $63.00~  $986.50
Mar 18 Mar18 Deposit $1051 / ~ $997.01
Mar 18 Mar 18  Draft 001138 Tracer 0000000000 ($92.63) $904.38
Mar 31 Ending Balance $904.38
Ja D/T [

re
7

/

/7

61



»Ar
VAT

RIVERVIEW TERRACE RESIDENT COUNCIL
BY-LAWS REVISION [PRESENTED 04-21-2017]

Article I — Name
The name of the council shall be the Riverview Terrace Resident Council, hereafter
referred to as RTRC.

Article II - Purpose
Section 1.
The purpose of the RTRC is to:
* Give residents greater participation in affairs within their community.
e Promote friendship and understanding among residents.
e Provide and receive necessary information for the benefit of all residents.

Article III - Membership
Every tenant of Riverview Terrace is a voting member of the RTRC.

Article IV — Officers and their Duties
Section 1. - Officers
The elected officers of the RTRC shall be President (chair), Vice President, Secretary,
Treasurer and Social Director, to be elected by maj ority vote of members in accord-
ance with the Nomination & Election procedure as outlined in Article VII of these By-
Laws.

Section 2. - Duties
President
* Preside at all regular, special and officer meetings of the RTRC in
compliance with Robert’s Rules of Order.
* Make ad-hoc committee appohﬁi;ents as necessary with approval of
membership and/or officers.
e Sign checks along with the treasurer for payment of proper debts and
obligations of the RTRC as authorized by the membership or officers.
* Act as spokesperson for the RTRC with approval of membership and/or
officers. i

Vice President
* Temporarily perform the duties of the president when requested to do so by
the president, or in the temporary absence or incapacity of the president to
act.
e In case of resignation, death or removal of the president, the vice president
shall accede to the office of president for the remainder of that term,
assuming all powers, authority and responsibility of the presidency.

Page 1 — Proposed By-laws revision presented 4/21/17 @RTRC meeting
50



Secretary
¢ Take minutes at regular and special RTRC meetings and provide copy of

same at the following meeting.
Have care of all records of the RTRC which shall be kept in the RTRC office.
e Perform those duties usually and normally incidental to the office of

secretary.

Treasurer
e Have the care of all funds of the RTRC and shall deposit same in the bank

selected by the council,

 Sign all orders and checks along with the president for the payment of
proper debts and obligations of the RTRC as-authorized by the membership
or officers. S

® Keep regular books of accounts showing receipts and expenditures and
provide a summary of same to the RTRC members at regular meetings.

* Keep and preserve billing invoices, receipts and other documentation for
expenditures. e

e Not disburse any funds without proper documentation.

Social Director
* Create budgets and plans for standing committees and other committees as
created and deemed necessary. -
¢ Carry out the planning and facilitating activities for the enjoyment of the
RTRC membership as approved and report on these activities at the monthly
meetings. '

7 Article V - Committees
Standing Committees: Committees shall be formed as deemed necessary by the
Social Director with approval of membership and/or officers.

Ad Hoc Committees: Created by RTRC for a single purpose.

Article VI - Meetings
Section 1.
A general meeting of the RTRC shall be held on the third Friday of each month at
1:00 P.M. in the 3 floor Community Room. The President, with the consent of the
officers may cancel or change the time and/or date of such meetings. The agenda
will be posted at least 2 days prior on the 2=d floor information board.

Section 2.

Special meetings may be held at the call of the President or upon the written request
of ten (10) members. At least 2 days’ notice shall be posted to the RTRC members
regarding the date, time and place of any special meeting.

Page 2 — Proposed By-laws revision presented 4/21/17 @RTRC meeting

51



Section 3.
For all regular and special meetings:

e The quorum for all meetings of the RTRC, regular and special, shall consist
of a majority of those members present, except that the majority must
number a minimum of sixteen (16) members that includes at least three (3)
of the RTRC elected officers.

e Except that a meeting including the removal of an elected officer on the
agenda, the minimum number shall be twenty-five (25), including at least
three (3) elected officers other than the one or ones who are the subject of
the removal.

e A simple majority of the RTRC members present and voting is required for
the adoption of a motion or other business properly placed before the RTRC
membership, with the exception of a recall vote which requires a two-thirds
(2/3) vote in favor. R e

e At any meeting where a quorum is not present, those in attendance may
discuss matters of concern but shall not take any action on such matters.
If enough additional members should arrive during such discussion to
provide the quorum, then the formal meeting may proceed.

Article VII - Nomination & Election of Officers
Section 1. - Process s

e Election of officers shall be held every 2 years beginning in 2017.

* Term of office shall be 2 years beginning with installation and ending when
the next officer is installed to that position, which must be completed by
January 1st of the upcoming year.

* Nominations shall be taken prior to election with written acceptance of the
nominee. :

* Primary ballots shall be published at least 30 days prior if there are multiple
candidates for an office. The top 2 candidates shall proceed to the general
election for the final vote. An uncontested candidate shall be deemed elected
to the office sought. =

e General election ballots shall be published at least 30 days prior to the
selected date. ' 1

e A neutral outside party shall oversee the election process.

Section 2. — Term Limits

No elected officer shall hold more than one elective office at a time, and no officer
shall serve more than two (2) consecutive terms in the same office. For the purposes
of this Article, a partial term or appointed term shall not be considered a full term,
and such officer shall be eligible to seek a full term. This provision shall not prevent a
person from accepting appointment to an office after having served two (2) terms in
some other office.

Section 3. - Vacancy of Office

If for any reason an elected office is vacated, the current officers shall fill the vacancy
by appointment, except the office of President which shall be filled by the Vice
President.

Page 3 — Proposed By-laws revision presented 4/21/17 @RTRC meeting
N 52



Section 4. - Removal of Officer
Any officer may be removed from office for just cause. Removal shall be by a petition

signed by at least twenty-five (25) members and presented at a regular meeting of the
RTRC, which shall have been duly publicized and at which a quorum is present.
Cause shall be, but not limited to, misconduct in office or failure to fulfill the duties
of the office. The petition shall state the specific cause and shall be corroborated by
fact. The recall matter shall be voted on at that meeting, except if a quorum is not
present, the matter shall be postponed to the next regularly-scheduled meeting of the
RTRC. If circumstances other than a lack of a quorum seem to justify a
postponement, such action shall require a two-thirds (2/3) vote in favor by the
members present. No more than one postponement is permitted. If the matter is not
then resolved, it will die for lack of action.

Article VIII. - Amendments to By-Laws

¢ Proposed amendments to these By-Laws shall be submitted in writing at a
general or special meeting of the RTRC and also published to the RTRC
membership in a timely manner. -

e The proposed amendment(s) shall be voted on at the next general or special
meeting after its presentation. :

e A two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of those members present and voting is
necessary to adopt the amendment.

Article IX - Indemniﬁcatioh- L,

Except to the extent prohibited by law, the volunteers for Riverview Terrace Resident
Council shall not be personally liable to the Riverview Terrace Resident Council
(hereafter referred to as the Corporation) for monetary damages for breach of
fiduciary duty. The Corporation assumes all Liability to any person other than the
Corporation for all acts or omissions of an officer occurring on or after date

- Any repeal or amendment to this Article shall not adversely affect any right
or protection of an officer (as provided in this Article) against any claim which is
made or which accrues prior to the date of such repeals or amendments.

Approval of Amendment(s) to these By-Laws

The following dates indicate when approval was given to these By-Laws and any
subsequent amendments thereto:

-~
Approval of By-Laws given on the day of » 20 R_Eﬁiiﬁ;ﬁ_y@
20 ( APR 2 5 2017

Traverse City
Housing Commission

Approval of Amendment #1 on the day of

Page 4 — Proposed By-laws revision presented 4/21/17 @RTRC meeting
53



Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

OLD BUSINESS

2017 Consolidated Budget: Review

TCHC Policy Review Schedule: Update
TCHC Human Resources Policy & Procedures Manual: Update & Discussion

TCHC Smoke Free Policy: Resolution

54



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE BUDGET WORKSHEET

FY 2016 FY 2017 MARCH 2017 FY 2017 % OF
ACTUAL* BUDGET ACTUAL* ACTUAL* BUDGET
OPERATING INCOME
Property Rents S 431,741.66 S 465,000.00 S 35,391.00 S 323,206.36 69.51%
Investment Interest 3,195.44 2,700.00 225.14 1,718.04 63.63%
Program income: HCV 1,091,389.00 1,005,000.00 91,896.00 825,312.50 82.12%
Program Income: FSS 66,688.65 66,600.00 5,580.00 50,226.85 75.42%
Earned Income 134,075.71 110,584.00 11,076.32 104,668.47 94.65%
HUD Property Subsidy 263,918.00 250,000.00 16,226.00 193,603.00 77.44%
CFP / Draw on Surplus 182,486.66 199,000.00 - - 0.00%
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME S 2,173,495.12 S 2,098,884.00 S 160,394.46 S 1,498,735.22 71.41%
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries S 192,072.51 S 238,780.00 S 17,664.75 S 169,839.05 71.13%
Benefits 71,191.54 101,818.30 3,321.52 71,015.98 69.75%
Compensated Absences 5,126.29 (1,500.00) - - 0.00%
Legal 5,614.12 9,500.00 1,495.00 10,604.24 111.62%
Travel / Staff Training 10,045.68 12,000.00 798.23 7,586.83 63.22%
Accounting / Auditing 20,495.42 22,000.00 1,819.54 17,179.69 78.09%
General Office Expenses 82,892.87 68,000.00 4,350.67 72,876.40 107.17%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES S 387,438.43 S 450,598.30 S 29,449.71 S 349,102.19 77.48%
TENANT PROGRAMS & SERVICES
Recreation, Programs, and Other S 9,961.31 S 8,575.00 S 1,750.44 S 6,607.92 77.06%
Cable Television 35,065.00 37,460.00 3,163.59 27,677.11 73.88%
HAP 948,943.11 965,400.00 83,558.00 734,407.07 76.07%
TOTAL TENANT PROGS / SERVICES S 993,969.42 S 1,011,435.00 S 88.472.03 S 768.692.10 76.00%
UTILITIES
Water S 16,413.25 S 16,500.00 S 983.40 S 12,664.55 76.75%
Electricity 125,464.02 150,000.00 14,071.27 96,133.73 64.09%
Gas 10,035.02 15,500.00 2,893.95 11,059.70 71.35%
TOTAL UTILITIES S 151,912.29 S 182,000.00 S 17,948.62 5 119,857.98 65.86%
MAINTENANCE / BUILDING OPERATION
Labor S 77,347.71 S 85,342.00 S 7,381.12 S 68,756.77 80.57%
Maintenance Benefits 33,937.30 48,093.00 998.19 24,966.96 51.91%
Materials 25,160.53 20,200.00 5,177.33 30,853.30 152.74%
Contract / CFP Costs 304,677.97 180,000.00 5,642.54 101,227.00 56.24%
TOTAL ORDINARY MAINTENANCE S 441,123.51 S 333,635.00 S 19,199.18 S 225,804.03 67.68%
GENERAL EXPENSE
Insurance S 28,352.38 S 30,600.00 S 2,386.35 S 21,515.82 70.31%
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 24,914.86 23,000.00 1,780.00 16,020.00 69.65%
Collection Losses 4,438.91 - (588.65) 7,267.01 0.00%
interest Expense / Other 34,625.21 32,000.00 - - 0.00%
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSE S 92,331.36 S 85,600.00 S 3,577.70 S 44,802.83 52.34%
EXTRACRDINARY / CASUALTY 6,936.36 S 10,000.00 S - S 4,545.00 45.45%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 2,073,711.37 S 2,073,268.30 S 158,647.24 S 1,512,804.13 72.97%
NET OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) S 99,783.75 S 25,615.70 S 1,747.22 S (14,068.91)
PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS/EQUIP* S (32,087.93) S {25,000.00) S (55,709.40) S (69,189.13)
RESIDUAL RECEIPTS (DEFICIT)* S 67,695.82 S 615.70 S (53,962.18) S (83,258.04)

* Accountant Reviewed

55

Current as of 4/24/2017



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE BUDGET WORKSHEET

OPERATING INCOME
Property Rents
Investment Interest
Program Income: HCV
Program Income: FSS
Earned Income
HUD Property Subsidy
CFP / Draw on Subsidy

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Benefits
Compensated Absences*
Legal
Travel / Staff Training
Accounting / Auditing
General Office Expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

TENANT PROGRAMS & SERVICES
Recreation and Other

Cable Television
HAP
TOTAL TENANT PROGS / SERVICES

UTILITIES
Water
Electricity
Gas

TOTAL UTILITIES

MAINTENANCE / BUILDING OPERATION

Explanation / Description

Labor
Maintenance Benefits
Materials
Contract / CFP Costs
TOTAL ORDINARY MAINTENANCE

GENERAL EXPENSE
Insurance
Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Collection Losses
Interest Expense / Other
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSE

EXTRAORDINARY / CASUALTY*

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS/EQUIP*

RESIDUAL RECEIPTS (DEFICIT)*

* Accountant Reviewed

A total of collected rents from Riverview Terrace and Orchardview properties.

A total of interest amounts earned.

Housing Choice Voucher program dollars earned.

ROSS funding designated for Resident Seif Sufficiency Program.

A total of non-program dollars earned by TCHC.

HUD dollars received to assist with rent deficits.

A total of Capital Fund Program dollars received plus what is drawn down from Checking Surplus
A total of operating income amounts.

Includes all salaries for Executive Director, Associate Director, Program Manager, Support Staff.
Includes all benefits for Executive Director, Associate Director, Program Manager, Support Staff.
Year-end diffences between annual leave amounts owed to employees.

Includes ail legal fees for operational issues as well as commission governance issues.

Includes all conference, continuing education, and training fees plus travel expenses for all staff.
A total of all third party, contract accounting and auditing expenses.

A total of all office expenses including telephone charges, office equipment and supplies, etc.

A total of all operating expenses across all program activities.

Resident programming and acitivities associated with current tenants.

Fees paid to Charter Communications to provide cable television to residents.
Housing Assistance Payments to landlords in the five county area.

A total of all tenant progamming and services.

Fees paid to Traverse City Light & Power for water and sewer.
Fees paid to Traverse City Light & Power for efectricity.

Fees paid to DTE for gas utlity.

A total of all utility expenditures.

Includes all salaries and wages for maintenance team {2.5 persons)

Includes all benefits for maintenance team (2.5 persons}

A total of all purchases related to upkeep and maintenance of properties owned by TCHC.

A total of all contract maintenance and upkeep costs by third party suppliers on properties owned by TCHC.
A total of all ordinary maintenance and building operation expenditures.

A total of all insurance monies paid by TCHC related to all operations.

Amount of property taxes paid to the City of Traverse City - adjusted by PILOT ordinance.
A total amount of losses from rents when residents vacate units owing monies.

Misc.

A total of all general expense expenditures.

A total of unexpected and unbudgeted items pius expenses reimbursed from insurance proceeds.

A grand total of all expenses.

This amount reflects total income over total expenses.

A total of all property and equipment purchased above $1,500 capitalization threshhold - plus all appliances.

This category utilizes prior year(s) receipts of funding.
Final amounts to be determined by accountants.

Internal Document - Current as of 4/24/2017



TCHC MONTHLY CASH POSITION REPORT

END OF MARCH 2017

PUBLIC HOUSING

Chemical Bank
4Front Credit Union
TC State Bank

TC State Bank

First Merit Bank

TC State Bank
Chemical Bank
Chemical Bank
Chemical Bank

First Merit Bank
4Front Credit Union
Chemical Bank

SUB TOTAL

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER

PNC
Chase Bank

SUB TOTAL

OTHER

HUD Held Reserves*

SUB TOTAL

TOTAL Cash & Cash Equivilants

*as of June 30, 2015

Checking
Savings
520011210
1051647
53691
4535723359
ICS Acct
1075909
9426
4532078534
CD 16525-5100

CD 806592

Checking
135080088317

42,398.09
6,604.81
162,192.25
42,452.01
162,643.02
75,579.38
25,221.51
17,584.14
100,374.28
26,846.15
31,187.80

51,464.11

B2 Vo R V2 S Vo SRV, N V2 SRV, S Vo SV, S 7, N T T ¥

S 744,547.55

S 133,360.03
S 54,451.12

$ 187,811.15

S 554,397.00

S 554,397.00

$ 1,486,755.70

Certificate of Deposit

Certificate of Deposit

Escrow Account

Restricted

57
Current as of 4/24/2017



£T0Z j14dy fo sD 1ua1in)

9102 ‘82 439010

970z ‘z¢ udy

9102 ‘9Z 1snSny

STO0Z ‘9T dunr

9102 ‘€z Joquidldas

9102 ‘9¢ Adenuqga4q

LT0T ‘LT AMenuer

910z ‘2z Idy

ST0Z ‘0T 1390100

9102 ‘ST Ydiew

L10Z ‘vZ qaieN

9102 ‘7z Adenuer
Suion-up
9102 ‘ST Y2iew

910Z ‘vz aunr

910¢ 42903120
agl
9107 judy
asas
910¢ Isndny
a4t
adlL
VN
9107 J2qwidas
agl
9107 Aenigaq
agl
£TOC Menuef
adl
adl
910¢ |Mdy
VN
adal
910Z YdJe
LTOT AeiN
adal
LT0C Yare
agl
a4l
VN
LT0Z |ldy
9T0C Yosew
adal
910z auni/Aey

3LI4INGD LON Ul Juawmog siyy

7102 ‘TZ 1sndny
umouyun
800¢ ‘ST Ainr
umouun
umounun
umouun
umouyun
VN
€107 ‘TT Aenuer
JUON
zToz ‘o€ Aint
umounun
ZToz ‘o€ Aint
umowun
umouxun
9002 ‘TZ YdJew
VN
umouwun
ZT0Z ‘G 19quidnoN
€10Z ‘1T Aienuer
SUON
ZT0z ‘o€ AInr
umounun
umounun
VN
VN
|enuuy
5007 ‘0T Jequiaidag
¥10C ‘LT 2unr

0107 ‘02 Iudy
umouxun
9007 ‘8T AInr
G86T ‘Sz aunf
umouyun
umouqun
umouxun
STOC ‘9T aunf
866T ‘T€ 1sn3ny
066T ‘8 YaIe
900¢ ‘8T |Hdy
umouxun
T00Z ‘8T Yd2Je
umouxun
G86T ‘Sz auns
8861 'S |Udy
STOT ‘07 4290100
umouyun
900¢ Meniga4
TT0T ‘8T 1oquiandas
9661 ‘TT Jaquiaidas
#00¢ 19qwa33Qg
umouyun
umouun
9T0C ‘¢z Menuer
M3IN
S00¢ ‘T Aenuer
é
¥00¢ ‘6T 4990120

Adijod 13d

Adljod adueuaiuien

Aonjod (4a1se ) Aoy

Ad1j0d JuBWISaAU|

Ad1j0d Auojuanug

Ad110d uonesuNWWo) piezey

Ad110d 9oueAsLID

Adijod uonewoju| Jo wWoOp3aal4

ue|d uoidy Aduamiyns 41as Ajwey

ue|d AHunpoddQ Suisnoy [enb3

Ad1jod Sujsop) Aduasiawz

Adijod AI3

Adijod JO-314M JUNODDY |njagnog

Ad110d uoudlaYy WaWwNd0(Q

Ad1jo4 uonisodsig

Ad1j0d Juapisay paseadaq

Aoyjod pae) upasd

A2110d 321A195 AJlunwiwio)

Adijod wooy Ajjunwwio)

Ad110d 1npuo) jo apo)

Adijod swydy j1a1D

Adijod Sujusis »aay)

Ad1j0d uonezuoyiny saiioleusis usodaq o a1e211143)
Ad1j0d uonezijende)

Wnpuappy juawaseuel\ jueld |edsAyd / 19ssy
Ad1jod uswisseleH JuawiuoiAug 3)13SOH 1§ SulA|ing-nuy
(ADH ueld aanensiuwpy) NIWAY

(Ad110d AduednaoQ panunuo) g uoissiwpy) dOJV

smel-Ag DHDL

919|dwo) arepdn

M3IAY pajnpayds

(s)mainay snoinaud

poydopy 15414

AdInod

3|NPayas Mainay Adljod DHIL

58



/10T j11dy fo so Juarin)

91QZ ‘9z ¥snSny

8ulon-up

9T0¢ ‘T Asenuer

LT0T |udy

910z 1snsny
L107 Ae
adl
adl
aql
VYN

aglr

asgL

agl
agr
aqL
agL
L10C YaieN
adl

311371dWN0J LON ut Juswnoog siyL

VN M3IN
umouun umouun
umouun umouwyun
umouyun umouun
umouyun umousun

VN 9T0C ‘¢¢ AMenuef

966T ‘TT Joquaidas
SUON Z66T ‘L (udy
S00T ‘ST 49qWIaAnoN 686T ‘¥T Aenugaq

SUON

dUON 886T ‘S |udy

umouwjun umouyun
umouwqun umouyun
umouyun 0661 ‘T AeIN
umouwiun umouwjun

v10C ‘1T Aey umouyun
umouyun umouyun

3INPayIs mainay Adjod JHIL

Adjjod eipay [e1dos

Adijod spiyaa

Ad1j0d ssedssadj

Ad1jod |aneuy

Adijod Ja)sueuj

Adtjod AdeAlid JaquinN A3unaag [e1oog

>u.__oa EmemSmI _m:xww
Ad1jod sadieyd nedsy/adueusiuiep Jo ajnpayds
Ad1j0d sadiey) Ann ssadx3 Jo ajnpayas

Ad1j0d uoNn3|{0) Uy
UuOIEPOWWOIIY J|(rUOSeaY

ue|d aoueualuieip Suisnoy diqnd
Ad1j0d uawainloug

Adlj0d 1013U0)) 159¢

yoogpueH asAojdw] / Adljod |auuosiad
Ad1j0d ysed Anad

59



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

April 28, 2017
All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
Tony Lentych, Executive Directc}c\/

Smoke-Free Public Housing

MESSAGE:

On February 3, 2017, the new rule by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) on Smoke-Free Public Housing became effective thereby giving public housing agencies
that administer public housing programs 18 months to develop policies and procedures that
prohibit the use of certain tobacco products. At our meeting in March, TCHC adopted a
calendar for implementation of this policy. The first action item on the calendar was to adopt
the overall rule by resolution. This will send the message that Commissioners are aware of the
rule and plan to see it enforced on or before the required date of implementation.

§ 965.653 Smoke-Free Public Housing.

a)

b)

In general. PHAs must design and implement a policy prohibiting the use of prohibited
tobacco products in all public housing living units and interior areas (including but not limited
to hallways, rental and administrative offices, community centers, day care centers, laundry
centers, and similar structures), as well as in outdoor areas within 25 feet from public
housing and administrative office buildings (collectively, “restricted areas”) in which public
housing is located.

Designated smoking areas. PHAs may limit smoking to designated smoking areas on the
grounds of the public housing or administrative office buildings in order to accommodate
residents who smoke. These areas must be outside of any restricted areas, as defined in
paragraph (a) of this section, and may include partially enclosed structures. Alternatively,
PHAs may choose to create additional smoke-free areas outside the restricted areas or to
make their entire grounds smoke-free.

Prohibited tobacco products. A PHA's smoke-free policy must, at a minimum, ban the use of
all prohibited tobacco products. Prohibited tobacco products are defined as:

(1) Items that involve the ignition and burning of tobacco leaves, such as (but not limited to)
cigarettes, cigars, and pipes.

(2) To the extent not covered by paragraph (c)(1) of this section, waterpipes (hookahs).

Page 1 of 2 60



TCHC staff, therefore, recommends adoption of the following:

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE HUD SMOKE-FREE PUBLIC HOUSING RULE
April 28, 2016

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) now
requires all public housing authorities including the Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC)
to implement a “smoke-free” policy banning the use of prohibited tobacco products in all public
housing units, indoor common areas, and all administrative offices within 18 months of
February 3, 2017; and

WHEREAS, HUD believes that the rule will improve indoor air quality and will, therefore,
improve the health of all public housing residents, visitors, and staff; and

WHEREAS, HUD predicts that the rule will reduce the risk of catastrophic fires and will lower
overall maintenance costs; and

WHEREAS, the TCHC, with much of the same rationale in mind, had previously adopted a
smoke-free public housing rule in 2006 that established all properties owned by TCHC as
Smoke-Free for all new tenants; and

WHEREAS, the TCHC concurs in the recommendation of the Governance Committee and staff.
NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Traverse City Housing Commission as follows:

The Traverse City Housing Commission will be fully compliant with the HUD Smoke-Free Public
Housing Rule before August 3, 2018.

Page 2 of 2

61



Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

NEW BUSINESS

Policy on Schedule of Excess Utility Charges

Municipal Underwriters of Michigan Insurance Quote: Review
Engineering Services: Discussion on Need (Parking Lot, Rooftop, etc.)

RTRC Memorandum of Understanding: Commission Review

62



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN |49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: April 28, 2017
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directory /
\
SUBIJECT: Schedule of Excess Utility Charges
MESSAGE:

Attached you find an update to our Schedule of Excess Utility Charges. It is one of the policies
that we needed to review. Minimal changes were made and it was determined by staff that
this was still a necessary policy. Staff researched the items mentioned on this schedule for
manufacturer’s estimated utility usage and it was determined that only one charge was too
high. Costs for dehumidifiers were lowered by $1.00 per month based upon the fact that units
sold today are small and much more energy efficient.

This was Governance Committee reviewed the schedule of charges at its April meeting.

There is no need to adopt this by resolution since this is not a true policy. A simple motion will
approve this new fee schedule.

Page 1 of 1
63



Traverse City Housing Commission
Schedule of Excess Utility Charges

1. Purpose. Riverview Terrace residents do not pay a separate utility bill; it is included
in their rent payment. In order to manage the overall utility costs for the building, a
fee may be charged to residents that use atypical appliances and electronics.

2. Definition. An “Excess Utility Charge” is a fee that is established by TCHC to cover
the costs of these atypical appliances and electronics.

3. Schedule. The following is a schedule of annual fees for major appliances that will
be collected with rent on a monthly basis and will be established for a twelve month
(annual) period:

1) Freezer. All Energy Star Rated freezers will be charged a fee based upon the
size (or capacity) of the unit. We have settled on three categories for size:

e Small (less than 10 cubic feet in size) S 4.00 per month
e Medium (between 10 and 20 cubic feet in size) $ 7.00 per month
e large (over 20 cubic feet in size) $10.00 per month

2) Dishwasher. Any and all dishwashers whether a free-standing or a
countertop model will be charged the same fee:

e Energy Star Rated $ 3.00 per month
3) Dehumidifier. Any and all dehumidifiers will be charged the same fee:
e Energy Star Rated S 3.00 per month

4) Portable/Free Standing Air-Conditioner. Any and all air-conditioners
whether a free-standing or portable will be charged the same fee:

e Energy Star Rated S 4.00 per month

5) Other. TCHC reserves the right to add items on a case-by-case basis
depending upon the unusual or extraordinary needs of our tenants. Non-
Energy Star Rated items may be charged an additional fee of $1.00 to $2.00
per month. Please note that all necessary medical equipment is exempt from
this schedule.

Page 1 of 2 64



Riverview Terrace residents will not be charged any fees for normal small kitchen
appliances (including microwaves), health & beauty appliances, home entertainment
electronics, and personal computers. Additionally, all residents have the ability to
control their own temperature with the base-board heating system.

This schedule is in no way intended to be an endorsement of, or an evaluation of,
the items included on the schedule. TCHC staff will not comment on the make or
model of any item included on the schedule nor will staff offer any suggestions on

new versus used items.

Adopted: Unknown

Revised: November 15, 2005
Proposed: April 28, 2017

Page 2 of 2

65



RECEIVED

APR 2 6 2017 Municipal Underwriters of West Ml
4171 Wolverine Drive
Traverse City Williamsburg, Ml 49690

Housing Commnission

Toll Free 888-883-6391
Local 231-421-5008
Fax 231-421-3509

April 24, 2017

Tony Lentrych, Director

Traverse City Housing Commission
150 Pine Street

Traverse City, M| 49684

Dear Tony;

Enclosed you will find Summary of Coverage’s and an invoice for the Traverse City Housing
Commission’s 2017-2018 insurance years. The renewal date of your policy is 06/16/2017.

Presently, the structure of the Par Plan is better than ever, consisting of US Specialty Insurance
Company. US Specialty Insurance Company’s operating strategy is based on prudent capital
management, and specializes in insuring specialty market business like the Michigan Township
Participating Plan’s program.

The Michigan Township Par Plan Grant Program is also available to all members, to date, $1,700,000 has
been provided back to our members for the grant program.

The quoted premium is $24,783.00. This is an increase of 3% over last year’s beginning premium of
$24,100.00.

If you have any questions regarding your insurance coverage’s, please do not hesitate to contact me at
888-883-6391. Your continued confidence of the Michigan Township Participating Plan is appreciated.
It’s been a privilege to have served the Traverse City Housing Commission’s insurance needs for the
past 13 years. Thank you for your business.

66



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

SN
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 04/24/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTAGT
Municipal Underwriters of West MI, Inc. e Paul W. Olson
PHONE 888-883-6391 ] % oy 231-421-3509
4171 Wolveri i | (A/C, No, Ext): (AIC, No):
olverine Drive EMAIL olson@izk.com
Williamsburg MI 49690 Apoiess: P :
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : US Specialty Insurance Company
INSURED Traverse City Housing Commission INSURERB .
150 Pine Street INSURERC .
Traverse City Ml 49684 INSLRERD:
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR FOLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY] | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
v | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| DAVAGE T0 RENTED
A | cLamsmaoe OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrance) | 8 900,000
HMTP-142938 06/16/2017 |06/16/2018 | D ExP (Any one person) | 5 10,000
|| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 3,000,000
POLICY FED: Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § Included
OTHER: $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COVBINED SINGLELMIT | 5
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
OWNED SCHEDULED :
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
1 HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
|| AuTos onLY AUTOS ONLY {Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
oeo || Remenmions $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY AN I—] STATUTE [—I ER
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
A |Property Coverage HMTP-132938 06/16/2016 |06/16/2017
20,166,876 Blanket Basis/Special ]

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
The following is added as an additional insured and a loss payee as their interest appears in the financing of the renovations at all Traverse
City Housing Commission property locations..

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
Additional Insured and Loss Payee: SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

X ACCORD H THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
All American Investment Group LLC 2

730 17th Street, Suite 830 AGTHOAZED REPHESENTATIVE
Denver, Colorado 80202 ‘_‘_é
| U 3“2’

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
Produced using Forms Boss Web Software. www.FormsBoss.com {c) Impressive Publishing 800-208-1977 6 7




HMTP-142938

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
= ) o
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
A! CORD PROPERTY SECTION 04/24/2017
AGENCY NAME CARRIER NAIC CODE
Municipal Underwriters of West MI, Inc. US Specialty Insurnace Compamy
POLICY NUMBER EFFECTIVE DATE | NAMED INSURED(S)
HMTP-142938 06/16/2017 | Traverse City Housing Commission
BLANKET SUMMARY
BLKT # AMOUNT TYPE BLKT# AMOUNT TYPE
PREMISES #: STREET ADDRESS: 150 Pine Street

PREMISES INFORMATION | BUILDING#: 1 8LDG DEsCRIPTION: High Rise

SUBJECT OF INSURANCE AMOUNT COINS % | ATON| CAUSES OF Loss |WFLATION|  pep i |B'-#KT FORMS AND CONDITIONS TO APPLY

Renovation Financing 284,000

90 RC |Special

2.5 1,000

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION | I BUSINESS INCOME / EXTRA EXPENSE - Attach ACORD 810

| I VALUE REPORTING INFORMATION - Attach ACORD 811

ADDITIONAL COVERAGES, OPTIONS, RESTRICTIONS, ENDORSEMENTS AND RATING INFORMATION

SPOILAGE | DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY COVERED
COVERAGE
(Y/N)

[]

Limim REFRIG MAINT
$ AGREEMENT
(YIN)

DEDUCTIBLE D
$

OPTIONS

BREAKDOWN OR CONTAMINATION
SELLING
POWER OUTAGE PRICE

| BOILER D SOLID FUEL D

IF BOILER, IS INSURANCE PLACED ELSEWHERE? YIN

D BOILER |:[ SOLID FUEL I:l

SINKHOLE COVERAGE (Required in Florida) ACCEPT COVERAGE REJECT COVERAGE LIMIT: $
MINE SUBSIDENCE COVERAGE (Required in IL, IN, KY and WV) ACCEPT COVERAGE REJECT COVERAGE LIMIT: $
_] PROPERTY HAS BEEN DESIGNATED AN HISTORICAL LANDMARK # OF OPEN SIDES ON STRUCTURE:
CONSTRUCTION TYPE HYD?{%LQNCEIQ STAT FIRE DISTRICT CODENUMBER | PROTCL |#STORIES |#BASMTS| YRBUILT | TOTAL AREA
FT Mi
BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS BngA%%DE TAX CODE | ROOF TYPE OTHER OCCUPANCIES
WIRING, YR: PLUMBING, YR:
ROOFING, YR: HEATING, YR: WINDICLASS SEMI- RESISTIVE RS ,?;%FE‘%EAQEL”\Y;%%D LS :?&%TT%LLED;
OTHER: YR: RESISTIVE MANUFACTURER:
PRIMARY HEAT SECONDARY HEAT

IF BOILER, IS INSURANCE PLACED ELSEWHERE? Y/N

RIGHT EXPOSURE & DISTANCE

LEFT EXPOSURE & DISTANCE

FRONT EXPOSURE & DISTANCE

REAR EXPOSURE & DISTANCE

CENTRAL LOCAL
BURGLAR ALARM TYPE CERTIFICATE # EXPIRATION DATE STATION GONG
WITH KEYS
BURGLAR ALARM INSTALLED AND SERVICED BY EXTENT GRADE # GUARDS / WATCHMEN CLOCK HOURLY
PREMISES FIRE PROTECTION (Sprinklers, Standpipes, CO2/ Chemical Systems) % SPRNK | FIRE ALARM MANUFACTURER CENTRAL STATION
LOCAL GONG

ADDITIONAL INTEREST | ACORD 45 attached for additional names

LENDER'S LOSS PAYABLE
¥ | LOSS PAYEE
MORTGAGEE

INTEREST NAME AND ADDRESS RANK:

| EVIDENCE: | ¢/ | CERTIFICATE

INTEREST IN ITEM NUMBER

All American Investment Group LLC
730 17th Street, Suite 830
Denver. Colorado 80202

REFERENCE / LOAN #:

LOCATION: BUILDING:
ITEM

_CLASS: ITEM:
ITEM DESCRIPTION

ACORD 140 (2016/03)

Attach to ACORD 125

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Produced using Forms Boss Web Software. www.FormsBoss.com (c) Impressive Publishing 800-208-1977

© 1985-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

68



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

ADDITIONAL PREMISES #: STREET ADDRESS:
PREMISES INFORMATION | BUILDING #: BLDG DESCRIPTION:
o TE| ED 18
SUBJECT OF INSURANCE AMOUNT coINs % | YALU| causes oF Loss |INFLATION|  pep L e FORMS AND CONDITIONS TO APPLY

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

I | BUSINESS INCOME / EXTRA EXPENSE - Attach ACORD 810

|:| VALUE REPORTING INFORMATION - Attach ACORD 811

ADDITIONAL COVERAGES, OPTIONS, RESTRICTIONS, ENDORSEMENTS AND RATING INFORMATION

IF BOILER, IS INSURANCE PLACED ELSEWHERE? Y/N

IF BOILER, IS INSURANCE PLACI

SPOILAGE | DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY COVERED LM REFRIG MAINT | OPTIONS
COX(E,R,GGE $ AG"(‘E',E"N")ENT BREAKDOWN OR CONTAMINATION
I:I DEDUCTIBLE D POWER OUTAGE §E|L<I:JENG
$
SINKHOLE COVERAGE (Required in Florida) ACCEPT COVERAGE REJECT COVERAGE LIMIT: §
MINE SUBSIDENGE COVERAGE (Required In IL, IN, KY and WV) ACCEPT COVERAGE REJECT COVERAGE LIMIT: §
:I PROPERTY HAS BEEN DESIGNATED AN HISTORICAL LANDMARK # OF OPEN SIDES ON STRUCTURE: _____
CONSTRUCTION TYPE anfg‘lim"cglag STAT FIRE DISTRICT CODE NUMBER | PROT CL |# STORIES |#BASM'TS| YRBUILT | TOTAL AREA
FT M
BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS B'—ggA‘-D%DE TAX CODE | ROOF TYPE OTHER OCCUPANCIES
WIRING, YR: PLUMBING, YR:
ROOFING, YR: HEATING, YR: WIND CLASS SEMI- RESISTIVE I S I OB RNING ™ AT LED:
OTHER: YR: RESISTIVE S CTURER:
PRIMARY HEAT SECONDARY HEAT
BOILER |:| SOLID FUEL D BOILER D SOLID FUEL |:|

ED ELSEWHERE? Y/N

RIGHT EXPOSURE & DISTANCE

LEFT EXPOSURE & DISTANCE

FRONT EXPOSURE & DISTANCE

REAR EXPOSURE & DISTANCE

CENTRAL LOCAL
BURGLAR ALARM TYPE CERTIFICATE # EXPIRATION DATE STATION GONG
WITH KEYS
BURGLAR ALARM INSTALLED AND SERVICED BY EXTENT GRADE # GUARDS / WATCHMEN CLOCK HOURLY
PREMISES FIRE PROTECTION (Sprinklers, Standpipes, CO2/ Chemical Systems) % SPRNK | FIRE ALARM MANUFACTURER CENTRAL STATION

LOCAL GONG

| CERTIFICATE

ADDITIONAL INTEREST ] ACORD 45 attached for additional names
INTEREST NAME AND ADDRESS RANK: [ EVIDENGE: ]
LENDER'S LOSS PAYABLE
LOSS PAYEE
MORTGAGEE
REFERENCE / LOAN #:

INTEREST IN ITEM NUMBER

LOCATION: BUILDING:
ITEM

CLASS: ITEM:
{TEM DESCRIPTION

REMARKS (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

ACORD 140 (2016/03)

Page 2 of 3

69




AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

SIGNATURE

Applicable in AL, AR, DC, LA, MD, NM, Rl and WV
Any person who knowingly (or willfully)* presents a false or fraudulent claim for payment of a loss or benefit or knowingly (or willfully)* presents false
information in an application for insurance is guilty of a crime and may be subject to fines and confinement in prison. *Applies in MD Only.

Applicable in CO

It is unlawful to knowingly provide false, incomplete, or misleading facts or information to an insurance company for the purpose of defrauding or attempting to
defraud the company. Penalties may include imprisonment, fines, denial of insurance and civil damages. Any insurance company or agent of an insurance
company who knowingly provides false, incomplete, or misleading facts or information to a policyholder or claimant for the purpose of defrauding or
attempting to defraud the policyholder or claimant with regard to a settlement or award payable from insurance proceeds shall be reported to the Colorado
Division of Insurance within the Department of Regulatory Agencies.

Applicable in FL and OK
Any person who knowingly and with intent to injure, defraud, or deceive any insurer files a statement of claim or an application containing any false,
incomplete, or misleading information is guilty of a felony (of the third degree)*. *Applies in FL Only.

Applicable in KS

Any person who, knowingly and with intent to defraud, presents, causes to be presented or prepares with knowledge or belief that it will be presented to or by
an insurer, purported insurer, broker or any agent thereof, any written statement as part of, or in support of, an application for the issuance of, or the rating of
an insurance policy for personal or commercial insurance, or a claim for payment or other benefit pursuant to an insurance policy for commercial or personal
insurance which such person knows to contain materially false information concerning any fact material thereto; or conceals, for the purpose of misleading,
information concerning any fact material thereto commits a fraudulent insurance act.

Applicable in KY, NY, OH and PA

Any person who knowingly and with intent to defraud any insurance company or other person files an application for insurance or statement of claim
containing any materially false information or conceals for the purpose of misleading, information concerning any fact material thereto commits a fraudulent
insurance act, which is a crime and subjects such person to criminal and civil penalties* (not to exceed five thousand dollars and the stated value of the claim

for each such violation)*. *Applies in NY Only.

Applicable in ME, TN, VA and WA

It is a crime to knowingly provide false, incomplete or misleading information to an insurance company for the purpose of defrauding the company. Penaities
(may)* include imprisonment, fines and denial of insurance benefits. *Applies in ME Only.

Applicable in NJ
Any person who includes any false or misleading information on an application for an insurance policy is subject to criminal and civil penalties.

Applicable in OR
Any person who knowingly and with intent to defraud or solicit another to defraud the insurer by submitting an application containing a false statement as to
any material fact may be violating state law.

Applicable in PR

Any person who knowingly and with the intention of defrauding presents false information in an insurance application, or presents, helps, or causes the
presentation of a fraudulent claim for the payment of a loss or any other benefit, or presents more than one claim for the same damage or loss, shall incur a
felony and, upon conviction, shall be sanctioned for each violation by a fine of not less than five thousand dollars ($5,000) and not more than ten thousand
dollars ($10,000), or a fixed term of imprisonment for three (3) years, or both penalties. Should aggravating circumstances [be] present, the penalty thus
established may be increased to a maximum of five (5) years, if extenuating circumstances are present, it may be reduced to a minimum of two (2) years.

THE UNDERSIGNED IS AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE APPLICANT AND REPRESENTS THAT REASONABLE INQUIRY HAS BEEN MADE TO OBTAIN THE
ANSWERS TO QU N THIS APPLICATION. HE/SHE REPRESENTS THAT THE ANSWERS ARE TRUE, CORRECT AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF HIS/HER

KNOWLEDG!
STATE PRODUCER LICENSE NO

PRODUC ATURE o’——-""r PR R'S NAME (Please Print) {Required in Florida)
W U/ M V2. OGS ce-b

APP{I@ANT'S SIGNATURE M DAT NATIONAL PRODUCER NUMBER

e

ACORD 140 (2016/03) Page 3 of 3
70




MICHIGAN
TOWNSHIP
PARTICIPATING
PLAN

SUMMARY OF COVERAGES

FOR

Traverse City Housing Commission 2017

Presented By:

PAUL OLSON- RISK MANAGER
Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.




Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.

SUPPORT/SERVICE COMPANIES

MARKETING AND SERVICE:
Municipal Underwriters of West MI. Inc.
4171 Wolverine Drive
Williamsburg, Ml 49690
231-421-3509 FAX
(888) 883-6391 MICHIGAN WATTS

TECHNICAL ADMINISTRATION:
Michigan Township Participating Plan
1700 Opdyke Court
Auburn Hills, Ml 48326
(248) 371-3100 - LOCAL
(800) 783-1370 - MICHIGAN WATTS
(248) 371-3069 FAX

RISK CONTROL ADMINISTRATION
Midwest Risk Control
1700 Opdyke Court
Auburn Hills, Ml 48326
(248) 371-3100 - LOCAL
(800) 536-7425 - MICHIGAN WATTS
(248) 371-3069 - FAX

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION
Midwest Claims Service
1700 Opdyke Court
Auburn Hills, Ml 48326
(800) 225-6561 - MICHIGAN WATTS
(248) 371-3091 - FAX

Michigan Township Participating Plan
Page 2
72



Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.

I. COMPREHENSIVE MUNICIPAL LIABILITY COVERAGE:*

Limit of Liability Per Occurrence $ 1,000,000

Limit of Liability Per Aggregate $ None

Deductible $ 1,000
ADDITIONAL INSUREDS:

1. Any member of the governing body of the Named Insured

2. Any member of boards or commissions of the Named Insured

3. Any elected or appointed official of the Named Insured

4. Any employee of the Named Insured — Including Contracted Assessor

5. Any volunteer

ADDITIONAL INCLUDED COVERAGES:

O ON b W)

. Public Officials RESIDENCE AND PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT
. Premises Medical Payments - $10,000 Limit

. Host Liquor Law Liability

. Special Events Liability - Fireworks Liability by Endorsement

. Governmental Professional Malpractice Liability

. Incidental Medical Malpractice Liability

. Employee Benefit Liability

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

Extended Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability

Completed Operations

Property Legal Liability - $500,000 Limit

Premises and Operations

Care, Custody and Control Coverage - $25,000 per occurrence

Explosion, Collapse and Underground (exclusions deleted)

Vicarious Liability

Fellow Member Liability

Governmental Tort Immunity Waiver

Non-Owned and Hired auto liability coverage

Non-Owned and Owned Watercraft Liability-under 26'in length

Personal Injury Protection Includes:

A. FALSE ARREST, DETENTION OR IMPRISONMENT

B. MALICIOUS PROSECUTION

C. WRONGFUL ENTRY OR EVICTION OR OTHER INVASION OF THE
RIGHT OF PRIVATE OCCUPANCY

D. LIBEL, SLANDER, ORAL OR WRITTEN PUBLICATION

E. MENTAL ANGUISH & MENTAL INJURY

Michigan Township Participating Plan

Page 7
73



Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.

PUBLIC OFFICIALS WRONGFUL ACT LIABILITY
(Errors & Omissions)

Limit of Liability Per Occurrence: $ 1,000,000
Limit of Liability Aggregate: $ None
Deductible: $ 1,000

The following are areas of exposure to public officials and employees, which most generally are
covered by a legal liability policy:

(o) N N B

— O \D 00 ]

—_

12.

. A decision or opinion of the municipal board

. A decision or opinion of the fire & ambulance department

. A decision or opinion of the zoning or planning board and zoning board of appeals

. Regulatory Taking of Private Property" sustained by any one person or organization is One

Hundred Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($100,000). "Regulatory Taking of Private Property”,
means the enactment or enforcement of any regulation or ordinance, which unconstitutionally
and temporarily restricts the use of private property.

. Decisions or opinions of Building, Electrical, Plumbing Inspectors and Contracted Assessors
. Alleged negligence or incompetence on the part of any public official or employee including

the failure to carry out duties.

. Accusations regarding mismanagement of municipal owned assets

. Inadequate supervision of voter registration & elections

. Improper hiring or firing of employees

. Failure to check auditing & accounting practices

. Violation of Civil Rights: Civil Rights are defined as "means the deprivation of any rights,

privileges, or immunities secured by the Constitution and laws, including discrimination
based upon religion, race, color, national origin, age, gender (including sexual harassment,
unwelcome sexual advance, request for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct or
communication of a sexual nature), height, weight, disability, or marital status"

Back Wages- $25,000 Per Person

Note: Failure of assured to provide or maintain valid insurance policies is not a covered exposure.

Michigan Township Participating Plan
Page 8

74



Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.

II. FLEET LIABILITY COVERAGE: LIMITS
A. Bodily Injury & Property Damage [CSL] $ 1,000,000
B. Personal Injury Protection Statutory
C. Personal Property Insurance $ 1,000,000
D. Uninsured Motorists $ 1,000,000
E. Non-owned & Hired Auto Liability $ 1,000,000
F. Mini-Tort Liability $ 500
G. Underinsured Motorists $ 100,000

III. FLEET PROPERTY COVERAGE:
Property limit $ No Fleet Vehicles
A. Comprehensive $ 0 ACV Deductible, Actual Cash Value

B. Collision $ 0 Deductible, ACV, Broadened

IV. INLAND MARINE COVERAGE:

Providing ALL RISK, REPLACEMENT COST COVERAGE for property and equipment while
on or off the premises. NO CO-INSURANCE

Property limit $ 25,000
Deductible $ 1,000

SEE ATTACHED SCHEDULE

Michigan Township Participating Plan
Page 9

75



Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.

V. PROPERTY [FIRE] COVERAGE:

Total Blanket Building and Contents Limit $20,166,826.00
Deductible $ 1,000
Per Schedule on File with company

A. Inflation Guard - 2.5% per quarter

B. Special Municipal Property Endorsement to include:

O 00 ~12 A\ L B WK —

. Personal Property off Premises - $100,000

. Personal effects of Employees - $ 1,000 per person

. Transportation - $50,000 Limit

. Flood Coverage- $100,000

. Earthquake Coverage- $1,000,000

. Accounts Receivable- $250,000

. Loss of Business Income Coverage- $500,000 Per Occurrence

. Extra Expense Coverage - $500,000 Per Occurrence

. Newly Acquired and Constructed Property- $1,000,000 180 Days
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

Foundations of Machinery- $250,000

Power Surge Coverage - $25,000 Limit

Glass Coverage-$00 Deductible Glass Breakage
Underground Pipes, Flues or Drains- $1,000,000
Law and Ordinance Coverage- Actual Sustained Loss
Inventory and Appraisal- $10,000

VI. VALUABLE PAPERS AND RECORDS COVERAGE*:

Broad Form Coverage for the reconstruction of valuable papers and records $250,000 year round
limit of protection with $0 deductible.

* NOTE: Higher limits available upon request.

Michigan Township Participating Plan

Page 10
76



Property

Application:
0000200525 TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING CO &
f
A || & || & [&Fac & | & r NE7 I XY A
Number|| Loc.# || Bldg.#|| Within | 1,00 % A:dStree; POK|[BC :.Bld'g. :.Con't. Mine BYl:it FAR| BF || Special || Sprinkler qu BoilerVal
v ¥ [|s0ntw| ¢ ressy Vv Jut LU (F S ,“", V|(v|Dpa¥|| w oot
150 PINE
56300 || 1 1 No 0 |[STREETHIGH || 10 | 4 [|$17,017,088| $23,153 s$of 1976 .R fso2f| o Yes gl R
RISE
56309 || 1 2 No 0 |[150 PINE ST 11 || 1 $3,647 s0f $0)1976]] R |[614] o No qf R
10224 E.
CARTER L.
56301 || 2 1 No 0 leanaLy 101 $488,633 $5789 $0| 1994 | =R [[800ff © No of R
DWELLING
: - |[to224 E :
56310 || 2 2 No 0 HCARTER 101 $4,375 $af  sof 1994 |<r f403]| o No o R
10224 E
56311 || 2 3 No 0 flcARTER 10 1 $4,375 $0| so0f 1994 R [403]| o No o R
10220 E.
CARTER :
56302 || 3 1 No L 0] 1] $491,065 $5789 $0f| 1994 R [8ooff o No of =®r
DWELLING
10220 E
2 3 )
56312 || 3 2 Mo 0 [lCARTER 10 1 $ 4,375 $0| sof1o94]f R fl403 o0 No o r
10220 E
56313 || 3 3 No 0 [cARTER 10 | 1 $4,375 $0| $ofl1994]f R [l403] o0 No of R
10216 E.
_ CARTER
56303 | 4 1 ||; Ne 0 feanmLy 10| 1| $491,065 $5789 $0f| 1994 || R [|soof © No o R
DWELLING
10216 E
56314 || 4 2 No 0 eARTER 01 54379 $0| s$off 1994l R fl403) 0 No o R
10216 E 8
56315 || 4 3 No 0 [cARTER 10 |1 $4,375’ $0| $off1994f R (403 o0 No of R
10212 E
CARTER
56304 || 5 1 No 0 [ranomy 10| 1| $491,065 $5789 sofft994( R [so0ff o© No of R
DWELLING
10212 E
56316 || 5 2 No 0 feaRTER 10 | 1 $4,375 $0f $off 1994 R fla03]] o No of R
10212 E
56317 || 5 3 No 0 NoARTER 10 | 1 $4,375 $0f sof 1994 R f403]] o No of R
10208 E.
CARTER
56305 || 6 1 No 0 (eammy 101 $491,065| $5789 $0| 1994 R |[800f| o© No gl R
DWELLING
10208 E
56318 || 6 2 No 0 [-ARTER 10| 1 $4,375 $0| $of1994]f R [l403] o0 No a R
10208 E
56319 || 6 3 No 0 lCARTER 10| 1 $4,375! sof soff1994 | R [[403] o No of R
10208 E.
56320 || 6 4 No 0 [-ARTER 101 $4,375 $0) $0|| 1994 403 0 No o R
56321 || .6 5 No 0 |[[10208 CARTER || 10 || 1 $4,375|| S0 $of 1994 403)] 0 No 0
10200 E.
56306 || 7 1 No 0 |[CARTER 10| 2| $399,902 $57.881| $0|f1994] R [l100f © Yes o R
OFFICE
10200 CARTER
56307 | 7 f 2 No 0 fcenTER 18 |f 1 $121,238" $2,894 $0l|1996 R [[o10] © No of R
10200 CARTER
56308 (| 7 3 No 0 | -ENTER 01 $6,685" $0 $0H 199 | R (403 o No 0“ R
Totals: $20,053,953) §112,873) 8]
Grand Total: $20,166,826 ||

77



Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.
VII. CRIME COVERAGE:

A. Limit of Coverage - $ 100,000
B. "Broad Form" Money & Securities
C. Inside Coverage:
D. QOutside Coverage:
E. Money Order and Counterfeit Paper Currency
F. Depositors' Forgery
G. Locations to Include:
1. All Officials Homes

2. Place of Employment
3. Banking Facility

VIII: PUBLIC OFFICIAL BONDS:

EMPLOYEE BLANKET BOND  $100,000

NOTE: THE ABOVE BONDS ARE INCLUDED AT NO ADDITIONAL CHARGE

ADDITIONAL POSITIONS AND HIGHER LIMITS AVAILABLE
(Those who collect money or fees should be bonded)

* NOTE: Higher limits available upon request.

Michigan Township Participating Plan
Page 11

78



Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.

X. LAW ENFORCEMENT PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE:

Limit of Liability Per Occurrence $0
Limit of Liability Per Aggregate $ No Aggregate
Deductible $0

A.PERSONAL INJURY
B. WRONGFUL ACT
C. IIOT PURSUIT ENDORSEMENT

XI. BUSINESS ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT COVERAGE:

A. Combined Media and Extra Expense Coverage - $ 100,000
B. Computer Coverage- $100,000
C. System Breakdown Coverage Endorsement

1. Mechanical Breakdown; Machinery Breakdown

2. Short Circuit; Blow out; other Electrical Disturbance

3. Electrical or Magnetic Injury

XII. BOILER AND MACHINERY:
A. Repair of Replacement Coverage Included
B. Direct Damage Coverage as follows: Unfired Pressure Vessels, Motors

and Centrifugal Pumps. Internal Combustion Engines, Generators and
C. Miscellaneous Electrical Apparatus

Deductible of $ 1,000 Applies Limits $ 20,166,826.00

XIII. VOLUNTEER FIREMEN'S ACCIDENT:

Michigan Township Participating Plan

Page 12
79



Municipal Underwriters of West MI Inc.

PREMIUM SUMMARY

I. COMPREHENSIVE MUNICIPAL LIABILITY
II. FLEET LIABILITY

III. FLEET (PROPERTY)

IV. INLAND MARINE

V. PROPERTY [FIRE)

VI. VALUABLE PAPERS AND RECORDS
VII. CRIME

VIII. BONDS

IX. WORKERS COMPENSATION

X. POLICE PROFESSIONAL

XI. BUSINESS ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT
XII. BOILER AND MACHINERY

XIII. VOLUNTEER FIREMEN'S ACCIDENT

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

INCLUDED

TOTAL PAR-PLAN ANNUAL PREMIUM:$24,753.00

NOTE: The MICHIGAN TOWNSHIP PARTICIPATING PLAN is formed under the enabling

legislation of Public Act #138. Itis a 'fixed cost, fully reinsured, non-assessable program’,
controlled by the Board of Directors of the Michigan Township Participating Plan.

Michigan Township Participating Plan
Page 14

80



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: April 28, 2017
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Director) /
SUBJECT: Engineering Services
MESSAGE:

As a result of the conversations held during the Special Meeting held on April 7, 2017, staff had
a brief discussion with Alliance Architects about TCHC’s need for Engineering Services. After
the conversation with Alliance, staff would like to have a more formal conversation on this

matter to get clear direction.

One of the topics on the Governance Committee’s agenda this month was the “shared drive”
with our neighbors. Staff asked the committee if it thought it would be prudent to invest in our
own design work for our parking lot and our needs related to this “shared drive.” The
overwhelming response was “yes”, we should invest in our own design work.

There are several ways to address this and feedback from the Commission will help achieve the
most desirable outcome.

Page 1of 1
81



The City of Traverse City TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION
150 Pine Street
Traverse City, MI 49684
Phone: (231) 922-4915

DATE:  April 25, 2017 RE“? e VE‘ D

TO: Tony Lentych, TCHC Executive Director and Commissioners
FROM:  Andy Smits APR 2 52017
SUBJECT: Non-Compliance with Code of Federal Regulations

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated April 19, 2016 Traverse City

Housing Commission

The Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Chapter 24, Part 964 is entitled “Tenant Participation
Opportunities in Public Housing” (hereinafter: Part 964). The purpose of these regulations are to,
“....recognize the importance of resident involvement in creating a positive living environment and in
actively participating in the overall mission of public housing.” Subpart A Subpart B of Part 964 provides
the federal regulation applicable to Public Housing Authorities (PHAs) and Resident Councils (RCs),
operating under this law.

Review of the subject MOU in the context of Part 964 and the general requirements of a PHA’s Annual
Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD suggest to this Commissioner that:

The TCHC is not fully compliant with federal law and/or best management practices

The MOU is insufficient as an agreement between the TCHC and Riverview Terrace (RT) RC
The MOU is insufficient as a TCHC policy document pertaining to Tenant Participation

e The MOQU fails to include standard contract language for the benefit of the RTRC and TCHC

This memorandum is intended to support the deliberations of the TCHC at its April 2017 regular
meeting. | will be proposing that the TCHC provide the RTRC, on or before May 15, 2017, written notice
of TCHC’s intent to terminate the MQOU and replace it with a written agreement that will cure the
deficiencies of the MOU with regard to TCHC's Part 964 obligations and codify TCHC's recognition of the
RTRC, consistent with federal law and the policies and prerogatives to the TCHC.

The agreement and/or policy should include, but not be limited to:

Statement of Purpose / Objective

Recognition of a duly elected RTRC Board as the SOLE representative of the RT residents with regard to
tenant participation activities

Provide the RTRC with thorough and clear guidance to assist them in maintaining a RC, consistent with
Part 964

Provide clarity as to the manner and extent of RTRC participation in TCHC operations

Means and measures by which the collaborative agreement is terminated, including progressive

enforcement measures for key provisions
identify the points of contact and official communications procedures under the collaborative

agreement
Detailed procedures and responsibilities for annual and other audits, financial and compliance

Records retention and records quality requirements
Procedures and documentation related to annual RTRC funding requests, including budgets, ledgers, etc.
RTRC certification that funds use will comply with Part 964 requirements and limitations established

under other laws.

enc. MQOU April 2016 (2 pp)
24 CFR 964 (18pp)

c:\users\asmits\dropbox\tchc share\rt res council\memao- mou_april 2017 reg meeting.docx

82



AUTHENTICATED
W GOV ERMAMENT
TRFORAMATION
(o] i)

: = BVALUKE o Ao

24

Parts 700 to 1699
Revised as of April 1, 2000

Q

10NS

Housing and Urban
Development

Containing a Codification of documents
of general applicability and future effect

As of April 1, 2000

With Ancillaries

Published by

Office of the Federal Register

National Archives and Records
Administration

As a Special Edition of the Federal.Register

Code of Federal Re sulat




Office of the Assistant Secretary, HUD

part shall comply with: the contract
provisions of 24 CFR 85.36(i); the provi-
sions of 24 CFR 85.36(h), 24 CFR
968.240(d) or 24 CFR 968.335(c)(1) gov-
erning bonding requirements, where
applicable; and such other contract
terms that may be applicable to the
particular procurement under the De-
partment's regulations. In addition to
the recordkeeping requirements im-
posed by 24 CFR 85.36(i), the PHA also
shall maintain records sufficient to de-
tail the significant history of the pro-
curement made under this part. These
records will include, but are not nec-
essarily limited to the following: The
independent cost estimate and com-
parable price analysis as required by
paragraph (b) of this section; the basis
for contractor selection, including doc-
umentation concerning the eligibility
of the selected resident owned business
under §963.10; and the basis for deter-
mining the reasonableness of the pro-
posed contract price.

PART 964—TENANT PARTICIPATION
AND TENANT OPPORTUNITIES IN
PUBLIC HOUSING

Subpart A—General Provisions

Sec.
964.1
964.3

Purpose.

Applicability and scope.

964.7 Definitions.

964.11 HUD policy on tenant participation.

964.12 HUD policy on the Tenant Opportuni-
ties Program (TOP).

964.14 HUD policy on partnerships.

964.15 HUD policy on resident management.

964.16 HUD role in activities under this
part.

964.18 HA role In activities under subparts B
& C.

964.24 HUD policy on FIC Program.

934.30 Other Programn requirements

Subpart B—Tenant Participation

964.100 Role of resident council

9G4.105 Role of the jurisdiction-wide resi-
dent council.

964,115 Resident council requirements.

964.117 Resident council partnerships.

964.120 Resident management corporation
requirements.

964.125 Eligibility for resident council mem-
bership.

964.130 Election procedures and standards.

964.135 Resident involvement in HA man-
agement operations.

964.140 Resident training.

§964.3

964.145 Confllct of interest.
964.150 Funding tenant participation,

Subpart C—Tenant Opportunities Program

964.200
964.205
964.210
964.215
964.220

General.

Eligibility.

Notice of funding availability.

Grant agreement.

Technical assistance.

964.225 Resident management requirements.

964.230 Audit and administrative require-
ments.

Subpart D—Family Investment Centers
(FIC) Program

General.

Eligibility.
Supportive services requirements.
Audit/compliance requirements.
HAs role in activities under

964.300

964.305

964.308

964.310

964.315
part.

964.320 HUD Policy on training, employ-
ek, contrgeting dand subcontractlng of
public housing residents.

964.325 Notice of [unding availability.

964.330 Grant set-aside assistance.

964.335 Grant agreement

964.340 Resident compensation.

964.345 Treatment of income.

964.350 Administrative requirements,

this

Subpart E—Resident Board Members

964.400 Purpose,

064.405 Applicability.

964.410 Additional definitions.

964.415 Resident board members,

964.120 Resident board wmerober may be
elected.

964.425 Small public housing agencies.
964.430 Nondiscrimination.

AUTIIORITY: 42 U.S.C. 1437,
14371, 1437r, 1437¢, and 3535(d).

SOURCE: 39 FR 43636, Aug. 24, 1994, unless
otherwise noted.

1437d, 1437g,

Subpart A—General Provisions

§964.1 Purpose.

The purpose of this part is to recog-
nize the importance of resident in-
volvement in creating a positive living
environment and in actively partici-
pating in the overall mission of public
housing.

§964.3 Applicability and scope.

(a) The policies and procedures con-
talned in this part apply to any PHA
that has a Public Housing Annual Con-
tributions Contract (ACC) with HUD.
This part, except for subpart E, does

453




§964.7

not apply to PHAs with housing assist-
ance payments contracts with HUD
under section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act
of 1937.

e (0) Subpart B of this part contains

HUD policies, procedures, and require-
ments for the participation of residents
in public _housing operationy, These
policies, procedures, and requirements
apply to all residents participating
under this part.

e——e (c)(1) Subpart C of this part contains

HUD policies, procedures, and require-
ments for residents participating in the
Tenant Opportunities Program (1'0P)
(replaces the Resldent Management”
Program under Section 20 of the United
States Housing Act of 1937). Resident
management in public housing is via-
ble and remains an option under TOP.

(2) Subpart C of this part is not in-
lended Lo egale diy pre-existing ar-
rangements for resident management
in public housing between a PHA and a
resident management corporation. On
or after September 23, 1994, any new,
renewed or renegotiated contracts
must meet the requirements of this
part, the ACC and all applicable laws
and regulations.

+——wa (d) Subpart D of this part includes re-

quirements for the Family Investment
Centers (FIC) Program which was es-
tablished by Section 22 of the United
States Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C.
1437t) to provide families living in pub-
lic housing and Indian housing with
better access to educational and em-
ployment opportunities,

——a {€) Subpart E of this part implements

section 2(h) of the United States Hous-
ing Act of 1937 (12 U.S.C. 1437), which
provides lor resident membership on
the board of TIrectors or SImMilIAr gov-
&rning body of a PHA. Subpart E ap-
plies to any public housing agency that
has a public housing annual contribu-
tions contract with HUD or admin-
isters lenant-based rental under sec-
tion 8 of the United States Housing Act
of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437f).

() The term ''resident,” as used
throughout this part, is interchange-
able with the term '‘tenant," to reflect
the fact that local resident organiza-
tions have differing preferences for the
terms. Terms such as '‘resident coun-
cil” and ‘‘tenant council' and ‘'resi-
dent management” and ‘‘tenant man-

24 CFR Ch. IX (4-1-00 Edition)

agement’ are interchangeable. Here-
after, for ease of discussion, the rule
will use the terms resident, resident
council and resident management cor-
poration, as appropriate.

[57 9R 43636, Aug. 24, 1994, as amended ar 64
FR 56879, Oct. 21, 1999]

§964.7 Definitions.

Annual Contributions Contract (ACC).
A contract (in the form prescribed by
HUD) under which HUD agrees to pro-
vide financial assistance, and the HA
agrees to comply with HUD require-
ments for the development and oper-
ation of the public housing project.

Eligible residents for FIC. A partici-
pating resident of a participating A,
If the HA is combining [FIC with the
Family Self-Sufficiency (IF'SS) pro-
gram, the term also means Public
Housing IMSS and Section 8 ftamilies
participating in the FSS program. Al-
though Section 8 FSS families are eli-
gible residents for FIC, they do not
qualify for income exclusions that are
provided for public housing residents
participating in employment and sup-
portive service praograms.

Family Investment Centers (FIC). A fa-
cility on or near public housing which
provides families living in public hous-
ing with better access to educational
and employment opportunities Lo
achieve self-sufficiency and independ-
ence.

FIC service coordinator. Any person
who is responsible for:

(1) Determining the eligibility and
assessing needs of families to be served
by the FIC;

(2) Assessing training and service
needs of eligible residents;

(3) Working with service providers to
coordinate the provision of services on
a HA-wide or less than HA-wide basis,
and to tailor the services to the needs
and characteristics of eligible resi-
dents;

(4) Mobilizing public and private re-
sources to ensure that thc supportive
services identilied can be [unded over
the five-year period, at least, following
the initial receipt of funding.

(5) Monitoring and evaluating the de-
livery, impact, and effectiveness of any
supportive service funded with capital
or operating assistance under the FIC
program;

454

W i®
_~UEbules GRerprieds

85




Office of the Assistant Secretary, HUD

(6) Coordinating the development and
implementation of the FIC program
with other self-sufficiency programs,
and other education and employment
programs; and

(7) Performing other duties and func-
tions that are appropriate for providing
cligiblc residents with better access to
educational and employment opportu-
nities.

HA means the same as Public Housing
Agency (PHA).

“"'--Manngcmem AllL activities for which
the A is responsible to HUD under th -4
ACC, within Lhe delinition ol ' G:Jg_;.
ation’ under the Act and the ACC, In-

cluding the development of resident
rograms and service

Management  contract. A written
agreement between a resident manage-
ment corporation and a HA, as pro-
vided by subpart C.

Public Housing Agency (PHA) Is de-
fined in 24 CFR part §.

Public housing development  (Develop-
ment). 'The term '‘development”’ has the
same meaning as that provided for
"“low-income housing project’’ as that
term is defined Section 3(b)(1) of the
Act.

Residerntt management. The perform-
ance ol une or more management ac-
tivities for one or more projects by a
resident management corporation
under a management. contract with the
LIA.

Resident management corporation. An
entity that proposes to enter into, or
enters into, a contract to manage orne
or more management activities of a
HA.

Resident-owned business. Any business
concern which is owned and controlled
by public housing residents. (The term
"resident-owned business’’ includes
sale proprietorships.) For purposes of
this part, ‘“‘owned and controlled"”
means a business:

(1) Which is at least 51 percent owned
by one or more public housing resi-
dents; and

(2) Whose management and daily
business operations are controlled by
one or more such individuals.

Supportive services for FIC. New or sig-
nificantly expanded services that are
essential to providing families living
with children in public housing with
better access to cducational and em-

§964.12

ployment opportunities to achieve self-
sufficiency and independence.

Tenant Opportunities Program (TOP).
The TOP program is designed to pre-
pare residents to experience the dig-
nity of meaningful work, to own and
operate resident businesses, to move
toward financial independence, and to
enable them to choose where they want
to live and engage in meaningful par-
ticipation in the management of hous-
ing developments in which they live.
Financial assistance in the form of
technical assistance grants is available
to RCs/RMCs to prepare to manage ac-
tivities in their public housing develop-
ments,

Vacant unit under FIC. A dwelling
unit that is not under an effective lease
to an eligible family. An effective lease
is a lease under which an eligible fam-
tly has a right to possession of the unit
and is being charged rent, even if the
amount of any utility allowance equals
ar exceeds the amount of a total resi-
dent payment that is based on income
and, as a result, the amount paid by
the family to the HA is zero.

[59 FR 43636, Aug. 24, 1994, as amended at 61
FR 5215, Feb. 9, 1996]

£964.11 HUD policy on tenant partici-
pation.

HUD promotes resident pacticipation
and the active involvement of residents
in all aspects of a HA's overall mission
and operation. Residents have a right
Lo organize and elect a resident council
to represent their interests. As long-ag
ﬁlfoi’er procedures are folluwgé!. the HA

hall recognize the g resie
dent council to participate — fully
through. a working relationship with
the HA. HUD encourages HAs and resi-
dents to work together to determine
the most appropriate ways to foster
constructive relationships, particularly
through duly-elected resident councils.

$964.12 HUD policy on the Tenant Op-
portunities Program (TOP).

HUD promotes TOP programs Lo sup-
port activities that enable residents to
improve the quality of life and resident
satisfaction, and obtain other social
and economic benefits for residents and
their families. Tenant opportunlty pro-
grams are proven to be effective in fa-
cilitating economic uplift, as well as in

455

86




§964.14

improving the overall conditions of the
public housing communities.

§964.14 HUD policy on partnerships.

HUD promotes partnerships between
residents and HAs which are an essen-
tial component to building, strength-
ening and improving public housing.
Strong partnerships are critical for
creating positive changes in lifestyles
thus improving the quality of life for
public housing residents, and the sur-
rounding community.

§964.15 HUD policy on resident man-

agement.

It is HUD's policy to encourage resi-

dent management. HUD encourages
[TAs, resident councils and resident
managerment corporations to explore
the various functions involved in man-
agement to identify appropriate oppor-
tunities for contracting with a resident
management corporation. Potential
benefits of resident-managed entities
include improved quality of life, expe-
riencing the dignity of meaningful
work, enabling residents to choose
where they want to live, and meaning-
ful participation in the management of
the housing development.

§964.16 HUD role in activities under
this part.

(a) General. Subject to the require-
ments of this part and other require-
ments imposed on HAs by the ACC,
statute or regulation, the form and ex-

24 CFR Ch. IX (4-1-00 Edition)

to represent, and support its tenant
participation activities.

(2) When requested by residents, a HA
shall provide appropriate guidance to
residents to assist them in establishing
and malntaining a resident council.

(3) A HA may consult with residents,
or resident councils (if they exist), to
determine the extent to which resi-
dents desire to participate in activities
invalving their community, including
the management of specific functions
of a public housing development that
may be mutually agreeable to the HA
and the resident council/resident man-
agement corporation.

(4) A HA shall provide the residents
or any resident council with current
information concerning the IlA's poli-
cies on tenant participation in manage-
ment.

(5) If requested. & FMA should provide
avduly recognized resident council ofs
fee space and meeting facilitieg {ree:
af © argﬁl preferably within the devels
opment it represents. Il there is no
community or rental space available, a
request to approve a vacant unit for
this non-dwelling use will be consid-
ered an a case-by-case basis.

(W a HA shall negotiate
willi the duly elected resident council
on all uses of community space for
meetings, recreation and social serv-
ices and other resident participation
activities pursuant to HUD guidelines.

uch _agreement 1

written document to be signed by tEﬁ
TA and Che resident council, If a

tent of resident participation including
resident management are local deci-
sions to be made jointly by resident
councils/resident management corpora-
tions and their HAs. HUD will promote
tenant participation and tenant oppor-
tunities programs, and will provide ad-
ditional guidance, as necessary and ap-
propriate. In addition, HUD will en-
deavor to provide technical assistance
in connection with these initiatives,

(b) Monitoring, HUD shall ensure that
the requirements under this part are
operating efficiently and effectively.

§964.18 HA role in activities under
subparts B & C.

shall officially recognize a duly
elected resident council as the sole rep-
resentative of the residents it purports

w{{? Juddds with) 260 wnits or mores (1) A

alls to negotiate with a resident coun-
cil in pood faith or, after negotiations,
rcfuses to permit such usage of commu-
nity space, the resident council may
file an informal appeal with HUD, set-
ting out the circumstances and pro-
viding copies of relevant materials evi-
dencing the resident council's efforts
to negotiate a written agreement. HUD
shall require the HA to respond with a
report stating the HA's reasons for re-
jecting the request or for refusing to
negotiate. HUD shall require the par-
ties (with or without direct HUD par-
ticipation) to undertake or to resume
negotiations on an agreement. If no
resolution is achieved within 90 days
from the date HUD required the parties
to undertake or resume such negotia-
tions, IUD shall serve notice on both

456

-

87




Office of the Assistant Secretary, HUD

parties that administrative remedies
have been exhausted (except that, pur-
suant to mutual agreement of the par-
ties, the time for negotiations may be
extended by no more than an addi-
tional 30 days).

(7) In no event shall HUD or a HA
rccognize a competing resident council
once a duly elected resident council
has been established. Any funding of
resident activities and resident input
into decisions concerning public hous-
ing operations shall be made only
through the officially recognized resi-
dent council.

(8) The HA shall ensure open commu-
nication and frequent meetings be-
tween HA management and resident
councils and shall encourage the for-
mation of joint HA management-resi-
dent committees to work on issues and
planning.

(9) The resident council shall hold
frequent meetings with the residents to
ensurc that residents have input, and
are aware and actively involved in HA
management-resident council decisions
and activities,

(10) The HA and resident council
shall put in writing in the form of a
Memorandum of Understanding the ele-
ments of their partnership agreement
and it shall be updated at least once
every three (3) years.

(11) The HA, in collaboration with
the resident councils, shall assume the
lead role for assuring maximum oppor-
tunities for skills training for public
housing residents. To the extent pos-
sible, the training resources should be
local to ensure maximum benefit and

housing s t
ating in programs under this party

4As shall nog deny residents the
opporLuni ; anize. If the resis
dents decide to organize and form a:

resident council, the HA shall comply
with the following:

© e :esem:at of the residents it
purports to represent, and support its
tenant participation activities.

(i) When requested by

resldents, a
A g!gﬁ” Eé(w!da appropriate guldance
to ssist them in estab-

§964.100

lishing and maintaining a resident
council,

) l.xmmm Mﬁ,
ficially recognize a competing resident

council once a duly elected resident

council has been established. M adu
lected msldanl. council —h
inte :
E"ﬂ‘ﬂjﬂg publie he using operations shal
be made only through the officia ally

tecognized resident. councily

§964.24 HUD policy on FIC Program.

HUD promotes [Family I[nvestrnent
Centers which provide better access Lo
cducational and employment opportu-
nities for residents living in public
housing. HUD encourages resident in-
valvement in the FIC Program and pro-
motes resident-HA partnerships ta
achieve mutual goals.

§964.30 Other Program requirements.

In addition ta the requirements set
forth in 24 CFR part §, the [ollowing
Federal requirements apply to this pro-
gram:

(a) Affirmative Outreach. (1) The Af-
firmative Fair Housing Marketing Pro-
gram requirements of 24 CFR part 200,
subpart M and the implementing regu-
lations at 24 CFR part 108; and

(2) The fair housing advertising and
poster guidelines at 24 CFR parts 109
and 110.

(b) Title II of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12131)
and implementing regulations at 28
CFR part 35.

[61 FR 5216, Feb. 9, 1996]

Subpart B—Tenant Participation

The role of a resident council is to
improve the quality of life and resident
satisfaction and participate in self-help
initiatives to enable residents to create
a positive living environment for fami-
lies living in public housing. Resident
councils may actively participate
through a warking partnership with

457

88




§964.105

the HA to advise and assist in all as;
pects of public housing gEeratfcn

§964.105 Role of the jurisdiction-wide
resident council.

(a) Jurisdiction-wide resident council.
Resident councils may come together
to form an organization which can rep-
resent the interest of residents residing
in units under a HA's jurisdiction. This
can be accomplished by the presidents
of duly elected resident councils form-
ing an organization, by resident coun-
cils electing a representative to the or-
ganization, or through jurisdiction-
wide elections. If duly elected resident
councils form such an organization, the
HA shall recognize it as the voice ol
authority-wide residents for input into
housing authority policy making.

(b) Function. The jurisdiction-wide
council may adviee the Board of Com
missioners and executive director in all
areas of MA operations, including but
riot limited to occupancy, general man-
agement, maintenance, security, resi-
dent training, resident employment,
social services and modernization pri-
orities.

(c) Cooperation with other groups.
There shall be regularly scheduled
meetings between the HA and the local
duly elected resident council, and the
jurisdiction-wide resident council to
discuss problems, plan activities and
review progress.

%]i%s gostdant council require-

A resident council shall consist of
' persons residing in public housing and,

st ],"ﬁgg %["‘%EI ol Lhe “]”“ﬂ“]? re-
quirem er to receive official

recognltion from the HA/HUD. au_q_lgg
. ib receive funds

council acL1v1t1es anl stipcnds for offi
Cers Tor their related costs lor volun:
¥&er work In public housing; -

“(a) [t may represent residents resid-
fng:

(1) In scattered site buildings;

(2) In areas of contiguous row houses;
or

(3) In one or more contiguous build-
ings;

(4) In a development; or

(5) In a combination of these build-
ings or developments;

24 CFR Ch. IX (4-1~00 Edition)

b) [t must adopt weltten procedures:
sucli as )¥- aws, or a constiLulion
which provides for the election of resi-
dents to the governing board by the
voting membership of the residents re-
slding in public housing, described in
paragraph (b) of this section, on a reg-
ular basis but at least once every thre
3 vs, The written procedures must
Ern\r e lor the regall of the resident

oard by the voting membership. These
provisions shall allow for a petition or
other expression of the voting member-
ship’s desire for a recall election, and
set the number of pereentage ol voting

on, . This threshold shall not b
IP.‘.'.:. than 10 percent of the voting mem-
beeship.
(c) . hav emocrati

1 a votlng memburshlp must con&i &
o , (any age) an
r}the! residents at least 18 years of age
or older and NAMe appears: o

; , in the public housing
that the resident council represents.

§964.117 Resident council partner-
ships.

A resident council may form partner-
ships with outside organizations, pro-
vided that such relationships are com-
plementary to the resident council in
its duty to represent the residents, and
provided that such outside organiza-
tions do not become the governing en-
tity of the resident council.

§964.120 Resident management cor-
poration requirements.

A resident management corporation
must consist of residents residing in
public housing and have each of the fol-
lowing characteristics in order to re-
ceive official recognition by the HA
and HUD:

(a) It shall be a non-profit organiza-
tion that is validly incorporated under
the laws of the State in which it is lo-
cated;

(h) It may be established by more
than one resldent council, so long as
each such council:

458

89




Office of the Assistant Secretary, HUD

(1) Approves the establishment of the
corporation; and

(2) Has representation on the Board
of Directors of the corporation;

(c) It shall have an elected Board of
Directors, and elections must be held
at least once every three (3) years;

(d) Its by-laws shall require the
Board of Directors to include resident
representatives of each resident coun-
cil involved in establishing the cor-
poration; include qualifications to run
for office. frequency of elections, proce-
dures for recall, and term limits if de-
sired.

(e) Its voting members shall be heads
of households (any age) and other resi-
dents at least 18 years of age and whose
name appears on the lease of a unit in
the public housing represented by the
resident management corporation;

(F) Where a resident coamcil already
exists for the development, or a portion
of the development, the resident man-
agement corperation shall be approved
by the resident council board and a ma-
jority of the residents. If there is no
resident council, a majority of the resi-
dents of the public housing develop-
ment it will represent must approve
the establishment of such a corpora-
tion for the purposes of managing the
project; and

(g) It may serve as both the resident
management corporation and the resi-
dent council, so long as the corporation
meets the requirements of this part for
a resident council.

§964.125 Eligibility for resident coun-
cil membership.
(a) Any member of a publlc housing

household
of a unit in the public housmg develop-
f

ol a resident council, The resident
council may establish additional cri-
teria Lh e :10:1-aiscrlu|inaLm'y and
do not infringe on rights of other resi-
dents in the development. Such criteria
must be stated in the by-laws or con-
stitution as appropriate.

(b) The right te vote for esideng
council board shall be Ilm,{ted to d

§964.130

public housing development rep-
resented by the resident council.

(c) Any qualified voting member of a
resident council who meets the require-
ments described in the by-laws and is
in compliance with the lease may seek
office and serve on the resident council
governing board.

§964.130 Election procedures and
standards.

At a minimum, a resident council

may use local electlon boards/commls-

3 Iing elcution pmcedums* J
(1) All procedures must assure fair
and frequent elections of resident coun-
cil members—at least once every three
s for each member.
5@ terms for residen
courncil avcrni board members an
ferm lmits shal be discretionary wit
the resident council.

(3) [Fach resident council ghall adopg
apid_issue_election and reca proce;

» by-law,
(1) The election procedures shall in-
clude qualifications to run for office,
frequency of elections, procedures for
rec all, and term limits if desired.

5) All voting members of the resi-
dr'nt cammunity 1St be give

' election, The nc ould
include a description of electionﬁ‘

dures, eligibility requirements, and
dates of nominations and elections,

~(b) If a resident council fails to sat-
isfy HUD minimum standards for [air
and frequent elections, or fails to fol-
low its own elecltlon procedures as
adopted, HUD shall require the HA
ithdraw™ recognition ol the msmé@

o unction with services rendere
asident_participation in public

dgnated heads ol households (any age
and other members of the household
who are 18 years or older whose name
appears on the lease of a unit in the

couficil eld process and shall -
FabIish a procedure o appealﬁ
Verse. decision relating to fallure to

tisfy HUD minimum standards, ouch:
appeal shall he submitted to a jointly

selected third-party arbitrator at the

459

90




%&Q\)u’&\&‘—_

A Q;\\QM

§964.135

local level. If costs are incurred by
using a third-party arbitrator, then
such costs should be paid from the HAs
resident services funds pursuant to
§964.150,

Residents shall be involved and par-
ticipate in the v 1i

eratio
a esident management corpora-

tions (RMCs) may contract with HAs
to perform one or more management
functions provided the resident entity
has received sufficient training and/or
has staff with the necessary expertise
to perform the management functions
and provided the RMC meets bonding

and licensing requirements.
(hmﬂmhﬁk be actively i
vslved ima HA's d maleing proe:
ess-and: give advice-on matters-suahas
medernization, seeurlty.-maintenance,
and selection; and

(c) While a HA has responsibility for
management operatlons, it shall ensure
strong resident participation in all

———issues and facets of Hmﬂmm
through the duly elected resident. coun-

cils at public housing developments,
and with jurisdiction-wide resident
councils,
(d) A HA shall work in partnership
w the duly elected resident councils.
%HAS upon _request from the duly
'Fted resident council, shall
Ehat. the duly elected resident m
officers as defined in subpart B of this

part, and other residents in the devele
opmenl. are [u trained and involwv

Ve g
eral programs_Including but not lim-
TTed %.n Comprehensive Improvement
TAssistance  Program (CIAP), Com-
prehensive Grant Program, Urban Re-
vitalization Demonstration, Drug

Elimination, and FIC.

*r)miﬂdﬂl_mmbzgmmumum
v M4
gﬂ:{,c_m and other interested residents

al the development through education
and direct participation in all phases of

l.lipb dgetary process.

to become involve
lesident screening and selection proc-
css for prospective residents at the de-

24 CFR Ch. IX (4-1-00 Edition)

velopment. Jhose selecte% to perform
resident screening and selection func-
tions in
resident screening and selection and

ting to confidentiality, :

(a) Resident trammg opportumtxes
HUD between
the residents, the HA and HUD, as well
as with the public and non-profit sec-
tors to pravide training opportunities
for public housing residents. The cat-
egories in which training could occur
include, but are not Hmited ta:

(1) Community organization and
leadership training;

(2} Organizational development train-
ing for Resident Management Corpora-
tions and duly elected Resident Coun-
cils;

(3} Public housing paticies, programs,
rights and responsibilities training;
and

(4) Business entrepreneurial training,
planning and job skills.

(b) Local training resources. YD en;

oura the use of local training re-

sources to ensure the ongoing accessi-
bility and availability of persons to
provide training and technical assist-
ance. Possible training resources may
include:

(1) Resident organizations;

(2) Housing authorities;

(3) Local community colleges, voca-
tional schools; and

(4) HUD and other Federal agencies
and other local public, private and non-
profit organizations.

§964.145 Conflict of interest.

Resident councll officers can not
serve as contractors or employees if
they are in policy making or super-
visory positions at the HA.

@h dling duly elocte rosident couns
ells and jurisdiction wide resident coun-
ovid,

r'H'r (1) The HA slall .

: resident council &
% and/or those jul fen-wide
‘ounclls eliglhle to recelve the resident
portion of the tenant services account

460

P —rere B
1St K7V, aRLy

91




Office of the Assistant Secretary, HUD

to use for resident participation activi-
ties,
2 T as
provided by 24 CFR part 990, to permit
HAs to fund $25 per unit per year for
units represented by duly elected resi-
dent councils for resident servlces,m
f

Jget_to the availabilit

biong. QLU

ear would
icipati t £

B of this part for duly elected resident

councils andfor jurisdiction-wide coun-

his part,

conducting elections, vecalls or_arhiz
fration re%uircd under §964.130 in sub-
part B. is will guarantee the re-
sources necessary to create a bona fide
partnership among the duly elected
resident councils, the HA and HUD.
Where both local and jurisdiction-wide
councils exist, the distribution will be
agreed upon by the HA and the respec-
tive.councils.

\(2) If funds are available through
prépriationy. the HA must provide ten-
ant services funding duly elected

resident councils 1'cﬁat'dle.s.s ol the HA'S
?_ua_rlggu_@;m e resident counci
unds shall not be impacted or re-
stricted by the HA flnancial status and
all said funds must be used for the pur-
pose set forth in subparts B and C of
this part.

(3) The HA and the duly elected resi-
dent council_at gach develgpment, and/
or those Jjurlsdiction-wide councils

Fal-l'cﬁllabnraﬁs on how the funds witk
e distributed for tenant participation

‘gctiv-l-ﬂgg If disputes regarding funding
ecisions arise between the parties, the
matter shall be ;e.ferred to the Fleld
Office for intervention, HUD Field Of-

fice shall require the parties to under-
take [urther negotiations to resolve
the dispute. If no resolution is achieved
within 90 days from the date of the
Field Office Intervention, the Field Of-

i ) encourages HAs
t. ovide stipends to resident council
officers who serve as volunteers in
their public housing developments. Jheg
amount of the stipend, up to $200 peg

§964.200

HA. Subject to appropriations,
pends will be funded from the

onth/per offic decided lo-
cally by the resEd - council g;\ég the

cils and $]0 per unit per year would bg

ysed by the HA to pay for costs ig: m&‘-

‘. cgrmd in carrying out tenant Q;_lrtjg]?
ation activities under %g?:ggé &0

council's !Jortlon of the oEemtinE ng_h::

penses ($15.00 per unit per year),
2) Pursuant to §913.106, stipends are

not to be construed as salaries and
should not be included as income for
calculation of rents, and are not sub-
ject to conflict of interest require-
ments.

| unding provided by a HA ta a
duly elected resident council_may. lig,

betwe e [IA and a resident council,
which Includes a resident council budg-
& and  assurance that all 5@5&
council expenditures  will not  cons

rravene pravisions ot law and will pro-
“fiote serviceabllity, efficiency, econ-.
By and stability in the

The local development

must require the logal 1

Subpart C—Tenant Opportunities ———

Program

§964.200 General,

(@) The Tenant Opportunities Pro-
gram (TOP) provides technical assist-
ance for various activities, including
but not limited to resident manage-
ment, for resident councils/resident
management corporations as author-
ized by Section 20 of the U.S. Housing
Act of 1937, The TOP provides opportu-
nities for resident organizations to im-
prove living conditions and resident
satisfaction in public housing commu-
nities,

(b) This subpart establishes the poli-
cies, procedures and requirements for
participating in the TOP with respeclL
to applications for funding for pro-
grams identified in this subpart.

(c) This subpart contains the policies,
procedures and requirements for the
resident management program as au-
thorized by section 20 of the U.S. Hous-
ing Act of 1937,

461

) SASS
a5 O

NOTATRLLAE

92




§964.350

(1) The
continue
cause; or

ufficiency ngram who are
ing the escrow account.

examinations.
(a) Each HA rege

O the acceptance and use of assist s
by private nonprofit organizations,

Subpart E—Resident Bocrd
Members

SOURCE: (4 FR 56879, Oct. 21, 1999, unless
otherwise noted.

§964.400 Purpose.

The purpose of this subpart is to im-
plement section 2(b) of the United
States Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C.
1437).

§964.,405 Applicability.

(a) General. Except as described in
paragraph (b) of this section, this sub-
part applies to any public housing
agency that has a public housing an-
nual contributions contract with HUD
or administers tenant-based rental as-
sistance under section 8 of the United
States Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C.
1437).

24 CFR Ch. IX (4-1-00 Edition)

(b) Exceptions. The requirements of
this subpart do not apply to a public
housing agency that is:

(1) Located in a State that requires
the members of a governing board to be
salaried and to serve on a full-time
basis; or

(2) Not governed by a governing
board.

§964.410 Additional definitions.

The following additional definitions
apply to this subpart only:

Directly assisted. Directly assisted
means a public housing resident or a
recipient of housing assistance in the
tenant-based section 8 program. Direct
assistance does not include any State
financed housing assistance or Section
8 project-based assistance.

Eligthle resident. An eligible resident
is a person:

(1) Who is directly assisted by a pub-
lic housing agency;

(2) Whose name appears on the lease;
and

(3) Is eighteen years of age or older.

Governing board. Governing board
means the board of directors or similar
governing body of a public housing
agency.

Resident board member. A resident
board member is a member of the gov-
erning board who is directly assisted
by that public housing agency.

$964,415 Resident board members.

(a) Ccneral. Except as provided in
§§964.405(b) and 964.425, the membership
of the governing board of each public
housing agency must contain not less
than one eligible resident board mem-
ber.

(b) Resident board member no longer di-
rectly assisted. (1) A resident board
member who ceases to be directly as-
sisted by the public housing agency is
no longer an ‘‘eligible resident’ as de-
fined in §964.410.

(2) Such a board member may be re-
moved from the PHA board for that
cause, where such action is permitted
under State or local law.

(3} Alternatively, the board member
may be allowed to complete his/her
current term as a member of the gov-
erning board. However, the board mem-
ber may not bc re-appointed (or re-

468

93




Office of the Assistant Secretary, HUD

elected) to the governing board for pur-
poses of serving as the statutorily re-
quired resident board member.

(c) Minimum qualifications for board
membership. Any generally applicable
qualifications for board membership
also apply to residents, unless the ap-
plication of the requirements would re-
sult in the governing board not con-
taining at least one eligible resident as
a member. Further, PHAs and local-
ities may not establish eligibility re-
quirements for board membership that
are solely applicable to residents.

§964:420 Resident board member may
be elected.

(a) General. Residents directly as-
sisted by a public housing agency may
elect a resident baard member if pro-
vided for in the public housing agency
plan, adopted in accordance with 24
CFR part 903.

(b) Notice to residents. The public
housing agency must provide residents
with at least 30 days advance notice for
nominations and elections. The notice
should include a description of the
election procedures, eligibility require-
ments, and dates of nominations and
elections. Any election procedures de-
vised by the public housing agency
must facilitate fair elections.

§964.426 Small public housing agen-
cies. i

(a) General The requirements of this
subpart do not apply to any public
housing agency that:

(1) Has less than 300 public housing
units (or has no public housing units);

(2) Has provided reasonable notice to
the resident advisory board of the op-
portunity for residents to serve on the
governing board;

(3) Has not. been notified of the inten-
tion of any resident to participate on
the governing board within a reason-
able time (which shall not be less than
30 days) of the resident advisory board
receiving the notice described in para-
graph (a)(3) of this section; and

(1) Repeats the requirements of para-
graphs (a)(2) and (a)(3) of this section
at least once every year.

(by Public housing agencies that only
administer Section 8 assistance. A public
housing agency that has no public
housing units, but administers Section

§964.430

8§ tenant-based assistance, is eligible
for the exception described in para-
graph (a) of this section, regardless of
the number of Section 8 vouchers it ad-
ministers.

(c) Failure to meet requirements for ex-
ception. A public housing agency that is
otherwise eligible for the exception de-
scribed in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this
section, but daes not meet the three
conditions described in paragraphs
(a)(2) through (a)(4) of this section,
must comply with the requirements of
this subpart.

§964.430 Nondiscrimination.

(a) Membership status.—(l} Ceneral, A
resident board member is a full mem-
ber of the governing board.

(2) Resident participation must (nclude
matters regarding Federal public housing
and Section § tenant-based assistance. A
resident board member must be al-
lowed to take part in decisions related
to the administration, operation, and
management of Federal public housing
programs and Section 8 tenant-based
rental assistance programs. This rule
does not extend to matters that:

(i) Exclusively relate to other types
of housing assistance (such as State fi-
nanced housing assistance); or

(ii) Do not involve housing assistance
(as may occur where the city or county
governing body also serves as the PHA
board).

(3) Public housing agency may expand
scope of resident participation. A public
housing agency may choase to expand
the scope of resident member involve-
ment to matters not required under
paragraph (a)(2) of this section.

(b) Residence status. A governing
board may not prohibit any person
from serving on the governing board
because that person is a resident of a
public housing project or is assisted
under section 8 of the United States
Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437f).

() Conflict of Interest. A governing
board may not exclude any resident
board member from participating in
any matter before the governing board
on the grounds that the resident board
member's lease with the public housing
agency, or the resident board member's
status as a public housing resident or
reciplent of Section 8 tenant-based as-
sistance, either results or may result

469

94




Pt. 965

in a conflict of interest, unless the
matter is clearly applicable to the resi-
dent board member only in a personal
capacity and applies uniquely to that
member and not generally to residents
to a subcategory of residents.

PART 965—PHA-OWNED OR
LEASED PROJECTS—GENERAL
PROVISIONS

Subpart A—Preemption of State Prevailing
Wage Requirements

Sec,
965.101 Preemption of State prevailing wage
requirements.

Subpart B—Required Insurance Coverage

965.201 Purpose and applicability,
965.205 Qualified PHA-owned insurance enti-

ty.
965.215 Lead-based palnt liability insurance
coverage,

Subpart C—Energy Audits and Energy
Conservation Measures

965.301 Purpose and applicability.

965.302 Requirements for energy audits,

965.303 [Reserved].

965.304 Order of funding.

965.305 Funding.

965.306 Energy conservation equipment and
practices.

965.307 Cornpliance schedule.

965.308 Energy performance contracts.

Subpart D—Individual Metering of Utilities
for Existing PHA-Owned Projects

965.401 Individually metered utilities.

965.402 Benefit/cost analysis,

965.403 Funding.

965.404 Order of conversion.

965.405 Actions affecting residents,

065.106 Benefit/cost analysis for similar
projects.

965.407 Reevaluations of mastermeter sys-
tems,

Subpart E—Resident Allowances for Utilities

965.501 Applicability,

965.502 Establishiment of utility allowances
by PHAs.

965.503 Categories for establishment of al-
lowances.

965.504 Period for which allowances are es-
tablished.

965.505 Standards for allowances for utili-
ties,

965.506 Surcharges for excess consumption
of PHA-furnished utillties.

965.507 Review and revision ol allowances.

24 CFR Ch. IX (4-1-00 Edition)
965.508 Individual relief.

Subpart F—Physical Condition Standards
and Physical Inspection Requirements

965.601 Physical condition standards; phys-
ical inspection requirements.

Subpart G [Reserved]

Subpart H—Lead-Based Paint Poisoning
Prevention

965.701 Lead-based paint poisoning preven-
tion.

Subpart —Fire Safety

965.800 Applicability.
9654805 Smoke detectors.

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 1437, 1437a, I437d,
1437g, and 3535(d). Subpart H is also issued
under 42 U.S.C, 4821-4846.

SOURCE: 41 FR 20276, May 17, 1976, unless
otherwise noted. Redesignated at 49 FR 6714,
Feh. 23, 1984.

Subpart A—Preemption of State
Prevailing Wage Requirements

$965.101 Preemption of State pre-
vailing wage requirements.

(a) A prevailing wage rate including
basic hourly rate and any fringe bene-
fits) determined under State law shall
be inapplicable to a contract or PHA-
performed work item for the develop-
ment, maintenance, and modernization
of a project whenever:

(1) The contract or work item: (i) Is
otherwise subject to State law requir-
ing the payment of wage rates deter-
mined by a State or local government
or agency to be prevalling and (ii) is as-
sisted with funds for low-income public
housing under the U.S. Housing Act of
1937, as amended; and

(2) The wage rate determined under
State law to be prevailing with respect
to an employee in any trade or position
employed in the development, mainte-
nance, and modernization of a project
exceeds whichever of the following
Federal wage rates is applicable:

(i) The wage rate determined by the
Secretary of Labor pursuant to the
Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a et seq.)
to be prevailing in the locality with re-
spect to such trade;

470

95




TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WHEREAS, the Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC) has owned and successfully operated
the Riverview Terrace housing development for nearly forty years and has worked diligently to
provide an enjoyable and peaceful environment for its residents; and

WHEREAS, the currently established and duly elected Riverview Terrace Resident Council
(Resident Council) is a formally recognized nonprofit entity in good standing with the State of
Michigan (ID No. 71656F) and the Internal Revenue Service that was established to encourage

resident involvement in creating a positive living environment; and

WHEREAS, TCHC and Resident Council desire to enter into a collaborative relationship to
support the tenants of the Riverview Terrace in accordance with the understanding of the

implementation of the provisions of 24 C.F.R. 964; and
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between TCHC and the Resident Council as follows:

1. Upon execution of this MOU, TCHC will formally recognize the Resident Council and
consider it to be the voice of the majority of Riverview Terrace residents.

2. TCHC will, when appropriate, communicate through the Resident Council President on
issues regarding the resident’s overall enjoyment of Riverview Terrace.

3. The Resident Council will, when appropriate, communicate through the Executive
Director on issues regarding the resident’s overall enjoyment of Riverview Terrace.

4. TCHC will disperse Tenant Participation Funds to the Residents Council in a timely
manner and in accordance with 24 C.F.R. 964.150:

{a) Funding duly elected resident councils.
(1) The Housing Authority shall provide funds it receives for this purpose to the duly elected

resident council at each development... as provided by 24 CFR part 990, to permit HAs to
fund $25 per unit per year for units represented by duly elected resident councils for resident
services.... Of this amount, 515 per unit per year would be provided to fund tenant
participation activities under subpart B of this part for duly elected resident councils... and
$10 per unit per year would be used by the HA to pay for costs incurred in carrying out
tenant participation activities under subpart B of this part.... This will guarantee the resources
necessary to create a bona fide partnership among the duly elected resident councils, the HA

and HUD.

5. The Resident Council will provide a proposed budget in advance of disbursement and
will report financial activity to the TCHC Executive Director in a timely manner which

Page 1 of 2
84

96



includes both monthly and annual financial reports in accordance with 24 C.F.R.
964.150:

(3) Funding provided by a HA to a duly elected resident council may be made only under a
written agreement between the HA and a resident council, which includes a resident council
budget and assurance that all resident council expenditures will not contravene provisions of
law and will promote serviceability, efficiency, economy and stability in the operation of the
local development. The agreement must require the local resident council to account to the
HA for the use of the funds and permit the HA to inspect and audit the resident council's

financial records related to the agreement.

6. TCHC agrees to provide an “office” to the Resident Council on the third floor of the
building. Located within the Community Room of Riverview Terrace, this office has an
estimated value for rent of $300.00 per month and is intended for the sole purpose of
Riverview Terrace resident business as directed through the duly adopted by-laws.
Additional office support will be provided from time to time and in a case by case
manner that may include but will not be limited to the following: assistance with the
purchase of, or donation of, office supplies and office equipment; the provision of office
furniture; and assistance, when appropriate, in communication with all building
residents through newsletters, memorandums, or building-wide fliers.

7. This MOU will be in effect for three years from the date of execution but may be
terminated by either party with sixty (60) days written notice.

We, the undersigned, have read and agree with this MOU:

/;/wéﬂ/{"{ WAY/ A

Tény Lentych, for thé’ Priscilla Townsenﬂffor the
Riverview Terrace Resident Council, its

Traverse City Housing Commlssmn, its
Executive Director President

DATE: 4’1‘/%//9’, Ze/s oate: K=/ F 2o 4

Page 2 of 2
85

97



Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

CORRESPONDENCE

April 20, 2017 Letter of Support for Goodwill Industries and Continuum of Care

TCHC Memorandum to the City of Traverse City on Building Height Restrictions
TCHC Annual Report to the City of Traverse City

98



The City of Traverse City
TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION o‘.’.o
150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
T:(231) 922-4915 | F:(231) 922-2893

TDD: (800) 649-3777

-

April 20, 2017

Tina Allen

Northwest Michigan Continuum of Care Coordinator
10120 Deerpath South

Traverse City, Michigan 49685

Dear Tina:

Please accept this letter of support for the Substance Abuse & Mental Health Services Administration
Grant for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals proposal by Goodwill Industries of Northern Michigan on
behalf of the Northwest Michigan Continuum of Care (NWMCoC). The Traverse City Housing
Commission has successfully partnered with Goodwill Industries in the past and plans to assist in this
endeavor in any way we can.

Our organization appreciates the opportunity for our community to expand local implementation of
comprehensive homeless programs and services that our NWMCoC members offer. We are excited to
see that this grant includes addressing immediate substance abuse and mental health needs of the
homeless population, greater access to benefits and more availability of on-going housing supports to
improve long term housing and health outcomes.

Existing programs such as Goodwill’s Street Outreach, Northwest Michigan Supportive Housing’s HUD
Permanent Supportive Housing, Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency’s Coordinated Entry and
Traverse Health Clinic’'s Homeless Shelter Nurse Triage serve as a strong foundation to meet the goals of
the this grant. NWMCoC is well-regarded for its ability to work closely together and with community
partners to end homelessness in Northern Michigan. These proposed services will meet significant gaps
in our rural community and maximize the resources available to us, allowing our community to serve
homeless individuals more comprehensively, with a goal to end their homelessness permanently.

Should you need any additional information from me or if | can be of any further assistance, please do
not hesitate to call me directly.

Respectfully,

g et L

Tony L ych
Executive Director

Page lof1

99



Goodwill Industries of Northern Michigan and Greater Grand Traverse Continuum of Care
SAMHSA Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals (GBHI) Project Outline

Problem/Population of Focus: Men and women experiencing homelessness, particularly chronic and
long-term homelessness, frequently struggle with co-occurring mental health and substance use
disorders. The relationship between these issues is a highly complex mosaic of causation, consequence,
exacerbation and co-morbidity. SAMHSA estimates that 35-40% of all individuals experiencing
homelessness in the U.S. are living with a substance use disorder, and that approximately 50% to 70% of
persons who are homeless with mental iliness misuse substances (i.e. co-occurring diagnosis) (Substance
Abuse Treatment and Housing Leadership Forum Framing Paper, CSH, October 6, 2014.). Based on the
local Goodwill Street Outreach caseload, 40% of clients experiencing chronic homelessness are living
with a substance use disorder, and 77% of them also have a mental iliness, the upper bounds of the
national data. For many people experiencing homelessness, substance use and misuse is embedded in
experiences of trauma, mental illness, and physical comorbidities that require concurrent attention and
resources. Moreover, the challenges of the social stigma, discrimination and marginalization of people
living with substance use disorders, mental iliness, criminal records, and/or the experience of
homelessness itself cannot be understated. Homelessness compounds these challenges, making
something manageable become daunting, such as following treatment recommendations for chronic
illness and acute medical needs. The longer someone is homeless, the more chronic and entrenched
their substance and mental health barriers hecome. Sadly, these harriers often impair the ability of
these suffering men and women to attain the essential benefits (Health Coverage, SSI/SSDI, Food
Assistance, Veteran’s Benefits, etc.), as well as to engage with mainstream support systems (Primary
Care, Mental Health treatment, Substance Use Disorder treatment, etc.) that would help break the cycle

of homelessness and begin their recovery journeys.

Street Outreach brings supports to where people are experiencing homelessness — the streets. Trained
staff works with individuals and families who are experiencing street homelessness using person-
centered, trauma-informed and evidence-based approaches like “Motivational Interviewing” to
establish a trusting, non-judgmental relationship and connect them with supports and services to meet
both their immediate needs and long-term need for permanent, safe, and stable housing. In addition, all
Street Outreach program staff are SOAR trained and well versed in the processes for accessing

mainstream benefits.

Those experiencing Co-Occurring Disorders are often the most difficult to engage, house, and support.
Street Outreach is a vital part of the community’s crisis response network, helping to maintain contact
with these vulnerable men and women, and assisting them in navigating an often confusing and
intimidating system of agencies, applications, and programs. However, there remain gaps in our
community’s ability to provide comprehensive support to those individuals who need intensive
guidance, support and assistance in obtaining mainstream benefits. This work requires a large time
commitment dedicated to this population, and often competes with the overall support needs of all
Street Outreach clients. Further, Street Outreach workers are not Behavioral Health or Medical care
providers, and often struggle in facilitating men and women experiencing homelessness in engaging in

100



routine and non-emergent care that requires them to proactively schedule and attend an appointment
at a specific place and time. This lack of access to care is a barrier to housing because individuals are
unable to obtain the documentation verifying their disabling conditions required by Federally funded
Permanent Supportive Housing programs.

Program Proposal: This SAMHSA GBHI project proposal is intended to increase access and engagement
in care throughout the process of navigating men and women from homelessness to permanent
housing, as well as maintain supports to ensure that no one returns to homelessness.

e Street Outreach would create a position dedicated to serving this specific population. This COD
Outreach Specialist would engage with individuals and families to facilitate their enrollment in
all eligible mainstream benefits (Medicaid, Social Security, Food Assistance, etc.) and help
coordinate access to necessary medical, substance use and/or mental health treatment. This
position would be uniquely able to follow clients through events that would disqualify them
from traditional homeless services, such as an extended jail sentence or couch surfing/doubling
up.

e Local medical and behavioral health providers (Munson — Emergency Dept, Behavioral Health,
Family Practice; Traverse Health Clinic; Community Mental Health; Addiction Treatment
Services; Women's Resource Center) would be engaged and contracted to develop a Street
Medicine Program modeled off of the successful programs in other communities like Pittsburg,
PA and Detroit, Mi. The program will work with local healthcare providers (Hospital/Emergency
Department) and emergency personnel (Law Enforcement, EMTs, Fire Department, etc.) to
provide these hidden/difficult to serve men and women with basic medical care, as well as
screening, diagnosis, and initial treatment of mental health and substance use disorders. The
ultimate goal would be to transition these men and women into mainstream care providers and
facilitate development of a recovery support network.

e  Goodwill would partner with local housing programs (Northern Michigan Supportive Housing,
Traverse City Housing Commission, etc.) to fund intensive Housing-Based Case Management
supports to this high-need population as they transition into housing. Case management
supports would follow the individual as long as they are needed, helping navigate the transition
to housing, continuing to build on the foundation of wellness and recovery, and proactively
intervening to prevent unsuccessful exits and returns to homelessness. Case Managers would
facilitate a person- or family-centered efforts to “wrap-around” supports to ensure that these
men and women are not only able to maintain sobriety and housing, but to thrive and create a

life of meaning and value.

101



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM

DATE: April 3, 2017

TO: All Commissioners of the City of Traverse City
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directo;‘v

SUBJECT: Implementation Policy for Building Height Restriction
MESSAGE:

After reviewing your policy document on the implementation of the new language added to Section 28
of the City Charter, the Traverse City Housing Commission has a few areas of concern — mostly centered
the around Section 4 of the Policy: “Pre-Existing Buildings”. | recognize that you had a quite the
complicated task of trying to review all possible scenarios for implementation. The document presented
certainly represents a lot of work but the issue surrounding Pre-Existing Buildings may need some
additional conversation or a simple exploration of facts.

Riverview Terrace is a “lawfully constructed building that pre-dates,” these proposed policy changes and
is therefore exempt from this policy. Should Riverview Terrace be damaged, however, the City is
proposing a threshold to rebuild or rehab that seems artificial to me. While | would agree that if we
razed our building after some “event” that destroyed much of our structure, we would need to follow
the procedures outlined in your Policy should we want to rebuild a structure over 60 feet. But I do not
understand why the policy is triggered if our building suffers damage that exceeds 50% of its true cash
value. We have never had any reason to challenge the assessed or true cash value of this property
because we submit a PILOT calculation and not a tax payment. It seems that would be an unnecessary
conversation or debate to have to have after such an event. We would rather get to work on rebuilding
the homes that are lost and not argue about whether or not some threshold is triggered and an election

is needed to proceed.

it seems that the easiest policy suggestion would be for Riverview Terrace to be exempt from this policy
as long as it is rebuilt to be what it was before such an event occurred - if our footprint is not altered or
overall design of the exterior is not changed, we should not have to submit our plans to a vote of the
people. Riverview Terrace should be allowed to continue to be Riverview Terrace — and without

unnecessary delays.

| do not believe that TCHC's concern requires any delay in approving your overall policy but | wanted to
at least highlight this issue. If City staff and our team can meet in the near future to discuss this, we may
be able to make it a non-issue or at least get all the facts on the table so that we know what to expect

after some unlikely event.

Page lof 1
102



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: April 17, 2017
TO: The City Manager and All Commissioners of the City of Traverse
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directeﬂi\/

SUBJECT: Annual Report
MESSAGE:

The Traverse City Housing Commission is please to present to you its report on operations for
the program and fiscal year 2016. | have previously submitted our certified annual audit to the
Office of the City Manager but am attaching a brief presentation about our overall programs
and plans. In summary, | can report that our organization is financially sound. We are working
toward accomplishing our operational goals. And we are excited about our potential moving

forward.

We began 2016 with an investment in Riverview Terrace (new base-board heaters) and we
ended it with a construction project to renovate our office (providing an open concept and
most importantly, easy accessibility to all). In between, we managed our organizational change
well; we rose to meet some challenges; and we fell short in others areas of our mission. | wish
that we could be reporting the start of a new TCHC housing project somewhere in our
community but | cannot do so today. Nonetheless, we prepare daily to make this happen one

way or another in the near future.

Our audit was conducted in late October of 2016 and finalized in early December. The
independent audit included the respective financial position of all business-type activities as of
June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the
purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in
all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP). Our accountants reported to our Commissioners there were no
findings, difficulties, or disagreements found during the audit process.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS & ANALYSIS FROM THE AUDIT
e The term “net position” refers to the difference between assets and liabilities. The
Housing Commission’s total net position at year-end was $2,457,172. The net position
decreased by $47,185, or 1.9% from the prior year.

Page 1 of 4
103



e Revenues and contributions for the Housing Commission were $2,173,532 during the
year. This was an increase of $379,833 or 22% from the prior year.

e Expenses for the Housing Commission were $2,220,717 during the year. This was an
increase of $390,909 or 20% from the prior year.

e HUD operating grants were $1,425,207 during the year. This represents an increase of
$288,694 or 25% from the prior year. Capital contributions were $158,571 during the
year. This was an increase of $46,056 or 41% from the prior year.

e Over time, changes in net position may serve as a useful indicator of the Housing
Commission’s financial position. As stated, assets exceeded liabilities by $2,457,172 at
the close of the fiscal year, a decrease of $47,185. The decrease in net position was
primarily attributed to normal business fluctuations from year to year.

e The unrestricted net position was $922,963 at year-end. This amount may be used to
meet the Housing Commission’s ongoing obligations. The Housing Commission had net
position classified as restricted in the amount of $38,162 which is subject to external
restrictions on how the funds may be used. The amount of restricted net position is
restricted for unexpended loan proceeds. At the end of the year, the Housing
Commission is able to report positive balances in all categories of net position. The same
situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

in December, our Commissioners met in a planned study session to review our Strategic Plan,
to summarize our accomplishments for the prior year, and to set goals for 201/. Pam Evans
from the NorthSky Nonprofit Network served as our facilitator.

Here are some of the highlights:

2016 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

e Staffing model and roles — job descriptions; performance reviews; policies review and
updates underway plus we navigated staff turnovers and transitions; a staffing model for
the future is in place.

e Good start on communication plan and process; needs to be continued.

e Public is more aware of who we are with positive and negative debates but potentially
has brought unity and a more educated public

e Found some possible properties.

e Residents have established a better platform for communicating and stating their views.

e Moved forward in collaborating with other nonprofits and like-minded individuals about
issues and need.

e Structure of board — more effective and the inclusion of a city commissioner helpful.

e Demonstrated we’re a capable partner (e.g., Carson Square project).

e Policy work has been accomplished. TCHC has been included in majority of housing
discussions in the city and around the county/region. Plus staff has brought us more state
visibility; we have more of a voice at the state level.

Page 2 of 4

104



e Physical appearance and landscaping is great.

CHALLENGES

e Environment for affordable housing went negative for a while and it will be for some
time. There is strong leadership at the city and business level but still some builders are
challenged and the public is not always supportive

e What we build needs to make sense to the community but making sense to the
community does not always meet the requirements of funding sources.

e Public sentiment, financial realities and government requirements are three big sectors
we need to influence.

e The cost of building in this county just does not work for affordable housing. We cannot
satisfy demand for lower rents within the city limits. We also cannot be outside city
limits unless government says they’ll fund it/ subsidize it. We need to change the
financial paradigm (it is not 100% public will or intent — it is financial barriers).

MEASURES OF SUCCESS IN 2017
e Affordable housing inventory has increased in region; whether we facilitated or built it
ourselves; it hasn’t decreased; while in progress or completed our work could result in
50 new units.
Our two current properties are well-managed.
e Internal Operations are well-managed.

As noted above, last year was also a year of great change for our staff. Our long-time Deputy
Director, JoAnn Turnbull, officially retired in November and we missed her immediately. Her
retirement coupled with a new fiscal year that called for the creation of a new staff person,
allowed us to hire three (3) new persons for our operations: A new Deputy Director, a new
Intake/Office Manager, and a new assistant director in maintenance. We had well over 100
applications for all three positions. | am personally excited about our team as we go forward in

fulfilling our mission.

I would also like to report that | appreciate all of the interest and feedback | have received from
our City Commission and the City staff. |truly feel that we have an open dialogue with
everyone on the Commission and at the City — this is greatly appreciated. in 2016, in
consultation with City Manager, Marty Colburn, | reached out to your Human Resources
department for professional guidance and qualified assistance with our HR needs. This has led
to a great on-going working relationship. | would like to thank Mayor Carruthers for his interest
in, and visits to, our facilities; all of our residents are impressed that he takes the time to stop
by from time to time. | would be remiss if | did not publically thank Commissioner Brian Haas
for service to the Housing Commission. His dedication, guidance, and leadership are invaluable

to us.

Page 3 of 4

105



On a final note, | wish to publically thank both our Police Chief, Jeff O’Brien and our Fire Chief,
Jim Tuller for their respective departments’ work with my staff and our program participants.
During the last year, we have developed a closer relationship with both departments and we
have been able to solve problems and address areas of concern BEFORE it becomes too great of

a problem. We are a better agency because of their efforts.

ATTACHMENT: Presentation Materials

Page 4 of 4

106



"219 ‘@iuelsisse JuawAed umop ‘sasusdxs UOIIEINPa JO) PISN UL JUNODIE

MODIDS3 BYL "JUNOIDB MOIs3 ue uf Aauow Buines 9)iym s|eod J1ay) aaaiyde

031 iom pue uonjedidilied JO 10eIIU0D JBIA-BAI4 € UBIS SluedILeg “JUBIDIYNS-J(3S

20w 2w00aq 03 A1essadau SINIIGe Pue s||ixs )i 3YI pue UOKEINPA 3yY] UjeIgo

swesdold uisnoH 21jgnd pue ADH JNO Ul S3Y|IUE PUE SIENPIAIPUL BLLIOIUI-MO|
JNno 151558 0] Wwesdoig Auapyings yas-Ajlwey sy payoune] JHOL '5,066T 912 Yl U] »

FEIIEY)

82In0saY S,UsWop 3y Aq paiessdo pue paumo sl ‘AepoL “ISNOH S,aulBjPpeI
SE UMoUy 3U10339 PjNoM 1eyl asnoy e palen|iqeyas pue paseydnd am ‘66T Ul »

PIP @M UBYM SIUMOBLLIOY R/ T JBA0 panas am Ing wesdoud siyy apinosd

193uof ou ap "wesdosd 9ga) 3yl Aq papuny — siiedas J3UMOBLLIOY BWOIUI-MO|
Joj weidoud e 31e43d0o 03 AJunod) 3s51aAeLY PUBID UUM passuled JHIL ‘YEET Ul «

ANNOYONIVY B AHOLSIH DHDL

'SWO01paq ¢ PUe £ 2B SUUN |[e — S3l{IWey JOJ AUNWWOod Juisnoy 3|qepioye Jun
Tz & s 3 ‘Aepoy -(AuD ay1 ojul paxauue mou) Awuno) neue|as ul p3ledo| xajdwod
uswpede 3uN OZ B SAWOYUMO] MBIAPIBYIIQ UO UOIPDNIISUOI UeSaq am ‘bEET Ul

*31q18153 s1 Ayuno) pIosxapA Jo uoniod uByuoL 3y}

Ajuo Inq |e303 S31IUNOD 9 — ALY 95J2ARI] JO SI|ILL O UIYHM DURISISSE [BIUSI Y1IM
S3l|iwie) J0/pue sjenpiaipul 80z 031 dn spiroid mou ued weudousd ay) "uoial siyy
104 (ADH) s13Ydn0A 3310y) BUISNOH 8 UOIIDDS PapIeme J511) Sem JHIL ‘686T Ul

"SIUSPIS3L ([73) SWOIUI-MO| A|]3WBIIXS pajqesip pue Alapd

Joj Buip|ing Juawurede Jun STT e sl ‘Aepol “Suiping Juswiede Suisnoy Joiuas
SWOJUI-MO} NUN 9TT B SE 976T Ul pauado 3| “19313G duld OST I JAIY UBWpIeog
3Y3 uo pajedo) syuswpedy IIBIIB] MIIAIBAIY UO UOIIINIISUOD UeSsq om ‘E€/6T uj

ANNOYDNIVY @ AHOLSIH JHIL

PsAlas 3 ued saljiwey og 01 dn — weiBoud (SS4) ADUSIDIPNS-J13s Ajlwey «
eale AJunod 9 e 1o} 3|qe|ieAR 3. SISYINOA BI0Y) BulsNOH 807 03 dn — SouEsISsY [BIUDY «
AW 9513ARIL UI P31EO0] SHUN [E10) 9ET — SUISNOH dIiqNd »
:swesgoud
931y} J3AI3p 01 GNH YuMm sdiysisuried pauriof sey DHDL ‘sJeah ayl JanQ «
‘(uonein8as gnH Buimoj|oy) SuisnoH d1jgnd Jo 1uapIsal e Bulaq JaquIBW 3uo
Y1IM pieog AJOYINY INo 4O SISQISW § SABY A|UO 9M JBY] SIAEVIP 8T 10V IGNd «

'puoq pue Moioq 03 JHIL
Suimoy|e U 15| SY3 Yum UBY1 IDUIS DIIM) PIPUSLIR USI] SBY SIUBLIPIO YL «

"EE6T JO 8T 1V JIgnd
gy Jo Alsoyine ay3 Japun gogT ‘g 4990390 UO SaURUIPIQ AlD Aq paleaL) .

ANNOUSNIVY ] AYOLSIH DHDL

Asoiany Bugsnop ngng v
uolssiuwo) Suisnoy Ay asianes),

9T0Z 10} Uoissiwwo) A1) 3y} 0}
uoday [enuuy s,OHIL

140d3Y TVNNNY

LT0T/St/v

107



"e1ep 3|qejieae uodn paseq Jeak AJaas pale|najedal aJe ‘3sIno3 Jo ‘asay)

(ussap st wes3oid 1no ur Ajuno yoe3 :3]1ON — 001 $3N1)IN Joj Aed 1SnW s1y3 pue Ajuc AJuNo? BsI3ARIL PUBID 10) s1s1y))

HUN WooIpag 7 e 104 00°'596$ Aed Ajuo ue> oM TBIBGIg AJH JNO U]

‘(N3) ovy*8Z$ 10 ‘(1NA) 00€E°E€S ‘(1) 0SZ'ESS UBY) 553| 3 0} paau
SSWOCU! ‘G JO Ajluey e 10y 05 saljiwey 1oy A)|eauas S| SOWIOYUMOL MBINPIELII0 »

(N3} 006°21$ 20 “(NA) 009°TZ$ (1) 0SS'bES UBY) $53] 3q 01 paau
$SWOdU! 05 X3|dW oI Juawede Jueua) 3|Suls e A|jeIouad 5| 3IEIT0L MITAISATY «

‘ployasnoy

93U} Jo azis Aq Aden |Iim SIYL "POYISNOY SWI0IUI-MO] A|SWIBIIXS JO ‘SUWI0dUI

-Mo| Asan ‘awiodul-moj se Ayljenb o3 spaau pjoyasnoy e ‘saiuadold JHIL 104

'3W0dUl [B10] SP|OYISNOY 3Y1 JO %0E UBY] SSI JO 0) [enba s1 s31111In pue Jual
104 53500 |10] 3Y] UBYM SISIXa Jun Buisnoy ajqepioye ue ‘Suiyeads Ajjesauan .

¢319vQaYO4dV Sl LYHM

e Oumn

DS UEICT) TUENOK AN 2RIINCIL

“}Jom Ino Jo
Sulpuelsispun pue juawadedua
Ajlunwiwod aseasu|

"35U3|39%3 puB UOIIBACULY
4O JUSWIUOIIAUS UE 19)504
*5955300N5

|BAPIAIpUL 3A3IYoR pue 3y

40 Anjenb anoudw) o3 syuspisal
Joj saniunuoddo a1ealr)

‘suondo Jo aBuel pue Alojusaur

Buisnoy s|qeploye puedxy ‘T

SIVOD J1931vHlS

‘w3dsAs Aaniap wesSoid

pue Aiojusaul Suisnoy papuedxs ue ygnoaygy
SHOYS MO JO SYNSA 3Y] 335 PUR HLOM N0
SN|BA ‘2|01 INO pueISIApUN |jIm AJunurwod
3y] 'S|3pow |nJssadans se paziuSoral

39 ||1M S331AI3S pue s1INposd INO pue sIoPds
Bussnoy yjoiduou pue ygnd ‘Deaud ayy

ut sdiyssaunied Suouis aney jim 9 “Sursnoy
a|qepioye Jo uoidweyd e se pamala aq |Im
M Aem 3jqrsuodsal Ajeasy e u) Aujigepioye
pue Anjenk Joy prepuels anadwod e 135 |jIm
pue sagie| aq |im Asouaaul Suisnoy JHIL INO
"diysiaumao awoy pue sjeuas Juipnpur uoias
3y ui suondo Suisnoy jo a9ues ay) Suipuedxe
ul 3jou diyssapes) e Aejd o1 s1 UOISIA INQ

UGTSIA MON V

e

R Pt AN MUBALI]

‘Buisnoy Sunsixs Jo uawaSeuew

1NJss339Ns Y1 ynousys Jo ‘Suisnoy 312310 0}
Buusuped ‘Suisnoy Suneaid Aq uoissiw siya
ystjdwodde ap ‘soudpusdepul 31wouods pue
Aduapiyns-jias 1oy sepiunpioddo sjuapisal
4no adueyus Jeys suoiido Suisnoy a|qepioye
Aurenb ‘apiaosd 01 s151%9 UOISSIWIWOY
Suisnoy A1) asianell ay) ‘S|A3| |RNLID

1e 51 uoi3as 1no ur Buisnoy sjqepiogye Ay jo
39| 3Y1 18Y} PUE ‘3J1) S|qEIS B JO SU0ISIIUI0I
e s1 Suisnoy 1ey1 mouy am asnedag

UOISSIN| MaN V

(0z0z-s102) NOILD3NUIQ J1931VHIS MIN ‘MON

jswesdosd uno puedxs 03 Auadosd soy Buiyosess s wea) Juswdojaaag Jno ‘Aepoy.

‘Apadoud ay3 ur JusunsaAul

00°000°00€$ & 3q ||IM SIYL "£TOT 0 Jawwns 3y} ul Sulniels sapesFdn mopuim
Yum Juole pase|das Buipis 3Y3 aneY 01 PaINPaYIs e SIWOYUMOL MBIAPIBYIIO
‘20140 1da0u0d

uado pue ,3JqISS3593E,, Ajjn} B MOU S 3140 INQ *£TOZ Ul UOHEAOUSI 3910 JHIL
“uawilsanul 00°000°00Z$ - 9TOT

u1 paoe|das syun Suljeay pieog-aseq pey deLI3 MBIAIBAIY UL SJUSWLIRdE ||y
"GTOT 40 UDIBA Ut y10Mm uedaq 10103410 SAIINIAXT MaN

‘Aliadoud ay3 jo suun |je uj sapeaddn

1USLWISSAUL Ul 00°000°0065 430 YLIM 00T Ul UOIIBADUS] 998115 MIIAIIALY

ANNOYDNIVY '@ AHOLSIH DHIL

L10C2/SC/v

108



-] oG = N e

sy | i i I (PSS ——

=] ! —— aTe e {
— ]

~wara el

i
|
!
/

— — . .2 T
v ing g
= TS |

-] —— L

[ vm— Ty e

Ay manvedy peatbamy |

simy e i
oSG TSN A3 DKL

(IuBWoWw 3y1 18 PIsO| S| 1StJUBM BUI) SDWEU EEE SBY ISIUBM ADH «

Jem Jeak 934y} B — SaWeu G¢ sey ISijem sawoyumo| MB3IAPIR.YIIQD »
Mem Jeak OM1 € — saweu 0ET Sey IsIjIem 3Ieiu3] MBIAIDAIY »

(swioou) ouaz

Buuodai suosiad § Yum sss|swoy Aj[erauassa 1o ,9snoH 01 pJeH,, se
payisse|d a1am ZT) Suisnoy puly sudl|d ADH MU €2 PeY am ‘9Tz U «

Snoaue||dSIN

1OHS dVNS vivQg

Tt Pk AYD PI2AMY

ployasnoy

JO peay s|eway Aq pIay 24e %6l « @
ps|qesip a1e 18yl SPloyasnoy

Jo peay Aq piay aie 9SS « SJ3Ydnoa ,paseq-138foid, aie ¢z «

(pl0s1esA BT UBYY 5 054 9T ey asow 1oy wetoid
$53]) p|oYasnoy Jo siaquiaw 3U1 YUM UBB] SARY %6

page-|00y3s ZTT SABY oM
%SE = UIP|IYD YUM SPOYISNOH EY9'YTS = SWodu| S3esdny .
puly 0} pJey ase

snipel
3jIW-0s e s1aA03 weigoud %:n sawoy — paziun aie 797 Ajuo
: INg 8|ge|IBAR $J2YINOA |£10] 80T

An) asianel] jo A ays ulyum
{ADH) s13YdnoA 3310y BuISnoH

BA1| S19P|OY ADH JNO JO %P8 o
10OHS dVNS Viv(Q

00'¥ZES$ = pled Ju3Yy DAY
a1es Asuedndoo
%86 € Alieau yum SHun 1¢
= SOWOYUMO] MBIAPIBYIIQD
00799Z$ = pled Jusy DAY
el
Asuedna20 9+86 YuM SHUN GT1
= sjuswyedy 3Je113) MIIAIDALY -

Gy b sy

oS Buon A uDARSY

[}

000°0¢$ uey) 1218318 BWodul
aABY SIUBUS) UNO JO %/ AjUQ »

¥8T°L¥S = dwoou| a8esany Al
T9Z'ET$ = dWodu| 98eIdAY JHD

SIeSA QT JOA0 104 SN yum
US9Q SABY SIURUD] JNO JO %ZE «

SUISNOH 311GNd

LOHS dVNS VivQ

LT02/ST/v

109



Aoy Buisnop onqnd v
uoissiwwo) Suisnoy Ay assanes]

)

1ureydy @yrhuaL

€07 "1 ‘STEY-726 (1€7)

78961 UBSIYIA ‘AUD 3sI3ARI] 193135 Suld OST
10131 aAnndax3 ‘YyoAa Auol

-:uonewojul diow 104

""¥VIA LXIN NOA33S ANY 1 NOA INVH]

TP T teanime ey
esTRLIE) Ismow AYD asI0ARsL

vesiyIn

‘play=1s9Y) wouy Jordjnas pue
“19AIED “ISpIe MEsUleyD SLuum
pleme ue s| J3)Jony "umoidn
1e $10qySiau 1o wouy Suipuny
Suizimn Juswsaordwi Ayradosd
pauuejd e sem siy| ‘sAep

OM) LIl IOM SI3 pajajdwiod 3y
‘Auadosd 222113 M3IAIBAYY JNO
uo 3IMdJNds JUCILISAL B IAIRD

" s ek it e 910¢ isnony

21 10d SOV sraferg
21 ne “myBoMoy yamor
T WYy munusuE

]
T WY SusueEN

ammon pase
JeBeurip S2URURWIRIN

odsory omy ogors apaBay
Jeteuely wesdolg - | ~| 1eFeuEy S3d/pR1U)
k soprosn mrenm L~

s0p01q Ayndag

oD Ay
PAw) Avoy

1013810 AARR3EXT

i

{21qng 243 1uaSIdY OF SIAUOISSIULIDD ALD A1 pUD 10AD A3 Aq pRIUIOAdY)
$43U0)155) D) 10 p4ROg UO)SSI! 3 SuisnoH Ay asianes)

JYVYH) TYNOILLYZINYDHO JHOL

Vo Aq parm
oA Avoy
Jorsaud ananaaxa

(409) yuousy 1573 jjt2702235
(99K3) ty2101:25 7 SOOH
@IUBUIGACH 7§ BARNIXT

g sy
YIBOAND 13 SUORES|UNWIWOE?

Ll T

@aue|dwon 1 asweuly

=| ayuss Apuy _ _ T — _ _ PEWIW prewry _
L |

_ Tou> 317 ‘1R LIS ey Tl_ 11oy> "seeH wepg _

{24qnd 91 JusSBIdaY 0 SIBUOISSILIWOD AN 241 PUD 20ADY 212 Ag pRIUIOTdY)
SJUOISSILWOT §0 pJeog uolssiwo) Suisnoy Ay) as1onely

LYVH) TYNOILYZINYDHO JHIL

LT0C/St/v

110



